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To the Members,

The Directors submit annual report of the Rama Steel Tubes Limited (the “Company” or “RAMA”) along with the audited 
financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated

2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20
Revenue from Operations 32571.00 29,176.13 47,043.45 35,280.90
Other Income 312.47 472.34 613.89 365.06
Total Revenue 32,883.47 29,648.47 47,657.34 35,645.96
EBIDTA 1413.81 1064.95 2446.16 1232.15
Finance Costs 610.22 807.06 769.78 963.14
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 265.74 221.78 346.17 290.09
Share of profits from Associates and JVs 140.44 232.39 140.44 232.9
Net Profit before Tax 678.29 268.50 1470.65 211.31
Tax Expenses 140.47 131.23 232.83 168.67
Net Profit after Tax 537.82 137.28 1237.81 42.64
Other Comprehensive Income 6.56 (-) 0.84 (-) 26.17 39.24
Total Comprehensive Income 544.38 136.44 1211.64 81.88
Earning per equity share (Face Value of ` 5 each)
Basic 3.24 0.81 7.21 0.49
Diluted 3.24 0.81 7.21 0.49

COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The business performance of the company during the 
financial year 2020-21 was very strong, exhibited stellar 
performance amidst a dampening environment globally. 
The Company was able to perform through its operational 
excellence, better price realization, higher efficiency, 
effective cost management practices and well executed 
strategies.

During FY 2020-21, your company achieved Consolidated 
Revenue from operations of ` 47043.45 Lakhs compared 
to `35280.90 in FY20, registering a growth of 32% over 
the last year.  

Earnings before Interest, Depreciation and Taxes (EBIDTA) 
stood at `2446.16 Lakhs in FY 2020-21 compared to 
`1232.15 Lakhs in FY 2019-20. Compared to the previous 
fiscal, EBIDTA enhanced by 98.53%.

Consolidated profit before tax (PBT) in FY 2020-21 was 
`1470.65 Lakhs compared to `211.31 Lakhs in last FY 20, 
reflecting an increase of 595.97%.

Consolidated profit after tax (PAT) for the year under review 
was `1237.81 Lakhs against `42.64 Lakhs in FY 2020-21, an 
increase of 2803 % over the last fiscal year. 

BUSINESS IMPACT OF COVID-19 

In the first quarter of the financial year 2020-21, the 
COVID-19 pandemic had an adverse impact across 
regional and global economies and financial markets. 
Most governments reacted by instituting lockdowns, 
business shutdowns, quarantines and restriction on travel. 
Businesses also implemented safety measures to reduce 
the risk of transmission. Such action led to disruption 
of economic activity, leading to many economies 
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encountering a deep slump. However, end of lockdowns 
and resumption of economic activity from second quarter 
onwards, consumption picked up.

The company did face some operational disruptions in the 
beginning of FY 2020-21, which impacted the business. 
However, it was agile enough to work on a mitigation plan 
to overcome the challenges and combat the impact of the 
economic slowdown induced by the pandemic. It made all 
possible efforts to ramp up capacity utilisation and resume 
near-normal run rates by the end of the first quarter of 
FY 2020-21. In second quarter, the Company focused 
on increasing sales volumes to offset the loss of sales 
volumes of first quarter. 

As long term plan, the company also identified key 
focuses areas to ensure seamless business continuity. 
One such area is digitalisation, which it will continue to 
leverage by undertaking digital initiatives, using digital 
tools to access markets, and digital platforms to ensure 
operational excellence. It will also reduce its cost base and 
maintain continuity of its supply chains. Most importantly, 
it will remain committed to its environmental, social and 
governance goals.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend any dividend for the year 
under review.

ADOPTION OF INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS). Accordingly, the standalone financial statements 
of the Company and the consolidated financial statements 
of the Company with its subsidiary for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2021, have been prepared in accordance 
with Ind AS as prescribed under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), read with the relevant 
rules made there under and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India.

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

The issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital 
of the Company is `8,39,70,000 divided into 1,67,94,000 
Equity shares of `5/- each.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the year 
under review, is presented in a separate section forming 
part of this Annual Report.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

The Company has 2 Direct subsidiaries and 1 Indirect 
subsidiary and 1 JV as on March 31, 2021. Pursuant to Section 
129 of the Companies Act, 2013 a statement in prescribed 
Form AOC-1, relating to subsidiaries and joint venture for 
the year ended on March 31, 2021 has been attached with 
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2021. In accordance 
with provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 
the standalone and consolidated financial statements of 
the company, along with relevant document and separate 
audited accounts in respect of the subsidiaries, are 
available on the website of the company. The company 
will provide the annual accounts of the subsidiaries and 
related detailed information to the shareholders of the 
Company on specific request made to it in this regard by 
the shareholders.

The policy for determining material subsidiaries as 
approved may be accessed on the Company’s Website:http://
www.ramasteel.com/app/webroot/img/uploads/files/93/
POLICY%20FOR%20DETERMINING%20MATERIAL%20
SUBSIDIARY.pdf

Lepakshi Tubes Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary 
of Rama Steel Tubes Limited is the material subsidiary of 
the Company as per Listing regulations.

The provisions of Regulation 24(1) of the Listing Regulations, 
appointment of one of the Independent Directors of the 
Company on the Board of material subsidiaries are not 
applicable to Lepakshi Tubes Private Limited.

The Company is in compliance with Regulation 24A of 
the Listing Regulations. The Company’s unlisted material 
subsidiary Lepakshi Tubes Private Limited undergo 
Secretarial Audit. Copy of Secretarial Audit Report of is 
available on the website of the Company. The Secretarial 
Audit report of Lepakshi Tubes Private Limited does not 
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or 
disclaimer.
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has followed applicable Secretarial 
Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the 
Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’ respectively.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the 
meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 
Accordingly, there are no unclaimed or unpaid deposits 
lying with the Company for the year under review.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Charat Sharma was appointed as Additional Director 
(Non-executive Independent Director) by the Board of 
Directors of the Company w.e.f. November 17, 2019 has 
resigned from Board of Directors of the company due to 
personal reason w.e.f. September 4, 2020. 

Mr. Jai Prakash Gupta was appointed as Additional Director 
(Non-executive Independent Director) by the Board of 
Directors of the Company w.e.f. September 4, 2020 who 
holds office up to the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Vinod Pal Singh Rawat was appointed as Additional 
Director (Executive Director) by the Board of Directors of 
the Company w.e.f. July 8, 2021 who holds office up to the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the 
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Richi Bansal, 
Director of the Company will be retiring by rotation at the 
ensuing AGM and being eligible has offered himself for re-
appointment.

The details pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 relating to appointment and re-appointment of 
directors at the AGM are provided in the Notice to the 
members.

Key Managerial Personnel:

The Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in the Company as 
per Section 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
as follows:

*Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal, Managing Director

*Mr. Rajeev Kumar Aggarwal, Chief Financial Officer

*Mr. Kapil Datta, Company Secretary

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and 
ability, confirm that:

a)	 that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed 
and there has been no material departure;

b)	 that the selected accounting policies were applied 
consistently. Reasonable and prudent judgments and 
estimates were made so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 
31, 2021 and of the loss of the Company for the year 
ended on that date;

c)	 the directors had taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

d)	 that the annual accounts have been prepared on a 
going concern basis;

e)	 the directors had laid down internal financial controls 
to be followed by the Company and such internal 
financial control are adequate and were operating 
effectively; and

f)	 the directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and such systems are adequate and were operating 
effectively.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS

The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive 
and independent directors to maintain the independence 



Corporate  Overview Statuory Reports Financial Statements

Annual Report - 2020-21  |   47

of the Board, and separate its functions of governance and 
management. As on March 31, 2021, the Board consist of 
6 members, three of whom are executive and three are 
independent directors. The Board periodically evaluates 
the need for change in its composition and size.

The policy of the Company on directors’ appointment 
and remuneration, including criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a 
director and other matters provided under Sub-section 
(3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, adopted by 
the Board. We affirm that the remuneration paid to the 
directors is as per the terms laid out in the nomination and 
remuneration policy of the Company.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S)

All the Independent Directors have submitted their 
disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the requirements 
as stipulated in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 
so as to qualify themselves to be appointed as Independent 
Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the relevant rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintain the highest 
standards of corporate governance and adhere to the 
corporate governance requirements set out by SEBI. The 
Company has also implemented several best corporate 
governance practices as prevalent globally. The report 
on Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing 
Regulations forms an integral part of this Report. The 
requisite certificate from the Auditors of the Company 
confirming compliance with the conditions of corporate 
governance is attached to the report on Corporate 
Governance.

ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the annual return as required under 
Section 92 of the Act for the financial year 2020-21, is 
available on the Company’s website at www.ramasteel.
com.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Eight meetings of the board were held during the year. 

For details of the meetings of the board, please refer to 
the corporate governance report, which forms part of this 
report.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by 
the Company during the financial year with related parties 
were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s 
length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered 
into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related 
parties which could be considered material in accordance 
with the policy of the Company on materiality of related 
party transactions.

Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note 
48 to the Standalone financial statement which sets out 
related party disclosures. The particulars of contracts and 
arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in Section 188 in Form AOC-2 is attached 
herewith as Annexure- I.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Statutory Auditors

As per provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Company has appointed M/s Alok Mittal & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 005717N) as 
Statutory Auditors for a period of 5 (five) years in the AGM 
of the Company held on 29th September 2018. 

The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment 
of auditors for ratification by Members at every AGM has 
been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 
with effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is 
being proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory 
auditor at the ensuing AGM.

The Auditor’s Report to the shareholders on the standalone 
and consolidated financial statement for the year 
ended March 31, 2021 does not contain any qualification, 
observation or adverse comment.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provision of Section 204 of the Act, 
read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remunerartion of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the 
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Board of Directors had appointed M/s Arun Kumar Gupta & 
Associates (CP No. 5086), Company Secretaries, to conduct 
Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended March 31, 
2021. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2021 is annexed herewith marked as 
Annexure - II to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report 
does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 
remark.

Pursuant to Regulation 24(A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, 
the Company has obtained annual secretarial compliance 
report from M/s Arun Kumar Gupta & Associates (CP No. 
5086), Company Secretaries, and same will be submitted 
to the stock exchange within the prescribed time limits. The 
Annual Secretarial Compliance Report does not contain 
any remarks or observations.

Cost Auditors

Pursuant to the provision of Section 148(3) of the Act, the 
Board of Directors had appointed M/s. Subodh Kumar & Co., 
Cost Accountants, for conducting the audit of cost records 
of the Company for Steel pipe Segment for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2021. The audit is in progress and 
report will be filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
within the prescribed period.

The cost records as specified by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act as required 
by the Company are maintained by the Company.

Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors other than 
those which are reportable to the Central Government

The Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors or Secretarial 
Auditors of the Company have not reported any frauds to 
the Audit Committee or to the Board of Directors under 
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, including rules 
made thereunder.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments 
given under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have 
been disclosed in the financial statements.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

We at RAMA aim to create economic value and to actively 
contribute toward the development of a sustainable 
society by taking up projects for the common good 
through responsible business practices and good 
governance. In line with the requirement of Section 135 of 
the Companies Act 2013 your Company having a Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee. The details of Committee 
and the terms of reference are provided in corporate 
governance report. The CSR Policy of the Company is 
available on its website at the link: http://ramasteel.com/
cms/policy-and-code-of-conduct.

During the year the Company has spent `19.95 Lakhs on 
CSR activities for the financial year 2020-21 as annexed 
herewith Annexure- III to this Report.

Aforesaid CSR money paid to Konfyans Charitable Public 
Trust for purpose of women empowerment and social 
development.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial disclosures.

VIGIL MECHANISM AND WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Fraud-free and corruption free work culture has been the 
core of the Company’s functioning. In view of the potential 
risk of fraud and corruption due to rapid growth and 
geographical spread of operations, the company has put 
even greater emphasis to address the risk.

To meet this objective, a Whistle Blower Policy has been 
laid down. The same policy is approved by the Board was 
uploaded on the Company’s website (www.ramasteel.com).

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN 
AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment 
at workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention, 
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prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at 
workplace in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. 
No complaint has been received for sexual harassment of 
women at work place by the Company during the financial 
year 2020-21.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation 
of its own performance, Board committees and individual 
directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Corporate Governance requirements as 
prescribed by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES RELATED DISCLOSURES

a.	 Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other 
details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act 
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 are given below :

i.	 The ratio of the remuneration of each director to 
the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for the financial year:

Non-executive directors Ratio to median 
remuneration

Mr. Bharat Bhushan Sahny N.A.
Mr. Charat Sharma (upto 
04.09.2021)

N.A.

Mr. Jai Prakash Gupta (w.e.f. 
04.09.2021)

N.A.

Mrs. Anju Gupta N.A.

Executive directors
Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal 21.00
Mr. Richi Bansal 19.00
Mr. Surender  Kumar Sharma 1.00

ii.	 The percentage increase in remuneration of each 
director, chief executive officer, chief financial 
officer, company secretary in  the financial year:

Directors, Chief Financial 
Officer and Company 
Secretary

% increase in 
remuneration 

in the  financial 
year

Mr. Bharat Bhushan Sahny N.A.
Mr. Charat Sharma (upto 
04.09.2021)

N.A.

Mr. Jai Prakash Gupta (w.e.f. 
04.09.2021)

N.A.

Mrs. Anju Gupta N.A.
Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal, 
Managing Director

NIL

Mr. Richi Bansal, Executive 
Director

NIL

Mr. Rajeev Kumar Agarwal, 
Chief Financial Officer 

NIL

Mr. Kapil Datta, Company 
Secretary 

NIL

b.	 The percentage increase in median remuneration of 
employees in the financial year:   NIL

c.	 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of 
Company : 85

d.	 Variations in the market capitalisation of the Company, 
price earning ratio as at the closing date of the current 
financial year and previous financial year : N.A.

e.	 Percentage increase over decrease in the market 
quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison 
to the rate at which the Company came out with the 
last public offer: N.A.

f.	 Average percentile increase already made in the 
salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison 
with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if 
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase 
in the managerial remuneration:

	T he average annual increase was  NIL 

	 Increase in the managerial remuneration for the year 
was  NIL
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g.	 The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per 
remuneration policy of the Company. 

	 In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the 
Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, there is no such employee 
drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in 
the said rules and are required to be disclosed.

	 Further, particulars of employees pursuant to Rule 
5(2) & 5(3) of the above rules form part of this report. 
However in terms of provisions of section 136 of the 
said Act, the report and accounts are being sent to 
all the members of the Company and others entitled 
thereto, excluding the said particulars of employees. 
Any member interested in obtaining such particulars 
may write to the Company Secretary at investors@
ramasteel.com. The said information is available for 
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company 
during working days of the Company upto the date of 
the ensuing AGM.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND 
DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A)	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY :

a)	T he Company has always been particular to 
conservation of energy on continuous basis by 
closely monitoring energy consuming equipment 
involving use of energy generating diesel set and 
power purchased from Electricity Board e.g. size 
of the Equipments is optimum to save energy. 
The low-efficient Machinery and Equipments are 
identified and replaced.

b)	 Keeping in view the nature of the manufacturing 
process no additional investment is proposed and 
hence further consumption of energy is ruled out 
in the near future.

c)	 No specific studies regarding impact of the above 
measures of (a) and (b) have been carried out and 
the cost impact of energy cost and energy saving 

measures on cost of production of goods is not 
material, as it forms a very low percentage vis-a 
vis the cost of Company’s product.

d)	T otal energy consumption and energy 
consumption per unit of production is given as per 
Form-A.

B)	TE CHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADOPTION AND 
INNOVATION :

I.	RE SEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

i.	 Specific area in which R & D carried out by the 
Company :

		 There is no specific area in which the 
Company has carried the R & D. However, the 
Company is continuously making efforts for 
improvements in its production process for 
better productivity and cost efficiency.

ii.	 Future plan of action

		T he Company plans to monitor continuously 
the plant efficiency thus reducing the shortage 
and reducing the cost of production.

iii.	 Expenditure on R & D

		T he company did not incur any Expenditure on 
R & D.

II.	TE CHNOLOGICAL, ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & 
INNOVATION :

i.	 Efforts made towards Technology Absorption:

		 For the goods manufactured by the Company 
there is a simple process of ERW manufacturing 
technique and the Company has already 
adopted the same and no innovations have 
been carried by the company, as there is no 
other available alternative that would ensure 
further cost efficiency.

ii.	 Particulars relating to imported technology :

		T he Company has not imported any technology 
and the plant is working with completely 
Indigenous Technical know-how.
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C)	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO :

(` In Lacs)

Current year Previous 
year

a) Total Foreign 
Exchange Earning

5645.78 4700.41

b) Total Foreign 
Exchange Outgo

3567.06 3010.26

FORM ‘A’

POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

Current Year Previous Year
1.	 Electricity
(a)	 Purchased Unit 2910254 3666641
	 Total amount (in `) 2,19,88,311 2,26,95,286
	 Rate/unit 7.56 6.19

(b)	 Own generation
    	 Through Diesel 

Generator Unit
79049 114990

	 Unit per Litre of 
Diesel Oil

4.73 4.78

	 Total Amount (in `) 12,48,133 15,73,659
	 Cost/Unit 15.73 13.69
2.	 Furnace Oil 

Quantity(litres)
195150 140560

	 Total Amount (in `) 69,37,350 59,64,800
      Average Rate `/litre 35.55 42.44

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION

ELECTRICITY  (UNIT) FURNACE OIL/GAS
(LITRE/SQ. CUBIC 

MTR)
NAME OF 
PRODUCT

UNIT CURRENT 
YEAR

PREVIOUS  
YEAR

CURRENT 
YEAR

PREVIOUS  
YEAR

Black Steel 
Tubes/Pipes

Per Ton 54.35 60.96 -- --

Galvd. Steel 
Tubes/Pipes

Per Ton 52.91 59.11 14.43 12.66

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors acknowledge the contributions made by 
the employees towards the success and growth of the 
company. Your Directors also take this opportunity to 
express sincere thanks to the Government Authorities, 
Financial Institutions and the Bankers for their co-
operation and assistance to the Company. The Directors 
would also like to acknowledge the continued support of 
the Company’s shareholders in all its endeavors. 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/-

(Naresh Kumar Bansal)
Chairman & Managing Director

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 14, 2021
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Annexure - I

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-
section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis-

	 None: During the Reporting Period, all the transactions not at arm’s length basis.

a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Not Applicable

b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Not Applicable

c. Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions Not Applicable

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any Not Applicable

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions Not Applicable

f. Date(s) of approval by the Board Not Applicable

g. Amount paid as advances, if any Not Applicable

h. Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first 
proviso to section 188

Not Applicable

2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

	 None: During the Reporting Period, there was no material* Contracts or Arrangement.

a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Not Applicable

b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Not Applicable

c. Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions Not Applicable

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions Not Applicable

e. Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any Not Applicable

f. Amount paid as advances, if any Not Applicable

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/-

(Naresh Kumar Bansal)
Chairman & Managing Director

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 14, 2021
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Annexure - II

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and ruleNo.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 
The Members,
RAMA STEEL TUBES LIMITED
B-5, 3rd Floor, Main Road, Ghazipur 
New Delhi 110096

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by Rama Steel Tubes Limited 
(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Rama Steel Tubes Limited 
books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the company and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the 
company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2021 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by Rama 
Steel Tubes Limited for the financial year ended on 31st 

March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i)	T he Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 
there under;

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) 
and the rules made there under;

(iii)	T he Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made there under to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 
and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a)	T he Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

b)	T he Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c)	T he Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company 
during the Audit Period)

d)	T he Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 
Based Employee Benefits) Regulation, 2014; (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period)

e)	T he Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period)

f)	T he Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client;

g)	T he Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) (Amendment) 
Regulations, 2016; (Not applicable to the Company 
during the Audit Period) and

h)	T he Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period)
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(vi)	 Having regard to the compliance system prevailing 
in the Company and on examination of the relevant 
documents and records in pursuance thereof, on 
test-check basis, the Company has complied with the 
following laws applicable specifically to the Company: 

•	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations 
and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

•	 The Factories Act, 1948 

•	 The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 

•	 The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 

•	 Employees Provident Fund And Misc. Provisions 
Act, 1952 

•	 Employees State Insurance Act,1948 

•	 The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 

•	 The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 

•	 Income Tax Act 1961, Wealth Tax Act, Goods and 
Services Tax Act, 2016 and rules made thereof. 

•	 Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881 

•	 Maternity Benefits Act 1961 

•	 Payment of Gratuity Act,1972 

•	 The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

•	 The Child Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 
1970

•	 The Weekly Holidays Act, 1942

•	 Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1974 
and rules thereunder

•	 Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1981 and 
rules thereunder

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

(i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015, (erstwhile Listing 
Agreement) entered into by the Company with Bombay 
Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited. 

	 During the period under review the Company has 
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned 
above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted 
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance and a system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting 
members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part 
of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the 
Company obtained consent of shareholders by way of 
Special resolution in its Annual General meeting in respect 
of following matter:

(i)	 Re-appointment of Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal (DIN: 
00119213) as Managing Director of the Company. 

(ii)	 Ratification of approval of remuneration to Mr. Naresh 
Kumar Bansal (DIN: 00119213), Managing Director in 
terms of regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI Amended Listing 
Regulations.

(iii)	 Ratification of approval of remuneration to Mr. 
Richi Bansal (DIN: 00119206), Executive Director in 
terms of regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI Amended Listing 
Regulations.

For ARUN KUMAR GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES
Sd/-
(ARUN KUMAR GUPTA)
FCS: 5551
CP: 5086
UDIN: F005551C000787200

Place: Delhi 					   
Date: August 14, 2021
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Annexure - A’

Annexure to the Secretarial Audit Report

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the examinations carried out by us and 
explanations furnished and representations made to 
us by the Company, its officers and agents, we report 
that the Company has, during the financial year under 
review, complied with the provisions of the Acts, the Rules 
made there under and the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company with regard to:-

1.	 Maintenance of various statutory registers and 
documents and making necessary entries therein;

2.	 Contracts, Common Seal, Registered Office and 
Publication of name of the Company;

3.	 Forms, Returns, Documents and resolutions required 
to be filed with the Registrar of Companies, Regional 
Director, Central Government, Company Law Board 
and such other authorities;

4.	 Service of documents by the Company on its Members, 
Directors, Auditors and Registrar of Companies;

5.	 Constitution of the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee;

6.	 Appointment, Re-appointment, Retirement of Directors 
including Whole Time Directors and payment of 
remuneration. 

7.	 Disclosure of Interest and Concerns in Contracts and 
Arrangements, Shareholdings and Directorships in 
other Companies and interest in other entities by 
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel;

8.	 Disclosures requirements in respect of their eligibility 
for appointment, declaration of their independence, 
compliance with the code of conduct for Directors of 
Rama Steel Tubes Limited;

9.	 Related party transactions which were in the ordinary 
course of business and at arm’s length basis and were 
placed before the Audit Committee for their review/
approval as and when required;

10.	 Formulation and adopting Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy;

11.	 Appointment and remuneration of Statutory Auditors;

12.	 Notice of the meetings of the Board and Committees 
thereof;

13.	 Minutes of the meeting of the Board and Committees 
thereof;

14.	 Notice convening Annual General Meeting held on 
November 20, 2020 and holding of the meeting on 
that date;

15.	 Minutes of General Meeting;

16.	 Approval of the Members, Board of Directors, 
Committees of Directors and Government Authorities 
wherever required;

17.	 Form of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 as 
prescribed under part I of schedule III of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and requirements as to Profit & Loss Account 
for the year ended  on that date as per Part II of the 
said schedule;

18.	 Report of the Board of Directors for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2020;

19.	 Transfer of Equity and Preference Shares and issue 
and delivery of share certificates;

20.	 Borrowings and registration of charges;

21.	 Investment of Company’s funds and inter-corporate 
loans and investments.
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Annexure - III
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

[PURSUANT TO SECTION 135 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013] FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21

1.	 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken 
and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes

	 Terms of reference of the CSR Committee:
a.	 To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the 

activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013; 
b.	 To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause (a) in a financial 

year; 
c.	 To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time. 
d.	 Any other matter/thing as may be considered expedient by the members in furtherance of and to comply with 

the CSR Policy of the Company.

	 The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company. The Web link 
for the same is:  http://ramasteel.com/cms/policy-and-code-of-conduct.

2.	 Average Net Profit of the Company for the last Three Financial Year: ` 997.27 lakhs

3.	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (Two percent of the Average Net Profit as in item 2): ` 19.95 lakhs

4.	 Details of the amount spent for the financial year: ` 19.95 Lakhs

5.	 Composition of CSR Committee

Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship 
Ms. Anju Gupta Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Bharat Bhushan Sahny Member Non-Executive Independent Director 
Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal Member Managing Director
Mr. Richi Bansal Member Director 

	 Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
S. No CSR project 

or activity 
identified

Sector in which the 
Project is covered

Projects or 
programs (1) Local 
area or other 
(2) Specify the 
State and district 
where projects 
or programs was 
undertaken

Amount outlay 
(budget) project 
or programs wise 
(in Rs.)

Amount spent 
on the projects 
or programs 
Sub – heads: (1) 
Direct expenditure 
on projects or 
programs (2) 
Overheads (in Rs.)

Cumulative 
expenditure upto 
the reporting 
period

Amount spent : 
Direct or through 
implementing 
agency

1 Women 
Empowerment 
& Social 
Developement

Promoting Gender 
Equality and Empowering 
Women (The project is 
covered under schedule 
VII(iii) of the Companies 
Act, 2013

South Extension 
Part II, New Delhi

19,95,000 19,95,000 88,24,000 Implementing 
Agency

2 Women 
Education

Promoting Gender 
Equality and Empowering 
Women (The project is 
covered under schedule 
VII(iii) of the Companies 
Act, 2013

GT Karnal Road, 
Industrial Area, 
Aajadpur, Delhi

- - 2,00,000 Implementing 
Agency

6.	 In case the Company failed to spent Two Percent of the average Net Profit of Last three financial Years or any 
part thereof, the company shall provide the reason for not spending the Amount in its Board Report: Please refer 
Directors’ Report

7.	 Responsibility Statement : The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives 
and Policy of the Company.

Sd/-
Anju Gupta
Chairman of CSR Committee

Sd/-
Naresh Kumar Bansal
Member of CSR Committee

Sd/-
Bharat Bhushan Sahny
Member of CSR Committee
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1.	 COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

	 At Rama Steel Tubes Limited (“RAMA”), Corporate 
Governance is all about maintaining a valuable 
relationship and trust with all stakeholders. We believe 
that it is imperative for us to manage our business 
affairs in the most fair and transparent manner with 
a firm commitment to our values. For us, corporate 
governance is an ethically driven business process 
that is committed to values aimed at enhancing an 
organization’s brand and reputation. Our corporate 
governance framework is a reflection of our culture, 
our policies, our relationship with stakeholders and our 
commitment to values. Accordingly, we always seek to 
ensure that our performance is driven by integrity. This 
is vital to gain and retain the trust of our stakeholders.

	 Our corporate governance framework ensures 
effective engagement with our stakeholders and helps 
us evolve with changing times.

	T he Company is in compliance with the requirements 
stipulated under regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule 
V and clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of the 
regulation 46 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable, 
with regard to corporate governance. 

	 Our corporate governance framework ensures that 
we make timely disclosures and share accurate 
information regarding our financials and performance, 
as well as the leadership and governance of the 
Company.

	 We believe, Corporate Governance is not just a 
destination, but a journey to constantly improve 
sustainable value creation. It is an upward-moving 
target that we collectively strive towards achieving. 

	 Board Leadership

	 As on March 31, 2021, Rama’s Board consists of 6 
members, 3 out of which are Independent Directors 
(including one woman director). At RAMA, it is our 
belief that an enlightened Board consciously creates a 
culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and 
policy approach to improve the quality of governance. 

The Board’s actions and decisions are aligned with 
the Company’s best interests. It is committed to the 
goal of sustainably elevating the Company’s value 
creation. The Company has defined guidelines and 
an established framework for the meetings of the 
Board and Board Committees. These guidelines seek 
to systematise the decision-making process at the 
meeting of the Board and Board Committees in an 
informed and efficient manner.

	T he Board critically evaluates the Company’s strategic 
direction, management policies and their effectiveness. 
The agenda for the Board reviews include strategic 
review from each of the Board committees, a detailed 
analysis and review of annual strategic and operating 
plans and capital allocation and budgets. Additionally, 
the Board reviews related party transactions, possible 
risks and risk mitigation measures, financial reports 
from the CFO and business reports from each of the 
sector heads. Frequent and detailed interaction sets 
the agenda and provides the strategic roadmap for the 
Company’s future growth.

	 Role of Company Secretary in Overall Governance 
Process

	 The Company Secretary plays a key role in ensuring that 
the Board (including committees thereof) procedures 
are followed and regularly reviewed. The Company 
Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details 
and documents are made available to the Directors 
and senior management for effective decision-
making at the meetings. The Company Secretary is 
primarily responsible to assist and advise the Board 
in the conduct of affairs of the Company, to ensure 
compliance with applicable statutory requirements 
and Secretarial Standards, to provide guidance to 
directors and to facilitate convening of meetings. He 
interfaces between the management and regulatory 
authorities for governance matters.

2.	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	 Board composition and category of Directors

	T he Company’s policy is to maintain optimum 
combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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	T he composition of the Board and category of Directors 
are as follows:

Category Name of Directors

Executive 
Directors

Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal

-Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Richi Bansal

Mr. Surender Kumar Sharma (upto 
19.04.2021)

Mr. Vinod Pal Singh Rawat 
(w.e.f. 08.07.2021)

Independent 
Directors

Mr. Bharat Bhushan Sahny

Mr. Charat Sharma (upto 04.09.2020)

Mr. Jai Prakash Gupta (w.e.f. 04.09.2020)

Mrs. Anju Gupta

	 Mr. Richi Bansal is the son of Mr. Naresh Kumar 
Bansal. None of the other directors are related 
to any other director on the Board.

	 MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND 
COMMITTEES OF BOARD

	 Number of Board meetings held with dates

	E ight Board meetings were held during the year, 
as against the minimum requirement of four 
meetings.

	T he details of Board meetings are given below:

Date Board 
Strwngth

No. of Directors 
Present

29-Jun-20 6 6

12-Aug-20 6 6

04-Sep-20 6 6

05-Oct-20 6 6

11-Nov-20 6 6

27-Jan-21 6 6

12-Feb-21 6 6

29-Mar-21 6 6

	 ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS, LAST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) AND NUMBER 
OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS AND CHAIRMANSHIPS / MEMBERSHIPS OF COMMITTEES OF EACH DIRECTOR IN 
VARIOUS COMPANIES:

Name of the Director Attendance 
at the Board 

meetings 
during 2020-21

Attendance at 
the AGM during 

2020-21

No. of Other 
Directorship(s) 
on 31-03-2021

No. of Membership(s)/ 
Chairmanship of 

Committees in other 
Companies 

as on 31-03-2021

Naresh Kumar Bansal 8 YES 4 0

Richi Bansal 8 YES 3 0

Bharat Bhushan Sahny 8 YES 2 1

Surender Kumar Sharma 8 YES 1 0

Anju Gupta 8 YES 0 0

Charat Sharma (upto 04.09.2020) 3 N.A. 3 0

Jai Prakash Gupta (w.e.f. 
04.09.2020)

5 YES 0 0
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3.	A udit Committee

	 Our audit committee (‘the committee’) comprised 
four Directors as on March 31, 2021:

Bharat Bhushan Sahny - 
Chairman of the Committee

Independent Director

Charat Sharma (upto 
04.09.2020)

Independent Director

Jai Prakash Gupta (w.e.f. 
04.09.2020)

Independent Director

Anju Gupta Independent Director

Naresh Kumar Bansal Executive Director

	T he Committee’s composition meets with 
requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. 
Members of the Audit Committee possess financial / 
accounting expertise / exposure.

	 Mr. Charat Sharma was appointed as Director (Non-
executive Independent Director) by the Board of 
Directors of company with effect from November 17, 
2019. Board has also appointed Mr. Sharma as Member 
of Audit Committee with effect from November 17, 
2019. Due to personal reasons, Mr. Charat Sharma 
resigned from Board of Directors of the company and 
as Member of Audit Committee. Mr. Jai Prakash Gupta 
was appointed as Director of the company and Member 
of the Audit Committee with effect from September 4, 
2020.

	 Role of the Audit Committee:  

•	 Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process and the disclosure of its financial 
information to ensure that the financial statements 
are correct, sufficient and credible. 

•	 Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances 
from/investment by the Company in the subsidiary 
exceeding `100 Crores or 10% of the asset size 
of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including 
existing loans / advances / investments

•	 Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-
appointment and, if required, the replacement or 
removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation 
of audit fees. 

•	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any 
other services rendered by the statutory auditors. 

•	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual 
financial statements before submission to the 
board for approval, with particular reference to: 

•	 Matters required being included in the Directors 
Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 
(3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

•	 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices 
and reasons for the same. 

•	 Major accounting entries involving estimates based 
on the exercise of judgment by management.

•	 Significant adjustments made in the financial 
statements arising out of audit findings. 

•	 Compliance with listing and other legal 
requirements relating to financial statements. 

•	 Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

•	 Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

•	 Reviewing, with the management, the half 
yearly and annual financial statements before 
submission to the board for approval.

•	 Reviewing, with the management, the statement 
of uses / application of funds raised through an 
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, 
etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes 
other than those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/notice and the report submitted by 
the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization 
of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 
appropriate recommendations to the Board to 
take up steps in this matter. 

•	 Reviewing, with the management, performance of 
statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 
internal control systems.

•	 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, 
if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official 
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heading the department, reporting structure 
coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

•	 Discussion with internal auditors on any significant 
findings and follow up there on. 

•	 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations 
by the internal auditors into matters where there 
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of 
internal control systems of a material nature and 
reporting the matter to the board. 

•	 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit 
commences, about the nature and scope of audit 
as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any 
area of concern. 

•	 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in 
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of nonpayment of declared 
dividends) and creditors. 

•	 To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower 
mechanism, in case the same is existing. 

•	 Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-
time Finance Director or any other person heading 
the finance function or discharging that function) 
after assessing the qualifications, experience & 
background, etc. of the candidate. 

•	 To overview the Vigil Mechanism of the Company 
and took appropriate actions in case of repeated 
frivolous complaints against any Director or 
Employee.

Powers of the Audit Committee:

•	 Investigating any activity within its terms of 
reference;

•	 Seeking information from any employee;

•	 Obtaining outside legal or other professional 
advice; and

•	 Securing attendance of outsiders with relevant 
expertise, if it considers necessary.

4.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

	 Our Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘the 
committee’) comprised three Directors as on March 31, 
2021:

Charat Sharma - Chairman 
of the Committee (upto 
04.09.2021)

Independent Director

Jai Prakash Gupta - 
Chairman of the Committee 
(w.e.f. 04.09.2021)

Independent Director

Bharat Bhushan Sahny Independent Director

Anju Gupta Independent Director

	T he Committee’s composition meets with 
requirements of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. 

	 Mr. Charat Sharma was appointed as Director (Non-
executive Independent Director) by the Board of 
Directors of company with effect from November 
17, 2019. Board has also appointed Mr. Sharma 
as Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee with effect from November 17, 2019. Due 
to personal reasons, Mr. Charat Sharma resigned from 
Board of Directors of the company and as Chariman 
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Mr. 
Jai Prakash Gupta was appointed as Director of the 
Company and Chairman of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee with effect from September 
4, 2020.

	T he terms of reference of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee include the following:

•	 To recommend to the Board, the remuneration 
packages of the Company’s Managing/Joint 
Managing/ Deputy  Managing/Whole time / 
Executive Directors, including all elements of 
remuneration package (i.e. salary, benefits, 
bonuses, perquisites, commission, incentives, 
stock options, pension, retirement benefits, details 
of fixed component and performance linked 
incentives along with the performance criteria, 
service contracts, notice period, severance fees 
etc.);

	T o be authorized at its duly constituted meeting to 
determine on behalf of the Board of Directors and 
on behalf of the shareholders with agreed terms 
of reference, the Company’s policy on specific 
remuneration packages for Company’s Managing/
Joint Managing/ Deputy Managing/ Whole time/ 
Executive Directors, including pension rights and any 
compensation payment.
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5.	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

	 Our Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (‘the 
committee’) comprised four directors as on March 31, 
2021:

Anju Gupta
(Chairman of the 
Committee)

Independent Director

Bharat Bhushan Sahny Independent Director

Naresh Kumar Bansal Executive Director
Richi Bansal Executive Director

	 The Role of CSR Committee is as under:

(a)	 Formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR 
Policy which shall indicate the activities to be 
undertaken by the Company in compliance with 
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder.

(b)	 Recommend the amount of expenditure to be 
incurred on the activities as above, and

(c)	 Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time 
to time.

	T he Company has formulated a CSR Policy in line with 
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

6.	 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

	T he committee has the mandate to review and redress 
shareholder grievances. Our stakeholders’ relationship 
committee (‘the committee’) comprised Four Directors 
as on March 31, 2021

Charat Sharma – Chairman 
of the Committee (upto 
04.09.2020)

Independent Director

Jai Prakash Gupta – 
Chairman of the Committee 
(w.e.f. 04.09.2020)

Independent Director

Bharat Bhushan Sahny Independent Director
Anju Gupta Independent Director
Richi Bansal Executive Director

	 Mr. Charat Sharma was appointed as Director (Non-
executive Independent Director) by the Board of 

Directors of company with effect from November 
17, 2019. Board has also appointed Mr. Sharma as 
Chairman of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
with effect from November 17, 2019. Due to personal 
reasons, Mr. Charat Sharma resigned from Board 
of Directors of the company and as Chariman of 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. Mr. Jai Prakash 
Gupta was appointed as Director of the Company and 
Chairman of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
with effect from September 4, 2020.

	 The Stakeholder Relationships Committee shall 
oversee all matters pertaining to investors of our 
Company. The terms of reference of the Stakeholder 
Relationships Committee include the following:

•	 Redressal of shareholders’/investors’ complaints;

•	 Reviewing on a periodic basis the Approval of 
transfer or transmission of shares, debentures 
or any other securities made by the Registrar and 
Share Transfer  Agent;

•	 Issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates 
on split/consolidation/renewal;

•	 Non-receipt of declared dividends, balance sheets 
of the Company; and

•	 Carrying out any other function as prescribed 
under the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	T he Committee has periodic interaction with the 
representatives of the Registrar and Transfer Agent of 
the Company. 

	 Details of Shareholders’/ Investors’ Complaints

	 Mr. Kapil Datta, Company Secretary, is the Compliance 
Officer for resolution of Shareholders’/Investors’ 
complaints. During the financial year ended 31st March 
2021, No complaint was received from the shareholder 
during the year 2020-21 and as on 31st March 2021, no 
shareholder complaint is pending.
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	 Meetings of Board Committees held during the year and Directors’ attendance

Board Committees Audit Committee Stakeholders’ 
Relationship 
Committee

Nomination and 
Remuneration 

Committee

Corporate Social 
Responsibility 

Committee
Meeting Held 4 1 2 1
Directors’ Attendance
Naresh Kumar Bansal 4 N.A. N.A. 1
Richi Bansal N.A. 1 N.A. 1
Bharat Bhushan Sahny 4 1 2 1
Charat Sharma  (upto 
04.09.2020)

2 - 1 N.A.

Anju Gupta 4 1 2 1
Jai Prakash Gupta  (w.e.f. 
04.09.2020)

2 1 1 N.A.

7.	O ther Committees

a)	 Finance Committee

	T he Board of Directors of the Company constituted Finance committee for delegating power of the Board 
of the Company in respect of matters relating to banking/finance operations. Our Finance committee (‘the 
committee’) comprised two Directors as on March 31, 2021:

Naresh Kumar Bansal Executive Director

Richi Bansal Executive Director

	 The Finance Committee shall oversee all matters pertaining to finance and banking operations. The terms of 
reference of the Finance Committee include the following:

•	 Forecast monthly, quarterly and annual results;

•	 Approve or reject budgets;

•	 Evaluate and decide on investments;

•	 Allocate resources and manage cash flows; 

•	 Consult board members about funding options; and

•	 Recommend cost-reducing solutions.

8.	 Details of Remuneration of Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31st March 2021

(`  in Lakhs)

Name of the Director Salary Bonus Perquisites Contribution to PF Pension Total
Naresh Kumar Bansal 45.61 - 0.40 - - 46.01
Richi Bansal 39.91 - 0.40 - - 40.31
Surender Kumar Sharma 3.20 - - 0.17 - 3.37
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	 Details of Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors 
for the financial year ended 31st March 2021:

(` in Lakhs)

Name of the Director Sitting Fees Total
Bharat Bhushan Sahny 0.40 0.40
Charat Sharma (upto 
04.09.2020)

0.20 0.20

Anju Gupta 0.35 0.35
Jai Prakash Gupta (w.e.f. 
04.09.2020)

0.20 0.20

9.	 FRAMEWORK FOR MONITORING SUBSIDIARY 
COMPANIES

	 Lepakshi Tubes Private Limited, a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Rama Steel Tubes Limited is material 
subsidiary of Rama Steel Tubes Limited. The provisions 
of Regulation 24(1) of the Listing Regulations, 
appointment of one of the Independent Directors of 
the Company on the Board of material subsidiaries are 
not applicable to Lepakshi Tubes Private Limited.

	T he Company is in compliance with Regulation 24A 
of the Listing Regulations. The Company’s unlisted 
material subsidiary Lepakshi Tubes Private Limited 
undergo Secretarial Audit. Copy of Secretarial Audit 
Report of is available on the website of the Company. 

The Secretarial Audit report of Lepakshi Tubes Private 
Limited does not contain any qualification, reservation 
or adverse remark or disclaimer.

	T he minutes of the Board meetings of the unlisted 
subsidiary company(ies) are placed at the Board 
meeting of the Company. A statement of all significant 
transactions and arrangements entered into by the 
unlisted subsidiary companies, if any, are also placed 
at the Board meeting of the Company.

	T he Company monitors performance of subsidiary 
companies, inter alia, by the following means:

•	 Financial statements, in particular investments 
made by subsidiary companies, are reviewed 
quarterly by the Company’s Audit Committee.

•	 Minutes of Board meetings of subsidiary companies 
are placed before the Company’s Board regularly.

•	 A statement containing all significant transactions 
and arrangements entered into by subsidiary 
companies is placed before the Company’s Board.

•	 Presentations are made to the Company’s Board on 
business performance by the senior management 
on major subsidiaries of the Company.

	T he Company has formulated a policy for determining material subsidiary as required under Regulation 16 of the 
listing Regulations and the same is disclosed on the Company’s Website.

10.	 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

	 Annual General Meeting

	 Details of last three Annual General Meetings and summary of Special Resolutions passed therein as under:

Financial year 
ended

Date and Time Venue Special Resolution Passed

March 31, 2018 September 29, 2018
11.30 a.m.

Aura Grand Residency, 439, Jagriti 
Enclave, Near Karkardooma Metro 
Station, Delhi-110092

None

March 31, 2019 September 30, 2019
11.30 a.m.

JP Hotel & Resorts, 6B, Patparganj, 
I.P. Extension, NH-24, Behind CNG 
Petrol Pump, Delhi- 110 092

•	 Ratification of continuation of 
Sh. Bharat Bhushan Sahny (DIN: 
00014334) as Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the 
Company

•	 Re-Appointment of Sh. Bharat 
Bhushan Sahny (DIN: 00014334) 
as Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company
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Financial year 
ended

Date and Time Venue Special Resolution Passed

March 31, 2020 November 20, 2020
12.30 p.m.

Through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) / Other Audio Visual  Means 
(“OAVM”)

•	 Re-appointment of Mr. Naresh 
Kumar Bansal as a Managing 
Director of the Company

•	 Ratification of approval of 
remuneration to Mr. Naresh 
Kumar Bansal (DIN: 00119213), 
Managing Director in terms 
of regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI 
Amended Listing Regulations

•	 Ratification of approval of 
remuneration to Mr. Richi Bansal 
(DIN: 00119206), Executive 
Director in terms of regulation 
17(6)(e) of SEBI Amended Listing 
Regulations 

	 Extra-ordinary General Meeting

	 No Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the members of 
the RAMA was held during the year 2020-21.

	 POSTAL BALLOT

	N o resolution was passed through postal ballot during 
last 3 financial years ended on March 31, 2019, March 
31, 2020 and March 31, 2021.

11.	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

	T imely disclosure of consistent, comparable, relevant 
and reliable information on corporate financial 
performance is at the core of good governance 
towards this end:

a.	 Quarterly/Half Yearly/Nine Monthly/ Annual 
Results:

	 The Quarterly, Half Yearly, Nine Monthly and 
Annual Results of the Company are intimated to 
the Stock Exchanges immediately after they are 
approved by the Board.

b.	 Publication of Quarterly/ Half Yearly/Nine 
Monthly/ Annual Results:

	T he quarterly/half yearly/nine monthly/annual 
financial results are normally published in Financial 
Express (English Newspaper) and Jansatta (Hindi 
Newspaper) etc. and are promptly furnished to the 
Stock Exchanges.

c.	 Website:

	T he results are displayed on the Company’s 

website “www.ramasteel.com”. The Company’s 
website (www.ramasteel.com) contains a separate 
dedicated section “Investor Relations”. 

d.	 News releases, presentations:

	 Official news releases and official media releases 
are sent to Stock Exchanges and are also available 
on the website of the Company.

e.	A nnual Report:

	T he Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited 
Financial Statement, Audited Consolidated 
Financial Statement, Board’s Report, Auditors’ 
Report and other important information is 
circulated to the members and others entitled 
thereto. The Management Discussion and Analysis 
Report forms part of the Annual Report. The 
Annual Report is also available on the website of 
the Company.

f.	 NSE Electronic Application Processing System 
(NEAPS):

	NE APS is a web-based application designed by NSE 
for corporates. All periodical and other compliance 
filings are filed electronically on NEAPS.

g.	 BSE Listing Centre (Listing Centre):

	 BSE’s Listing Centre is a web-based application 
designed for corporates. All periodical and other 
compliance filings are filed electronically on the 
Listing Centre.
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12.	 GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

i. Annual General Meeting
Date :

As mentioned in the Notice of the 47th AGMTime :
Venue :

ii. Financial Calendar : 1st April to 31st March every year
iii. Date of book closure / record date : As mentioned in the Notice of the 47th AGM
iv. Dividend Payment Date : During the year 2020-21, dividend was not declared.
v. Listing on stock exchanges : National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)– Exchange Plaza, 

Bandra – Kurla Complex, Bandra(E), Mumbai – 400 051

BSE Limited – Floor 25, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai – 400 001

Listing fees as applicable have 
been paid.

: Annual Listing fees for the financial year 2020-21 have been duly 
paid to all the above Stock Exchange

vi. Stock Code(EQUITY SHARES)
ISIN

: NSE Limited – RAMASTEEL
BSE Limited – 539309
INE230R01027

vii. Market Price Data : Refer Table – I
viii. Registered office : B-5, 3rd Floor, Main Road, Ghazipur, New Delhi – 110096 
ix. Registrar & transfer agent:

Name & address Bigshare Services Private Limited
302, Kushal Bazar
32-33, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019

Telephone : 011-42425004
Email : bssdelhi@bigshareonline.com

x. Share transfer system : 99.77% of the equity shares of the Company are in electronic form. 
Transfers of these shares are done through the depositories with no 
involvement of the Company. As regards transfer of shares held in 
physical form the transfer documents can be lodged with Bigshare 
Services Private Limited at the above mentioned addresses.

As per SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73 
dated April 20, 2018, the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the 
Company has sent letters to the Shareholders to record their KYC 
details. Shareholders are requested to update these details at the 
earliest.

xi. Distribution of Shareholding : Refer Table – II & Table – III
xii. Dematerialization of shares and 

liquidity
: Refer Table – IV

xiii. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/
Warrants or any other convertible 
instrument, conversion date and 
likely impact on equity

: None

xiv. Commodity price risk or foreign 
exchange risk and hedging 
activities

: Please refer to Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the 
same.

xv. Plant Locations : •	 B-21, Site No. 4, Industrial Estate, Sahibabad, Uttar Pradesh.
•	 B-5, Site No. 4, Industrial Estate, Sahibabad, Uttar Pradesh.
•	 151, Village Umbare, Taluka Khalapur, Khopoli, Pali Road, Dist. 

Raigad, Maharashtra.
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xvi. Credit Ratings : The Company has received following credit ratings from Brickwork 
Ratings India Private Limited:

On 17.08.2020

FUND BASED/LONG TERM BWR BBB- Stable
NON-FUND BASED / SHORT 
TERM

BWR A3)

xvii. Fees paid to the statutory auditor 
and all entities in the network 
firm/network entity of which the

: During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has paid 
total fees for various services including statutory audit, amounting 
to `2.21 lakh, including taxes to statutory auditor, namely M/s Alok 
Mittal & Associates, Chartered Accountants. Further, no fees other 
than above was paid by any of the subsidiaries or by the Company to 
any entity in the network firm/network entity of the statutory auditor 
is a part.

xviii. Details of utilization of funds 
raised through preferential 
allotment

: Not Applicable

TABLE – I

	 Market Price Data: The shares of the Company are listed at NSE and BSE. Monthly High and Low at both the Stock 
Exchanges for the year 2020-21 is given:

(Amount in `)

Month BSE NSE

High Low Volume 
(No. of Shares)

High Low Volume 
(No. of Shares)

Apr-20 27.2 19.75 8682 31.3 18.6 115360

May-20 25.85 22.5 828 29.8 23.5 67242

Jun-20 36.15 24.9 4300 35.9 26.5 225738

Jul-20 35.75 25.3 4222 36.25 25.65 135165

Aug – 20 43.3 26.65 22043 44.5 25.4 280485

Sep – 20 41.8 34.15 17034 43.45 34.25 229261

Oct – 20 45.4 39.45 4106 44.85 39.2 66486

Nov – 20 49.8 39.55 23199 49.9 39.3 153784

Dec – 20 50.5 41.3 31967 52 43.5 204724

Jan – 21 86.4 43.1 67334 84.9 45.5 760820

Feb – 21 87.1 68.5 22159 86.75 67.65 459320

Mar – 21 78.8 66.6 29317 77 66.25 416973
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TABLE – II

Chart A: Rama’s Share Performance versus Nifty: Chart B: Rama’s Share Performance versus BSE Sensex:

	 Distribution of Equity Shareholding as on March 31, 2021

Category (Shares) Number of 
Shareholders

% to Total 
Shareholders

No. of Shares % of Total Shares

1-500 2872 82.67 292475 1.74
501-1000 233 6.70 189182 1.13
1001-2000 117 3.37 176839 1.05
2001-3000 70 2.02 183856 1.09
3001-4000 17 0.49 63211 0.38
4001-5000 31 0.89 147015 0.88
5001-10000 64 1.84 466431 2.78
10001 and above 70 2.02 15274991 90.95
G. TOTAL 3474 100.00 16794000 100.00

TABLE – IV

	 DEMATERIALISATION OF EQUITY SHARES AS ON March 31, 2021

Mode of Holding No. of Shares Percentage (%)
NSDL 64,11,194 38.18
CDSL 1,03,43,805 61.59
Physical 39,001 0.23
TOTAL 1,67,94,000 100.00

13.	OT HER DISCLOSURES

a)	R elated Party transactions

	T he Company has formulated a Policy on 
materiality of Related Party Transactions and 
on dealing with Related Party Transactions, in 
accordance with relevant provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

	T he Policy is available on the website of the 
Company at http://ramasteel.com/cms/policy-and-
code-of-conduct

b)	 Disclosure of Non-Compliance: There has been no 
instance of non-compliance by the Company on 
any matter related to Capital Markets since the 
inception of the Company and hence no penalties 
have been imposed.

c)	 Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy: The 
Company has adopted a whistle blower policy and 
has established the necessary vigil mechanism for 
employees and directors to report concerns about 
unethical behaviour. No person has been denied 
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access to the chairman of the audit committee. The 
said policy has been also put up on the website of 
the Company at http://ramasteel.com/cms/policy-
and-code-of-conduct

d)	T he Company has complied with all the mandatory 
requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	 Regarding compliance with non-mandatory 
requirements, the following is the status: 

i.	 Shareholders’ Rights - Half-yearly declaration 
of financial performance of the Company are 
not currently sent to each of the household 
of shareholders but are published in terms 
of Regulation 47(3) of Listing regulations 
in newspapers and also sent to the Stock 
Exchange. Besides, all Quarterly/Half-yearly/
Annual financial results are published on the 
Company’s Website.

ii.	 Audit Qualification - The financial statements 
of the Company are unqualified.

iii.	 Separate post of Chairperson and Managing 
Director/Chief Executive Officer – Currently 
the post of Chairperson and Managing Director 
is held by Sh. Naresh Kumar Bansal.

iv.	 Reporting of Internal Auditor:  The internal 
auditor of the Company, directly reports to the 
audit committee on functional matters.

e)	 Web link for policy for determining ‘material’ 
subsidiaries: http://ramasteel.com/cms/policy-
and-code-of-conduct

f)	 Web link for policy on dealing with related party 
transactions: http://ramasteel.com/cms/policy-
and-code-of-conduct

g)	 Disclosure of commodity price risks and 
commodity hedging activities: The Company has 
not entered into any commodity hedging activities.

14.	T he Company complied with all the requirement of 
corporate governance report said out in the schedule 
V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

15.	T he corporate governance report shall also disclose 
the extent to which the discretionary requirements as 
specified in Part E of Schedule II have been adopted: 
Disclosed in 10(d) of this report. 

16.	T he disclosures of the compliance with corporate 
governance requirements specified in regulation 17 
to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of 
regulation 46 shall be made in the section on corporate 
governance of the annual report. – All requirements 
mentioned are complied.
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I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Management Personnel, 
affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for the financial year 2020-21                           .

Sd/- 
(Naresh Kumar Bansal)

Chairman & Managing Director
Place: New Delhi
Date: August 14, 2021

CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION 
To,
The Board of Directors
Rama Steel Tubes Limited

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statements of Rama Steel Tubes Limited for the year ended 
31st March, 2021 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

a)	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading;

b)	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which 
are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting

and we have evaluated the effectiveness of Company’s internal control systems pertaining to financial

reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls.

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

a)	 that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

b)	 that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and

c)	 that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

Sd/-	 Sd/-
Rajeev Kumar Agarwal	N aresh Kumar Bansal
Chief Financial Officer	 Chairman & Managing Director

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 14, 2021

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
To
The Members,
Rama Steel Tubes Limited
B-5, 3rd Floor, Main Road, Ghazipur,
New Delhi 110 096

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by RAMA STEEL TUBES LIMITED for the year 
ended 31st March, 2021, as stipulated in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination 
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of 
the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the 
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For ARUN KUMAR GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-
(ARUN KUMAR GUPTA)

FCS: 5551
CP: 5086

UDIN: F005551C000787178
Place: Delhi 					   
Date: 14.08.2021
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To
The Members,
Rama Steel Tubes Limited
B-5, 3rd Floor, Main Road, Ghazipur, 
New Delhi 110096

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Rama Steel 
Tubes Limited having CIN L27201DL1974PLC007114 and having registered office at B-5, 3rd Floor, Main Road, Ghazipur, 
New Delhi 110096 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of 
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me  by the 
Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 
the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2021 has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Director of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Reserve Bank of India 
or any such other Statutory Authority.

SR. NO. NAME OF DIRECTOR DIN DATE OF APPOINTMENT IN COMPANY

1. Mr. Bharat Bhushan Sahny 00014334 18/11/2014

2. Mr. Richi Bansal 00119206 01/05/2007

3. Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal 00119213 26/02/1974

4. Mr. Jai Prakash Gupta 02727514 04/09/2020

5. Mr. Surender Kumar Sharma 03594435 04/05/2016

6. Ms. Anju Gupta 06958607 25/01/2017

For ARUN KUMAR GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-
(ARUN KUMAR GUPTA)

FCS: 5551
CP: 5086

UDIN: F005551C000787145
Place: Delhi 					   
Date: 14.08.2021



Annual Report - 2020-21  |   72

Standalone
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To the Members of 
RAMA STEEL TUBES LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements 
of RAMA STEEL TUBES LIMITED (“the Company”), which 
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and 
the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and profits, changes 
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the standalone financial statements under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note 52 to the standalone 
financial statements which explains the uncertainties and 
the management’s assessment of the financial impact due 
to the lock-downs and other restrictions and conditions 
related to the COVID -19 pandemic situation. As per the 
management’s current assessment, there is no significant 
impact on carrying amounts of inventories, tangible assets, 
trade receivables, investments and other financial assets is 
expected, and management continue to monitor changes 
in future economic conditions. Our opinion is not modified 
in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current 
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined 
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to 
be communicated in our report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

   Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
1.	 Related Party Transactions’

The Company has entered into several transactions with 
related parties during the year 2020-21.We identified 
related party transactions as a key audit matter because 
of risks with respect to completeness of disclosures 
made in the standalone financial statements including 
recoverability thereof; compliance with statutory 
regulations governing relate party relationships such as 
the Companies Act,2013 and SEBI Regulations and the 
judgement involved in assessing whether transactions 
with related parties are undertaken at arms’ length. 

Refer Note 48 to the standalone financial statements.

Our audit procedures on related party transactions included:

•	 Assessed the key controls to identify and disclose related 
party relationships and transactions in accordance with 
the relevant accounting standard.

•	 Assessed compliances with the listing regulations and the 
regulations under Companies Act,2013 including checking 
of approvals/scrutiny as specified in Sections 177 and 188 
of the Companies Act,2013 with respect to the related 
party transactions. 

•	 Considered the adequacy and appropriateness of the 
disclosures in the standalone financial statements, 
including recoverability thereof, relating to the related 
party transactions.  
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•	 Inspected relevant ledgers, agreements and other 
information that may indicate the existence of related 
party relationships or transactions. Further, we also tested 
completeness of related parties with reference to the 
various registers maintained by the company statutorily.

•	 On a sample basis, tested Company’s assessment of 
related party transactions for arms’ length pricing.

2.	 Provisions and contingent liabilities in relation to tax 
positions

	 Company has received outstanding demands and 
show cause notices from various tax authorities.

	 The Management have made judgements relating to 
the likelihood of an obligation arising and whether 
there is a need to recognize a provision or disclose 
a contingent liability. We therefore focused on this 
area as a result of uncertainty and potential material 
impact.

	 Refer Note 41 to the standalone financial statements.

We have involved our tax experts to gain an understanding 
of the current status of the tax cases and monitored changes 
in the disputes by reading external opinions received by the 
company if any, where relevant to establish that the tax 
provisions had been appropriately adjusted to reflect the 
latest external developments.

For Legal, regulatory and tax matters our procedures 
included the following:

4	 Testing key controls surrounding litigation, regulatory 
and tax procedures.

4	 Performing substantive procedures on the underlying 
calculations supporting the provisions recorded.

4	 Where relevant, reading external legal opinions obtained 
by the management

4	 Discussing open matters with the litigation, regulator, 
general counsel and tax teams

4	 Assessing management’s conclusions through 
understanding precedents set in similar cases.

Based on the evidence obtained, while noting the inherent 
uncertainty with such legal, regulatory and tax matters, 
we determined the level of provisioning and disclosure of 
contingent liabilities as at March 31,2021 to be appropriate.

Information other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including 
Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility 
Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 
Information, but does not include the standalone financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we will not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information identified above when it becomes available 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information and if we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement therein, we will 
communicate the matter to those charged with governance 
and take necessary action as per applicable laws and 
regulations.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial 
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
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standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance, changes 
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the accounting Standards specified under section 
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the standalone financial statement 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

That Board of Directors’ are also responsible for overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements

(a)	O ur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these standalone financial statements.

(b)	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgement and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material 

misstatement of the standalone financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial 

controls relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 

on whether the Company has adequate financial 

controls system in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures 

made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 

material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the standalone 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the company to 

cease to continue as a going concern.
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•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

(c)	 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
standalone financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonable knowledgeable under of the 
standalone financial statements may be influences. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the standalone financial statements.

(d)	 We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

(e)	 We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

(f)	 From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report 

because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
be reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure A” a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that: 

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit. 

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss including other comprehensive income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the statement 
of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e)	O n the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none 
of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
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f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 
B”.

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration 
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its standalone 
financial statements.

ii.	T he Company is not required to make any 
provision, as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts.

iii.	T he Company is not required to transfer any 
amount to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund.

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 005717N

Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership Number: 071205

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021
UDIN: 21071205AAAARC2557
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i.	 (a)	 The company is maintaining proper records 
showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets.

     	 (b)	 The company has a program of verification to 
cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased 
manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, certain 
fixed assets have been physically verified by the 
management during the year and no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such physical 
verification.

	  (c)	T he title deeds of immovable properties, as 
disclosed in Note 3 & Note 4 on fixed assets to the 
standalone financial statements, are held in the 
name of the Company.

ii.	 According to the information available to us that 
physical verification of inventory has been conducted 
at reasonable intervals by the management and 
no material discrepancies is noticed on physical 
verification between the physical stocks and the book 
records.

iii.	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, 
the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) 
of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.	 In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the 

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of RAMA STEEL TUBES LIMITED of even date)

Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and 
investments made, and guarantees and security 
provided by it.

v.	T he Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 
76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the 
extent notified.

vi.	P ursuant to the rules made by the Central Government 
of India, the company is required to maintain cost 
records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act 
in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed 
the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the 
prescribed accounts and records have been made and 
maintained. We have not made a detailed examination 
of the records with a view to determine whether they 
are accurate or complete.

vii.	 (a)	 The Company has generally been regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including   
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and 
Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value 
Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

	 (b)	T here were no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, 
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, 
Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a 
period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable.

	 (c)	T he particulars of dues of Entry Tax as at March 31, 2021 which have not been deposited on account of dispute, 
are as follows:

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount in Lacs (₹) Period to which 
dues Related

Authority where the 
Dispute     is Pend-

ing for Decision

UP Tax on Entry of 
Goods into Local Ar-
eas Ordinance,2007

Constitutional Valid-
ity of the ordinance 
has been challenged

69.90 Nov 2008 to  
March 2011

Allahabad High 
Court
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viii.	 According to the records of the Company examined by 
us and the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or 
borrowings to any bank. Further, the company has not 
obtained any loan or borrowing from government or 
financial institution.

ix.	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations  given to us, the Company has not raised 
any moneys by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments).In our opinion 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, money raised by way of term loans have 
been applied by the company during the year for the 
purposes for which they were raised.

x.	 During the course of our examination of the books and 
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with 
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and explanations given 
to us, we have neither come across any instance of 
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by 
its officers or employees, noticed or reported during 
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case 
by the Management. The Company has not given any 
guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or 
financial institutions.

xi.	 The Company has paid/ provided for managerial 
remuneration during the year in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Act.

xii.	 As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi 
Rules,2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of 
Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

xiii.	T he Company has entered into transactions with 
related parties in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 177 and 1988 of the Act. The details of such 

related party transactions have been disclosed in the 
Standalone Financial Statements as required under 
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party 
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

xiv.	 During the year, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and 
hence reporting under clause 3 (xvi) of the order is not 
applicable to the company.

xv.	T he Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its Directors or persons connected 
with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company

xvi.	 The Company is not required to be registered under 
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 005717N

Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership Number: 071205

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021
UDIN: 21071205AAAARC2557
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of Rama Steel Tubes Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of RAMA STEEL TUBES LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively 
as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us are 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that:

(1)	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
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transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; 

(2)	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and 

(3)	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may be come in 
adequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 005717N

Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership Number: 071205

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021
UDIN: 21071205AAAARC2557
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET As at March 31, 2021
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Note  As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3  3,244.82  2,172.70 
Capital Work in Progress 3  183.83  678.97 
Investment Properties 4  384.13  363.51 
Intangible Assets 5  2.01  0.67 
Right of Use Assets 6  126.66  141.56 
Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures 7  1,405.76  1,265.33 
Financial assets
  (i) Investments 8  0.61  0.61 
  (ii) Other financial assets 9  2,349.68  2,261.10 
Deferred tax assets(net) 19  -    -   
Other non current assets 10 7.46    66.28 
Total non current assets  7704.96  6,950.74 
Current Assets
Inventories 11  5,718.29  2,745.01 
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 12(a)  3,485.52  5,505.21 
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12(b)  483.55  652.09 
  (iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above  -    -   
(iv) Other Financial Assets 12(c)  22.34  24.23 
Other current assets 13  1901.52  2,938.85 
Total current assets 11,611.22  11,865.39 
Total Assets  19,316.18  18,816.12 
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 14  839.70  839.70 
Other Equity 15  8,007.13  7,462.74 
Total equity  8,846.83  8,302.44 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
  (i) Borrowings 16  2,425.80  1,130.28 
  (ii) Other financial liabilities 17  25.13  94.00 
Provisions 18  52.42  51.61 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 19  195.82  198.46 
Total non-current liabilities  2,699.17  1,474.35 
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
  (i) Borrowings 20(a)  4,998.90  5,613.09 
  (ii) Trade Payables 20(b)  2,199.62  3,035.26 
  (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 20(c)  194.25  177.68 
Provisions 21  33.22  29.54 
Other Current Liabilities 22  264.88  174.77 
Current Tax Liability(net) 23  79.30  8.99 
Total current liabilities  7,770.18  9,039.33 
Total equity and liabilities  19,316.18  18,816.12 
As per our attached report of even date

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  005717N

 For and On Behalf of the Board 

Sd/-
Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 071205

Sd/-
 Naresh Kumar Bansal 

 (Managing Director) 
 DIN: 00119213

Sd/-
 Richi Bansal 

 (Director) 
 DIN: 00119206 

Place : Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

Sd/-
 Rajeev Kumar Agarwal 
 (Chief Financial Officer)

Sd/-
 Kapil Datta 

 (Company Secretary) 



Corporate  Overview Statuory Reports Financial Statements

Annual Report - 2020-21  |   83

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes  Year ended 

March 31, 2021 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2020 
Income
Revenue from operations 24  32,571.00  29,176.13 
Other income 25  312.47  472.34 
Total Income  32,883.47  29,648.47 
Expenses:
Cost of Materials consumed 26  27,603.48  23,357.11 
Purchase of stock-in-trade (traded goods) 27  3,666.48  3,861.38 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-Trade 27  (1,325.37)  (189.64)
Employee Benefit Expense 28  498.72  530.55 
Financial Costs 29  610.22  807.06 
Depreciation and Amortization 30  265.74  221.78 
Other Expenses 31  1,026.35  1,024.12 
Total expenses  32,345.62  29,612.36 
Profit before share of net profits of investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures

 537.86  36.11 

Share of net profits of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the 
equity method

 140.44  232.39 

Profit before tax  678.29  268.50 
Tax expense: 32
   (a) Current tax  145.31  18.99 
   (b) Deferred tax Charge  (4.84)  111.76 
   (c) Income Tax of earlier year  -    0.48 
Total Tax Expense  140.47  131.23 
Profit/(Loss) for the Year  537.82  137.28 
Other Comprehensive Income(OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss subsequently
 -Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans to Employees  8.76  (1.11)
 -Income Tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to  
   Profit & Loss

 (2.20)  0.27 

Items that will be reclassified to Profit & Loss subsequently
 -Exchange Difference on translation of Foreign operations  -    -   
 -Income Tax relating to Items that will be reclassified to Profit  
  & Loss

 -    -   

Total Other comprehensive Income for the Year  6.56  (0.84)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  544.38  136.44 
Earnings per share
Basic Earnings per share  3.24  0.81 
Diluted earnings per share  3.24  0.81 

As per our attached report of even date

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  005717N

 For and On Behalf of the Board 

Sd/-
Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 071205

Sd/-
 Naresh Kumar Bansal 

 (Managing Director) 
 DIN: 00119213

Sd/-
 Richi Bansal 

 (Director) 
 DIN: 00119206 

Place : Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

Sd/-
 Rajeev Kumar Agarwal 
 (Chief Financial Officer)

Sd/-
 Kapil Datta 

 (Company Secretary) 
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(` in Lakhs)

S 
No.

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2020

A. Cash Flow from operating activities

Net Profit before Tax  678.29  268.50 

Adjustments For

Depreciation and amortisation expense  265.74  221.78 

Finance Cost  610.22  807.06 

Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans to Employees routed 
through OCI

 8.76  (1.11)

Share of Profit in Joint Venture  (140.44)  (232.39)

Interest Income on FD with banks  (214.03)  (250.84)

Operating Profit before working capital changes  1,208.54  813.01 

Adjustment for Working Capital Changes

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories  (2,973.28)  2,038.44 

Decrease/(Increase) in Trade receivables  2,019.69  (622.62)

Decrease/(Increase) in other financial and non-financial assets  1,009.46  (1,886.11)

(Decrease )Increase in Trade Payables  (835.63)  1,159.69 

(Decrease)/Increase in other financial, non financial liabilities and 
provisions

 42.31  (15.31)

Cash generated from Operations  471.08  1,487.10 

Net Direct Taxes paid  (75.00)  (62.23)

Net Cash flow from operating activitites  396.08  1,424.87 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Sale / (Purchase) of Property,Plant and equipment  (Including Capital 
Work in Progress)

 (817.55)  (598.14)

Addition / Deletion to right of Use Assets  -    (141.56)

Addition to Investment Properties  (36.00)  -   

Addition to Intangible Assets  (1.50)  -   

Increase in Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures  (140.44)  (232.39)

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipments  5.27  -   

Share of Profit in Joint Venture  140.44  232.39 

Interest received  214.03  250.84 

Net cash flow from investing Activities  (635.75)  (488.86)

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
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(` in Lakhs)

S 
No.

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2020

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Borrowings (Secured)  681.33  (113.73)

Interest paid  (610.22)  (807.06)

Net Cash from financing Activities  71.12  (920.78)

NET INCREASE /(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT  (168.54)  15.22 

Opening balance of Cash & Cash equivalents(April 1, 2020/April 1, 
2019)

 652.09  636.87 

Closing balance of Cash & cash equivalent  483.54  652.09 

Cash and cash Equivalents comprises

Cash in Hand  3.45  5.46 

Balance with Scheduled Banks

-In current Accounts  268.62  60.68 

-In Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity of less than 3 
months

 211.48  585.95 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents  483.54  652.09 

Total 

Notes:	 			 

1	T he above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in IND AS 7-Statement of 
Cash flows notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013(The Act)[Companies(Indian Accounting Standrads 
) Rules,2015, as amended.				  

2	 Figures in Bracket indicate cash outflow

See accompanying notes to the Standalone financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  005717N

 For and On Behalf of the Board 

Sd/-
Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 071205

Sd/-
 Naresh Kumar Bansal 

 (Managing Director) 
 DIN: 00119213

Sd/-
 Richi Bansal 

 (Director) 
 DIN: 00119206 

Place : Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

Sd/-
 Rajeev Kumar Agarwal 
 (Chief Financial Officer)

Sd/-
 Kapil Datta 

 (Company Secretary) 
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
a. 	E quity share capital

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
As at March 31, 2019  839.70 
Equity shares issued during the Year  -   
As at March 31, 2020  839.70 
Equity shares issued during the year  -   
As at March 31, 2021  839.70 

b. 	O ther equity

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Money recd. 

against 
Share 

Warrants

Total
General 

Reserve#
Retained 
Earnings

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve^

Capital 
Reserve

Balance as at March 31, 2019  1,277.28  3,872.82  2,176.20  -    -    7,326.29 
Profit for the year  -    137.28  -    -    -    137.28 
Other comprehensive income for the year
-	 Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit 

Plans to Employees
 -    (0.84)  -    -    -    (0.84)

-	 Transfer from Retained Earnings to capital 
reserve on account of foreiture of Money 
Recd. Against share Warrants

 -    (225.70)  -    225.70  -    -   

-	 Exchange Difference on Foreign Currency 
Translation

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

-	 Transfer from Retained Earnings to General 
Reserves

 -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at March 31, 2020  1,277.28  3,783.56  2,176.20  225.70  -    7,462.74 
Profit for the year  -    537.82  -    -    -    537.82 
Other comprehensive income for the year
-Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans 
to Employees

 -    6.56  -    -    -    6.56 

-	 Transfer from Retained Earnings to capital 
reserve on account of foreiture of Money 
Recd. Against share Warrants

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

-	 Exchange Difference on Foreign Currency 
Translation

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

-	 Transfer from Retained Earnings to General 
Reserves

 -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at March 31, 2021  1,277.28  4,327.95  2,176.20  225.70  -    8,007.12 
#General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the General 
Reserve is created by the transfer from one component of equity to another and is not a item of other comprehensive income, 
items included in the General Reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss.
^Securties Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This is utilised in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes	
This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

As per our attached report of even date

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  005717N

 For and On Behalf of the Board 

Sd/-
Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 071205

Sd/-
 Naresh Kumar Bansal 

 (Managing Director) 
 DIN: 00119213

Sd/-
 Richi Bansal 

 (Director) 
 DIN: 00119206 

Place : Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

Sd/-
 Rajeev Kumar Agarwal 
 (Chief Financial Officer)

Sd/-
 Kapil Datta 

 (Company Secretary) 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
for the Year ended March 31, 2021

1.	C orporate Information

	 Rama Steel Tubes Limited (“ the Company’) is 
limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated 
on Febuary 26, 1974 under the provisions of the 
CompanyAct, 1956 having its registered office at B-5, 
3rd Floor, Main Road,Ghazipur, New Delhi-110096. The 
Company is a public company listed on the Bombay 
Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange 
(NSE). The Company is engaged in the business of 
manufacturing of Steel Pipes and related products.
The Company’s manufacturing facilities are located 
at Sahibabad, District Ghaziabad in Uttar Pradesh and 
Khopoli, District Raigarh in Maharasthra.

2.	 Basis of preparation of financial statements & Use 
of  estimates

2.1	 Basis of Preparation of financial Statements

	 These financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) under the historical cost convention on the 
accrual basis except for certain financial instruments 
which are measured at fair values, the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013  ( ‘the Act’) ( to the extent 
notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India ( SEBI). The Ind AS are 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 
3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. Accounting 
policies have been consistently applied except 
where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting 
standard requires a change in the accounting policy 
hitherto in use.

2.2	 Statement of compliance

	 The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind 
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

2.3 	 Use of estimates

	T he preparation of the financial statements in 
conformity with Ind AS requires the Management 
to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. 
These estimate, judgements and assumptions affect 
the application of accounting sheet date is classified 
as capital advances under other noncurrent assets 
and the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment not 
available for use before such date are disclosed 
under ‘Capital work-in-progress’policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities,the 
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. 
The application of accounting policies that require 
critical accounting estimates involving complex and 
subjective judgements  and the use of assumptions 
in these financial statements have been disclosed 
in Note 4. Accounting estimates could change from 
period to period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates 
are made as the Management becomes aware of the 
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. 
Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial 
statements in the period in which changes are made 
and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements,

3.	 Significant Accounting Policies

3.1	 Basis of Measurement

	 These standalone financial statements have been 
prepared under the historical cost except for the 
following assets and liabilities which have been 
measured at fair value: . The standalone financial 
statements are presented in Indian Rupees (`), 
which is the Company’s functional and presentation 
currency and all amounts are rounded to the nearest 
Lakh and two decimals thereof, except as stated 
otherwise.
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3.2	 Investment in Joint Venture

	 Interests in joint venture are accounted for using 
the equity method, after initially being recognised 
at cost in the standalone balance sheet. When the 
Group transacts with a joint venture , profits and 
losses from transactions with the joint venture are 
recognised in the balance sheet of Group only to the 
extent of interests in the joint venture that are not 
related to the Group.

	 The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to 
recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets 
of the joint venture since the acquision date. Goodwill 
relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying 
amount of the investment.

	 The Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss reflects 
the Group’s share of the results of operations of the 
joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees 
is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, 
when there has been a change recognised directly in 
the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises 
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the 
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains 
and losses resulting from transactions between the 
Group and the joint venture are eliminated to the 
extent of the interest in the associate/joint venture. 
The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of 
joint venture is shown on the face of the Standalone 
Statement of Profit and Loss.	

	 After application of the equity method, the Group 
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an 
impairment loss on its investment in its  joint venture. 
At each reporting date, the Group determines whether 
there is objective evidence that the investment in the 
joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, 
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as 
the difference between the recoverable amount of 
the joint venture and its carrying value, and then 
recognises the loss as ‘Share of Profit of joint venture’ 
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss.

	 Upon loss of significant influence over the joint 
venture, the Group measures and recognises any 

retained investment at its fair value. Any difference 
between the carrying amount of the joint venture 
upon loss of significant and the fair value of the 
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is 
recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit & 
Loss.

3.3	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

	P roperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost, 
net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of the 
purchase price (net of GST credits / duty credits 
wherever applicable) and all direct costs attributable 
to bringing the asset to its working condition for 
intended use and includes the borrowing costs 
for qualifying assets and the initial estimate of 
restoration cost if the recognition criteria is met. All 
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. 
Software and licences which are integral part of the 
PPE are capitalised along with respective PPE.  An 
item of property, plant & equipment is de-recognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or 
loss arising on the disposal or  etirement of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is determined as 
the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on the date of disposal 
or retirement. Capital work-in-progress includes cost 
of property, plant and equipment under installation 
/ under development as at the balance sheet date. 
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, 
plant and equipment outstanding at each balance 
of profit and loss if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. 
The carrying amount of the asset is increased to 
its revised recoverable amount, provided that this 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined (net of any accumulated 
amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss 
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal 
of impairment loss is recognised immediately in 
Statement of Profit and Loss.	
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3.4	D epreciation and Amortisation

i	 Depreciation on the property, plant and 

equipment is provided over the useful life of 

assets which is coincide with the life specified 

in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The 

range of useful lives of the Property,Plant and 

Equipment are as follows:

Property, Plant & 
Equipment 

Useful lives in 
Years

Plant & equipment  8- 15
Building 5- 60
Office equipment 5
Vehicles  8-10
Furniture & fixtures 10
Computers  3- 6

	T he depreciation has been provided based on 

the useful life of assets specified in ScheduleII 

to the Companies Act, 2013 on straight line 

method. The useful lives of assets as mentioned 

above is on their single shift basis, if an asset is 

used for any time during the year for double 

shift, the depreciation will increase by 50% 

for that period and in case of triple shift the 

depreciation shall be calculated on the basis of 

100%for that period. 

ii Property, plant and equipment (PPE) which 

are added/ disposed- of during the year, 

depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis from 

(up- to) the date on which the PPE is available 

for use (disposed-of).

iii Assets residual values and useful lives are 

reviewed at each financial year end considering 

the physical condition of the assets and 

benchmarking analysis or whenever there 

are indicators for review of residual value and 

useful life adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Freehold land is not depreciated. Lease hold 

land is amortised over the period of lease.

iv	 Free-hold land are not subject to amortisation.

3.5	 Impairment of non-financial assets

	P roperty, plant and equipment and other non-
financial assets are evaluated for recoverability 
whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be 
recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, 
the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair 
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is 
determined on an individual asset basis unless the 
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets. In such 
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for 
the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset 
belongs. If such assets are considered to be impaired, 
the impairment to be recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which 
the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated 
recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss 
is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the 
asset is increased to its revised recoverableamount, 
provided that this amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined 
(net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss 
is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

3.6	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand 
and at bank, deposits held at call with banks, other 
short-term highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to a known amount of cash and are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value 
and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term 
cash commitments. The cash flow statement has 
been prepared under the indirect method as set out 

in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS ) 7 statement 

of cash flows.
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3.7	I nventories

	 Inventories are carried in the balance sheet as 
follows:

	 Raw material, Stores & Spares At lower of cost or net 
realisable value, cost includes cost of purchases and 
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition.

	 Work-in Progress At lower of cost of material plus 
appropriate production overheads or net realisable 
value.

	 Finished Goods At lower of cost of materials plus 
production overheads and excise duty (wherever 
applicable) or net realisable value.

	 Purchased Goods in transit Valued at cost.

	T he cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, 
cost of conversion and other related costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their respective present 
location and condition. Net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business, less estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.8	 Employee benefits

	E xpenses and liabilities in respect of employee 
benefits are recorded in accordance with Ind-AS 19 – 
Employee Benefits.

a)	 Defined contribution plan 

(I)	P rovident Fund: Contribution to the provident 
fund with the government at pre-determined 
rates is a defined contribution scheme and is 
charged to the statement of Profit and Loss. 
There are no other obligations other than 
contribution to PF Schemes

(II)	N ational pension scheme : Contribution 
to national pension scheme with the at 
predetermined rates is a defined contribution 
scheme and is charged to the statement of 
Profit and Loss when employees have rendered 
services entitling them to such benefit

b) 	 Defined benefit plan Gratuity : The Company 
provides for gratuity, a defined benefit 
retirement plan (‘the Gratuity Plan’) covering 
eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides 
a lumpsum payment to vested employees 
at retirement, death, or termination of 
employment, of an amount based on the 
respective employee’s salary and the tenure 
of employment with the Company. Liabilities 
with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined 
by actuarial valuation, performed by an 
independent actuary, at each balance sheet 
date using the projected unit credit method. 
The company recognizes the net obligation of 
a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as 
an asset or liability. Gains and losses through 
re-measurements of the net defined benefit 
liability/ (asset) are recognised in other 
comprehensive income. The actual return of 
the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the 
yields computed by applying the discount rate 
used to measure the defined benefit obligations 
is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. 
The effect of any plan amendments are 
recognised in net profits in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

 c)	 Long term employee benefits: Provisions 
for other long term employee benefits-
compensated absences, a defined benefit 
scheme, is made on the basis of actuarial 
valuation at the end of each financial year and 
are charged to the statement of profit and loss. 
All actuarial gains or losses are recognised 
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

d)	 Other Short-term employee benefits: All 
employee benefits payable wholly within 
twelve months rendering services are classified 
as short term employee benefits. Benefits such 
as salaries, wages, short-term compensated 
absences, performance incentives etc.and the 
expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised 
during the period in which the employee renders 
related service.
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3.9	 Foreign currency reinstatement and translation

	I nitial Recognition:

	 On initial recognition, transactions in foreign 
currencies entered into by the Group are recorded 
in the Functional currency (i.e. Indian Rupees), by 
applying to the Foreign currency amount, the spot 
exchange rate between the Functional currency 
and the Foreign currency at the date of transation. 
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange 
transations settled during the year are recognised in 
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Measurement of Foreign currency Items at reporting date:

Foreign currency monetary items of the Group are 
translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary 
items that are measured at historical cost in a Foreign 
currecy, are translated using the exchange rate at the date 
of the translation. Non-monetary items that are measured 
at fair value in a foreign currency, are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are 
recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.10	L eases                                                                                                                                           

	 As a lessee     The Company’s lease asset classes 
primarily consist of leases for land. The Company 
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at 
inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease 
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the 
Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves 
the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has 
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of 
the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the 
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.  
At the date of commencement of the lease, the 
Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) 
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease 
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for 

leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-

term leases) and low value leases. For these short-

term and low value leases, the Company recognizes 

the lease payments as an operating expense on a 

straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

	 Certain lease arrangements includes the options to 

extend or terminate the lease before the end of the 

lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes 

these options when it is reasonably certain that they 

will be exercised.  The right-of-use assets are initially 

recognized at cost, which comprises the initial 

amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 

payments made at or prior to the commencement 

date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any 

lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at 

cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 

losses.

	 The lease liability is initially measured at amortized 

cost at the present value of the future lease 

payments. The lease payments are discounted using 

the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 

determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates 

in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease 

liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding 

adjustment to the related right of use asset if the 

Company changes its assessment if whether it will 

exercise an extension or a termination option.

	L ease liability and ROU asset have been separately 

presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 

have been classified as financing cash flows.

3.11	 Financial instruments

	I nitial recognition: The Company recognises financial 

assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a 

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

All financial assets and liabilities are recognised at 

fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that 

are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 

financial assets and financial liabilities thar are not 

at fair value through profit or loss, are added to or 

deducted from the fair value on initial recognition
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	 Subsequent measurement:

i	 Financial assets carried at amortised cost: A 
financial asset is subsequently measured at 
amortised cost if it is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold the asset in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

ii	 Financial assets carried at fair value through 
other comprehensive income: A financial asset 
is subsequently measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income if it is held within 
a business model whose objective is achieved 
by both collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

iii	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss: A financial asset which is not classified in 
any of (i) & (ii) above categories are subsequently 
fair valued through profit or loss.

v	 Financial Liabilities: Financial liabilities are 
subsequently carried at amortized cost using 
the effective interest method. For trade and 
other payables maturing within one year from 
the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts 
approximate fair value due to the short maturity 
of these instruments.

	D e-recognition

	 The company de-recognises of financial assets 
when the contractual rights to receive cash 
flows from the financial asset expire or transfer 
the financial asset and transfer qualifies for de-
recognition under IND AS 109. A financial liability 
is derecognised when the obligation under the 
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
The difference between the carrying amount of 

a financial liability that has been extinguished is 
recognised in profit or loss as other income.

	 Offsetting of financial instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
offset and the net amount is reported in the 
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable 
legal right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

3.12	 Derivative financial instruments

	 The Company uses derivative financial 
instruments, such as forward contracts to hedge 
its foreign currency exposure. The recognizing 
of the resulting gain or loss depends on whether 
the derivative is designated as a hedging 
instrument, and if so, on the nature of the item 
being hedged. Any gains or losses arising from 
changes in the fair value of derivatives are 
taken directly to profit or loss.

3.13	 Borrowing costs

a)	 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or production of a 
qualifying asset are capitalised as a part of the 
cost of such asset till such time the asset is 
ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying 
asset is an asset that necessarily requires a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale.

b)	 All other borrowing costs are recognised as 
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.14	T axation

i	 Income tax expense represents the sum of 
current tax and deferred tax. Tax is recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to 
the extent that it relates to items recognised 
directly in equity or other comprehensive 
income.

ii	 Current tax provision is computed on Income 



Corporate  Overview Statuory Reports Financial Statements

Annual Report - 2020-21  |   93

calculated after considering allowances 
and exemptions under the provisions of the 
applicable Income Tax Laws.

iii	P rovision for current income taxes and advance 
taxes paid are presented in the balance sheet 
after offsetting them on an assessment year 
basis.

iv	 Deferred tax is recognised on differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities in the Balance sheet and 
the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit and are accounted 
for using the Balance Sheet approach for all 
taxable temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are measured at the applicable tax rates and 
tax laws those are enacted or substantively 
enacted. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities are off set, and presented on net basis. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax is reviewed 
at each balance sheet date.The measurement 
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the 
tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the 
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle 
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3.15	 Revenue recognition and other income

a)	 Revenue from the sale of goods and services are 
measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, net of returns and 
allowances, trade discounts, rebates and 
incentives etc. Sales exclude Goods and Service 
Tax.

b)	 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised, 
when all the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have passed to the 
buyer, the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably and no significant uncertainty exists 
regarding the amount of Consideration that will 
be derived from the sales of goods.

c)	 Revenue from Services is recognised as per 
terms of the contract with customers based on 
stage of completion when the outcome of the 
transaction involving rendering of services can 
be estimated reliably.

d)	 Export benefits are accounted for in the year of 
exports based on eligibility and when there is 
no uncertainty in receiving the same and there 
is reasonable assurance that the Company will 
comply with the conditions attached to them.

e)	 Other Income Interest income is recognised 
on a time proportion basis taking into 
account the amount outstanding and the  rate 
applicable.	

3.16	 Government grants / Assistance	

	 Government grants/Assistance recognised 
where there is reasonable assurance that the 
same will be received and all elegibility criterias 
are met out If the grants/assistance are 
related to subvention of a particular expense, 
it is deducted form that expense in the year of 
recognition of government grant / Assistance.

3.17	D ividend Distribution

	 Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders 
is recognised as a liability in the period in which 
the dividends are approved by the shareholders. 
Any interim dividend paid is recognised on 
approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable 
and corresponding tax on dividend distribution 
is recognised directly in equity.

3.18	 Fair Value measurement

	 The Company measures financial instruments 
at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The 
fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the 
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asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
In the principal market for the asset or liability, 
or In the absence of a principal market, in the 
most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability The principal or the most advantageous 
market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset ora liability is 
measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset 
or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest. A fair value 
measurement of a non-financial asset takes 
into account a market participant’s ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset 
in its highest and best use or by selling it to 
another market participant that would use the 
asset in its highest and best use. The Company 
uses valuation techniques that are appropriate 
in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, 
maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable 
inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair 
value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based 
on the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active 
markets for identical assets and liabilities 
Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs 
which have a significant effect on the recorded fair 
value are observable either directly or indirectly 
Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have 
a significant effect on the recorded fair value 
that are not based on observable market data. 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in 
the financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the Company determines whether transfers 
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy 
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period. For the purpose of fair 

value disclosures, the Company has determined 
classes of assets & liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and the risks of the 
asset or liability and the level of the fair value 
hierarchy as explained above.

3.19	E arnings per share

	 Basic earnings per equity share is computed 
by dividing the net profit attributable to 
the equity holders of the company by 
the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted earnings per equity share is computed 
by dividing the net profit attributable to the 
equity holders of the company by the weighted 
average number of equity shares considered 
for deriving basic earnings per equity share 
and also the weighted average number of 
equity shares that could have been issued 
upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity 
shares.

3.20	 Provisions

a)	 Provisions Provisions (excluding employee 
benefits) are recognised when the Company 
has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. If the effect of the 
time value of money is material, provisions are 
discounted using equivalent period government 
securities interest rate. Unwinding of the 
discount is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

b)	C ontingencies Contingent liabilities are 
disclosed when there is a possible obligation 
arising from past events, the existence of 
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 



Corporate  Overview Statuory Reports Financial Statements

Annual Report - 2020-21  |   95

future events not wholly within the control 
of the Company or a present obligation that 
arises from past events where it is either not 
probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle or a reliable estimate of 
the amount cannot be made. Information on 
contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to 
the Financial Statements. Contingent assets are 
not recognised. However, when the realisation 
of income is virtually certain, then the related 
asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is 
recognised as an asset.

3.21	 Research and development costs

	 Research costs are expensed as incurred. 
Development expenditures on an individual 
project are recognised as an intangible asset 
when the Company can demonstrate:

a)	 The technical feasibility of completing the 
intangible asset so that the asset will be 
available for use or sale.                                                                                      

b)	 Its intention to complete and its ability and 
intention to use or sell the asset

c) 	 How the asset will generate future economic 
benefits

d)	T he availability of resources to complete the 
asset

e)	T he ability to measure reliably the expenditure 
during development

	 Following initial recognition of the development 
expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at 
cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation 
of the asset begins when development is 
complete and the asset is available for use. It 
is amortised over the period of expected future 
benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss unless such 
expenditure forms part of carrying value of 
another asset.			 

4.	C ritical accounting estimates, assumptions and 

judgements	

	 In the process of applying the Company’s accounting 

policies, management has made the following 

estimates, assumptions and judgements, which have 

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 

financial statement:

a)	P roperty, plant and equipment - Useful lives 

of assets The Company reviews the useful life 

of assets at the end of each reporting period. 

This reassessment may result in change in 

depreciation expenses in future periods.

b)	 Warranties The Company generally offers 

Warranties for its consumer products and 

the liability towards warranty related costs 

are recognized in the year of sales or service 

provided to the customers. Management 

ascertain and measure the liability for warranty 

claims based on historical experience and trend. 

The assumptions made in relation to current 

year are consistent of those are in prior years.

c)	 Provision and Contingencies A provision is 

recognised when the Company has a present 

obligation as a result of past events and it is 

probable that an outflow of resources will 

be required to settle the obligation in respect 

of which a reliable estimate can be made. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there 

is a possible obligation arising from past events, 

the existence of which will be confirmed only by 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events not wholly within the 

control of the Company or a present obligation 

that arises from past events where it is either 

not probable that an outflow of resources will 

be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the 

amount cannot be made. Contingent liabilities 

are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets 

are not recognised in the financial statements.



Annual Report - 2020-21  |   96

Note 3 : Property,Plant and Equipment
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Freehold 
Land

Build-
ings

Furni-
ture and 
Fixtures

Plant & 
Equip-

ment

Office 
Equip-

ment

Elect. 
Fitting & 
Installa-

tion

Com-
puters 
-Hard-

ware

Vehicle Capital 
Work -in 
Progress

Total

Year ended 31 March, 
2021

Gross Carrying Amount

Gross Carrying Cost as of 
April 1, 2020

 108.72  426.36  32.32  2,213.29  36.40  33.48  7.60  66.31  678.97 3,603.44 

Additions during the year  -    639.47  -    658.88  2.06  -    5.00  7.69  777.24 2,090.34 

Diposals during the year  -    -    -    15.55  -    -    -    0.83  1,272.38  1,288.76 

Closing Gross carrying 
amount

 108.72  1,065.83  32.32  2,856.61  38.46  33.48  12.59  73.17  183.83 4,405.02 

Accumulated 
Depreciation

As at April 1, 2020  -    69.41  3.30  614.76  15.00  15.70  5.66  27.94  -    751.78 

Depreciation charged 
during the year

 -    20.53  3.33  190.57  5.78  3.13  1.04  10.91  -    235.29 

Disposals during the year  -    -    -    10.28  -    -    -    0.41  -    10.70 

Closing accumulated 
depreciation

 -    89.93  6.62  795.06  20.79  18.83  6.70  38.44  -    976.37 

Net carrying value as on 
March 31, 2021

 108.72  975.90  25.70  2,061.55  17.67  14.66  5.89  34.74  183.83 3,428.65 

Note 4 : Investment Properties
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Freehold 
Land 

 Buildings  Plant and 
Equip-
ments 

 Furniture 
and Fix-

tures 

 Office 
Equip-
ments 

 Elect. Fit-
ting & In-
stallation 

 Total 

Year ended 31 March, 2021

Gross Carrying Amount

Gross Carrying Cost as of April 1, 2020  95.06  295.59  16.79  6.05  6.96  15.05  435.49 

Additions during the year  -    36.00  -    -    -    -    36.00 

Diposals during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Closing Gross carrying amount  95.06  331.59  16.79  6.05  6.96  15.05  471.49 

Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 1, 2020  -    49.39  4.56  3.64  5.11  9.29  71.98 

Depreciation charged during the year  -    10.96  1.27  0.91  -    2.24  15.38 

Disposals during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Closing accumulated depreciation  -    60.35  5.84  4.56  5.11  11.53  87.36 

Net carrying value as on March 31, 
2021

 95.06  271.24  10.95  1.49  1.85  3.52  384.13 
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Note 5 : Intangible Assets

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Computer 
Software 

 Total 

Year ended March 31, 2021

Gross Carrying Amount

Deemed Cost as of April 1, 2020  13.84  13.84 

Additions during the year  1.50  1.50 

Diposals during the year  -    -   

Closing Gross carrying amount  15.34  15.34 

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening  13.16  13.16 

Depreciation charge during the year  0.17  0.17 

Disposals during the year  -    -   

Closing accumulated depreciation  13.33  13.33 

Net carrying value as on March 31, 2021  2.01  2.01 

Note 6 : Right of Use Assets

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Land  Commercial 
Vehicles 

 Total 

Balance as at April 1, 2020  65.24  76.32  141.56 

Depreciation/Amortisation  1.59  13.31  14.90 

Net carrying value as on March 31, 2021  63.64  63.01  126.66 

Note 7 :  Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures	

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars                        As at                   
March 31, 2021 

                          Asat               
March 31, 2020 

a)	 Investment in Subsidiaries (Unquoted and valued at cost)

	 M/s Lepakshi Tubes Pvt. Ltd. 490.00 490.00

	 49,00,000 (as at 31st March 2020 : 49,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10/- 
each full paid up

	 M/s RST International Trading FZE, Duabi 90.20 90.20

	 500 ( as at 31 March 220 : 500) Equity Shares of AED 1000/- each fully 
paid up

b)	 Investment in Joint Venture

	 M/s Pir Panchal Construction Pvt. Ltd. Joint Venture  825.56  685.13 

 1,405.76  1,265.33 
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Details of Joint Ventures

Name of the Joint Venture  Principal Place 
of Business/ 

Principal Activity 

 Ownership Interest % as of
 As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
M/s Pir Panchal Construction Pvt. Ltd.-JV  India / Erection of 

Poles 
 25.00  25.00 

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:	

Particulars                        As at                   
March 31, 2021 

                          Asat               
March 31, 2020 

Joint Ventures  825.56  685.13 

Note 8 :  Investments	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Investment in Equity Instruments
-Others
 Quoted
60,500 (as at 31st March 2020: 60,500) Face value of Equity shares of `10/- 
each fully paid up of Uttam Value Steels Limited

 0.60  0.60 

25 (as at 31st March 2020: 25 ) Equity shares of `25/- each fully paid up of             
SVC-Cooperative Bank Limited

 0.01  0.01 

 Unquoted
2 (as at 31st March 2020: 2) Equity shares of `10 each fully paid up of                   
CIDCO Mumbai

 0.00  0.00 

Total  0.61  0.61 

Note 9 :  Other Financial Assets (Non-Current)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Security Deposits  83.37  82.11 
Loans to Subsidiaries  1,158.27  1,456.37 
Loans to Others  655.24  593.80 
Bank Deposits with maturity period more than 12 months*  452.80  128.83 
Total  2,349.68  2,261.10 

*Held as margin money or security against the borrowings, guarantees and other commitments.

Note 10 :  Other Non-Current Assets

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Unsecured,considered good:
Capital Advances  -    66.28 
Total  -    66.28 
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Note 11 : Inventories

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Raw Materials  2,989.53  1,334.55 
(Including  material in-transit ̀ 520.36 Lakhs/- (As at 31st March, 2020 : ̀  NIL/-)
Finished Goods  1,288.58  767.88 
Work-in-progress  1,392.97  572.53 
Scrap Material  21.45  37.22 
Stores, spares and consumable  25.76  32.84 
Total  5,718.29  2,745.01 

Note 12(a) : Trade Receivables

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Unsecured:
Considered Good  3,485.52  5,505.21 
Total  3,485.52  5,505.21 

Note 12(b) : Cash and Cash Equivalents

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Balances with banks
-Current Accounts  268.62  60.68 
-In Fixed deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months*  211.48  585.95 
Cash in Hand  3.45  5.46 
Total  483.55  652.09 

*Held as margin money or security against the borrowings, guarantees and other commitments.

Note 12(c) : Other financial assets (Current)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Interest accrued on loans,investments and deposits  22.34  24.23 
Total  22.34  24.23 

Note 13	: Other current assets

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Advances other than capital advances
 Advance to suppliers and others  165.80  1,860.54 
 Balance with Government Authorities  1,340.96  839.26 
 Prepaid Expenses  33.68  19.44 
 Other Receivables  368.54  219.61 
Total  1,908.98  2,938.85 
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Note 14 :  Share Capital:

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020
A. Share Capital

Authorized:
1,80,00,000 (as at 31st March 2020: 1,80,00,000 )  Equity Shares of `5/- 
each

 900.00  900.00 

25,00,000 (as at 31st March 2020: 25,00,000)  5% Non Cumulative 
Redeemable Preference shares of ` 10/- each

 250.00  250.00 

                                                            1,150.00  1,150.00 
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up:
1,67,94,000 ( as at 31st March 2020: 1,67,94,000 ) Equity Shares of `5/- 
each fully paid up 

 839.70  839.70 

Total  839.70  839.70 

B. 	R econciliation of Number of Shares

Equity Shares of `5/- Each fully paid up  As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
 Number of 

Shares 
(` in Lakhs)  Number of 

Shares 
(` in Lakhs)

Balance as at the beginning of the year 16,794,000  839.70 16,794,000  839.70 
Additions during the year:  -    -    -    -   
Deletion during the year :  -    -    -    -   
Balance as at the end of the year 16,794,000  839.70 16,794,000  839.70 

C.	D etail of shareholder holding more than 5% shares of the Company :					   
				  

Name of Shareholder  As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020
 Numbers of 
Shares held 

 % of holding  Numbers of 
Shares held 

 % of holding 

Naresh Kumar Bansal 6,389,848 38.05 6,185,073 36.83
Richi Bansal 1,469,287 8.75 1,469,289 8.75
Nikhil Naresh Bansal 1,355,998 8.07 1,356,000 8.07
Tarun Dhir-Arun Enterprises            
(a Partnership Firm)

 1,209,821 7.20  1,209,821 7.20

D.	 Right, preference and restrictions attached to shares Equity Shares

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 5/- per share. Each Shareholder is eligible 
for one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets 
of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion of their shareholding.

Note 15	: Other Equity

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Securities Premium Account  2,176.20  2,176.20 
General Reserve  1,277.28  1,277.28 
Retained Earnings  4,327.95  3,783.56 
Capital Reserve  225.70  225.70 
Total  8,007.13  7,462.74 

For movement during the year in Other Equity, refer “Statement of Changes in Equity
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Note 16	: Borrowings

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars                        As at                   
March 31, 2021 

                          Asat               
March 31, 2020 

Secured

Term Loans from banks#  2,418.74  1,248.02 

Less: Current Maturities transferred to Other financial liabilities  (194.25)  (177.68)

 2,224.49  1,070.34 

Unsecured Loans

Loan from Directors  139.81  -   

Loans and Advances from Related Parties  61.51  59.94 

 201.32  59.94 

Total  2,425.80  1,130.28 

# (1) Loan against property (LAP) is secured by way of mortgage of plot No 131, Sector-44, Gurgaon, Haryana & 

hypothecation of fixed assets of the Company and  extension of charge by way of hypothecation of current assets of the 

company. (2) Term loan for plant expansion is secured by way of hypothecation of plant and machinery purchased from 

proposed term loan and factory land and Building at Survey No.155,H.No. 4A, Village Umbare, Taluka Khalapur, District 

Raigad-410203, Maharasthra. (3) Vehicle loan is secured by way of hypothecation of vehicle.

-	 First Term loan against property (LAP) from bank outstanding amounting ̀ 402.97 Lakhs as at 31.03.2021 are payable 

in 110 monthly installments commencing from August 2014 to September 2023, carrying a floating interest rate 

linked with MCLR of bank (1 year MCLR : 8.35% plus 0.95 % p.a.) with periodical interest reset.

-	 Second topup term loan against property (LAP) from bank outstanding amounting ` 119.62 Lakhs as at 31.03.2021 

are payable in 121 monthly installments commencing from May 2017 to May 2027, carrying a floating interest rate 

linked with MCLR of bank (1 year MCLR: 8.35% plus 1.40 %  p.a.) with periodical interest reset.

-	 Third topup term loan against property (LAP) from bank outstanding amounting `214.95 Lakhs as at 31.03.2021 are 

payable in 120 monthly installments commencing from Nov 2018 to Oct 2028, carrying a floating interest rate linked 

with MCLR of bank  (1 year MCLR: 7.40% plus 0.95 % p.a.) with periodical interest reset.

-	 Term loan for plant expansion from bank outstanding amounting ` 531.96 Lakhs as at 31.03.2021 are payable in 

26 equal monthly installments of ` 20 Lakhs each commencing from July 2021 to September 2023 and last 1 

installment of ` 13 Lakhs with rate of interest 10% p.a. at year end. 				  

-	 First Vehicle term loan from bank outstanding amounting ` 15.80 Lakhs as at 31.03.2021 are payable in 60 monthly 

installments commencing from March 2017 to Feb 2022 with rate of interest 9.75% p.a. at year end. 

-	 Second Vehicle term loan from bank outstanding amounting `9.64 Lakhs as at 31.03.2021 are payable in 60 monthly 

installments commencing from October 2019 to Sept 2024 with rate of interest 9.05%  p.a

Note:  Installments falling due in respect of all the above loans upto 31st March, 2021 have been grouped under “” Current 

Maturities of long term debt’’”. (Refer Note 20 (c).



Annual Report - 2020-21  |   102

Note 17	: Other Financial Liabilities (Non Current)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Security Deposits  25.13  94.00 
Total  25.13  94.00 

Note 18	: Provisions (Non Current)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 

Gratuity  45.67  46.43 

Compensated Absences  6.76  5.19 

Total  52.42  51.61 

Note 19	: Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities(Net)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 

Deferred Tax Assets

Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences  21.56  20.43 

 21.56  20.43 

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation  217.38  218.88 

 217.38  218.88 
Deferred Tax Assets(Net)  -   -
Deferred Tax Liabilities(Net)  195.82  198.46 

Note 20(a) : Borrowings (Current)

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars                        As at                   
March 31, 2021 

                          Asat               
March 31, 2020 

Secured

Loans Repayable on demand from Banks*  4,998.90  5,613.09 

Total  4,998.90  5,613.09 

* Working Capital Facilities from Banks are secured by way of hypothecation of Company’s current assets (present and 
future) including interalia stock of raw materials, stores, spares, stock in process, finished goods etc. lying in the factory, 
shop, godowns, elsewhere and including goods in transit , book debts, bills receivable and first charge by way of collateral 
in respect of fixed assets of the company and further guaranteed by Sh. Naresh Kumar Bansal, Director and Sh. Richi 
Bansal, Director of the Company.
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Note 20(b) : Trade payables

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 

Total outstanding dues to Micro,Small and medium Enerprises                 
(Refer Note No-45)

 49.60  -   

Total outstanding dues to other than Micro,Small and medium Enerprises  2,150.03  3,035.26 
Total  2,199.62  3,035.26 

Note 20(c) : Other financial liabilities (Current)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 

Current Maturities of term loans transferred from long term borrowings  194.25  177.68 

Total  194.25  177.68 

Note 21	: Provisions (Current)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 

Gratuity  29.09  26.58 

Compensated Absences  4.13  2.96 

Total  33.22  29.54 

Note 22 : Other Current Liabilities

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 

Advance from Customers and Others  152.47  82.30 

Statutory Levies  15.79  11.52 

Employee Benefits Payable  30.57  40.26 

Expenses Payable  66.05  40.70 

Total  264.88  174.77 

Note 23 : Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 

Provision for Taxation  164.30  18.99 

Less: Advance Tax  (85.00)  (10.00)

Total  79.30  8.99 
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Note 24 : Revenue from Operations	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars        Year Ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year Ended

March 31, 2020 

Sale of Products

Finished Goods

 Within India  22,932.60  20,248.71 

 Outside India  5,645.78  4,700.41 

Traded Goods  3,715.64  3,917.37 

Total Gross Sales  32,294.02  28,866.51 

Other Operating Revenue

Scrap Sale  200.19  281.25 

Job Work Income  8.64  0.60 

Export Incentives  68.15  27.77 

Total  276.98  309.63 

Total Revenue from Operations  32,571.00  29,176.13 

Note 25 : Other Income		

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars        Year Ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year Ended

March 31, 2020 

Interest Income from financial assets measured at amortised cost

     - on fixed deposits with bank  214.03  250.84 

Liabilities no longer required written back  1.73  0.60 

Net Gain on disposal of property,plant and equipment and investment 
property

 (0.17)  -   

Foreign Exchange Gain(net)  7.03  38.30 

Rental Income  89.85  180.50 

Miscellaneous Income  -    2.10 

Total  312.47  472.34 

Note 26 : Cost of Materials Consumed		

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars        Year Ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year Ended

March 31, 2020 

Raw Materials

Opening Stock  1,334.55  3,009.59 

Add: Purchase  32,404.59  25,543.45 

Less: Closing Stock  (2,469.18)  (1,334.55)

Less: Cost of Raw Material cleared as such  (3,666.48)  (3,861.38)

Total  27,603.48  23,357.11 
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Note 27	: Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars        Year Ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year Ended

March 31, 2020 

Opening Stock 

Finished Goods  767.88  626.88 

WIP  529.60  548.69 

Scrap Material  80.15  12.40 

Total (A)  1,377.63  1,187.97 

Closing Stock

Finished Goods  1,288.58  767.88 

WIP  1,392.97  572.53 

Scrap Material  21.45  37.22 

Total (B)  2,703.00  1,377.62 

Total (A-B)  (1,325.37)  (189.64)

Note 28 : Employee Benefit Expenses	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars        Year Ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year Ended

March 31, 2020 
Salaries, Wages, Bonus etc.  470.04  495.70 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds  10.12  15.09 
Staff Welfare Expenses  14.03  4.52 
Gratuity  1.76  13.09 
Compensated Absences  2.77  2.16 
Total  498.72  530.55 

Note 29 : Finance Cost		

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars        Year Ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year Ended

March 31, 2020 
Interest Expense  610.22  807.06 
Total  610.22  807.06 

Note 30 : Depreciation and amortisation		

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars        Year Ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year Ended

March 31, 2020 
Depreciation on property,plant and equipment  235.29  192.20 
Depreciation on investment property  15.38  14.53 
Amortisation of intangible assets  0.17  1.12 
Right of Use Assets Amortisation  14.90  13.94 
Total  265.74  221.78 
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Note 31	: Other Expenses		

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars        Year Ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year Ended

March 31, 2020 
Job Work Charges  14.68  7.89 
Power & Fuel Expenses  230.67  245.09 
Repair & Maintenance :-
   Building  11.67  23.47 
   Plant & Machinery  31.53  21.11 
Rent (Including Lease Rent)  34.66  24.04 
Printing & Stationery  2.10  5.81 
Postage & Telephone  5.43  18.25 
Vehicle Running Expenses  8.37  8.85 
Fees & Taxes  25.49  20.42 
Travelling Expenses:
   Directors  2.13  5.20 
   Others  41.47  25.45 
Legal & Professional Charges  33.69  27.44 
Donation  -    0.11 
Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer Note 40)  19.95  25.50 
Miscellaneous Expenses  20.33  15.61 
Auditor's Remuneration  2.00  2.00 
Insurance  6.73  6.31 
Key-man Insurance  19.39  15.69 
Office  Expenses  12.53  4.30 
Commission  18.29  43.12 
Freight Outward  215.11  164.17 
Business Promotion  18.92  27.49 
Bad Debt  9.03  -   
Other Selling Expenes  2.56  76.32 
Stores and Spares  239.62  210.48 
Total  1,026.35  1,024.12 

Note 32 : Tax Expense			 

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars        Year Ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year Ended

March 31, 2020 
Current Tax
Current Tax on profits for the year  145.31  18.99 
Adjustment for current tax of prior periods  -    0.48 
Total current tax expense  145.31  19.47 
Deferred Tax
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets  -    -   
(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities  (4.84)  111.76 
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit)  (4.84)  111.76 
Total Tax Expense  140.47  131.24 
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33.	 Financial Risk Management	 					   

	 Financial Risk Factors						    

	 The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of 
these financial liabilities is to manage finances for the Company ‘s operations. The Company has loan and other 
receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short terms deposits that arise directly from its operations. 
The Company’s activities expose  it to a variety of financial risks.						   

i)	M arket Risk						    

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise  three types of risks: currency rate risk, interest rate risk 
and other price risks such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financials instruments affected by market 
risk includes loans and borrowings, deposits, investments. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value 
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate  because of changes in foreign exchanges rates. 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate  
because of changes  in market interest rates. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities  held 
as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.						   

ii)	C redit Risk						    

	 Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss.

iii)	 Liquidity Risk

	L iquidity risk  is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral 
obligations without incurring unacceptable losses.

	 The Company ‘s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Market Risk						    

	 The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact of movementsin market variables on the carrying value of post 
employeement benefit obligations provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the 
relevant statement of Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. 
The Company’s acitivies expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in foreign currency 
exchange rates and interest rates. However, such effect is not material.

(a)	 Foreign exchange risk and sensitivity						    

	 The company transacts business primarly in Indian Rupee.The company is exposed to foreign exchange 
risk through its sales in international markets. The company has given unsecured loan to its wholly owned 
subsidiary company and has foreign currency receivables and is therefore, exposed  to foreign exchange risk. 
The company evaluates foreign currency exposure time to time and follow established risk management 
policies by taking foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge exposure of foreign currency risk and also 
some of the foreign currency exposure remains natually hedged.   The Following table analyses foreign 
currency risk from financial instruments as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 :-	
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(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Currency As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020
Financial Assets:-
Trade Receivables*  USD  1,554.21  2,661.64 
Unsecured Loan / Advance Receivables  USD  6.51  128.43 
Financial Liabilities:-
Trade Payables*  USD  831.62  2,188.65 
Net (Assets) / Liabilities  729.10  601.42 

* Trade Receivables and Trade Payables are related to Merchant Trade which is naturally hedged, as inward and 
outward remittances are conrolled by EEFC Account.						   

Particulars of forward contracts taken during the year are given below

Particulars Type No. of Contract US$ Equivalent 
(Lakhs)

(` in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2021 Sell  15.00  21.09  1,550.47 
Buy  -    -    -   

As at 31st March, 2020 Sell  23.00  24.78  1,869.34 
Buy  -    -    -   

	 Summary of exchange difference accounted in Statement of Profit & Loss

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars        Year Ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year Ended

March 31, 2020 
Net foreign exchange (gain)/ losses shown under Other Income  7.03  38.30 
Total  7.03  38.30 

(b)	I nterest rate risk and sensitivity						    

	 The Company does not have any borrowings on which the interest risk and Sensitivity arises.

	I nterest rate

	 The below table demonstrates the borrowings of fixed and floating rate of interest:-	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Total Borrowings Floating rate 

borrowings
Fixed rate 

borrowings
Weighted average 

interest rate
INR  7,618.95  7,392.20  75.61 9.00%
Total as at 31 March, 2021  7,618.95  7,392.20  75.61 9.00%
INR  6,921.05  6,817.55  92.15 9.60%
Total as at 31 March, 2020  6,921.05  6,817.55  92.15 9.60%

(c)	C ommodity price risk and sensitivity						    

	T he company  is exposed to the movement in price of key raw materials in domestic markets. The Company 
enters into contracts for procurement of material most of the transactions are short term fixed price conract.

	C redit Risk

	 The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables). Credit risk arises 
from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the 
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Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, 
current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk 
limits are set accordingly. The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets 
and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each reporting 
period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the company compares the risk of a default 
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It 
considers reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

	 Cash and Cash Equivalents, Deposit in Banks and other Financial instruments

	 The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market reputation and service 
standards to select the banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. Generally, the balances are 
maintained with the institutions with which the Company has also availed borrowings. The Company does not 
maintain significant cash and deposit balances other than those required for its day to day operations. For other 
financial assets the company monitors ratings, credit spreads and financial strengths of its counterparties. 
Based on its ongoing assessment of the counter party’s risk, the company adjust its exposures to various counter 
parties. Based on the assessment there is no impairment in other financial assets.

	L iquidity Risk

	 Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at 
a reasonable price.The Company’s finance department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement 
management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. 
Management monitors the Company’s net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected 
cash flows.

	 Maturity profile of financial liabilities

	 The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the 
reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments.	

(` in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2021 Less than 1 year Above 1 year Total
Non Current borrowings  -    2,425.80  2,425.80 
Current borrowings  4,998.90  -    4,998.90 
Trade payables  2,199.62  -    2,199.62 
Other financial liabilities  194.25  25.13  219.38 
Total  7,392.78  2,450.94  9,843.71 

(` in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2020 Less than 1 year Above 1 year Total
Non Current borrowings  -    1,130.28  1,130.28 
Current borrowings  5,613.09  -    5,613.09 
Trade payables  3,035.26  -    3,035.26 
Other financial liabilities  177.68  94.00  271.68 
Total  8,826.03  1,224.28  10,050.31 

	C apital Risk Management						    

	 For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. 
The primary objective of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximize shareholder value. The company manages 
its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic environment and the requirements 
of the financial covenants. In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst 
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other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to 
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches of the financial covenants of any interest 
bearing loans and borrowing for reported periods.						    

	 Further the company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt. as 
under :-

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       As at                   

March 31, 2021 
    As at

March 31, 2020 
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings  7,467.80  6,909.70 
Equity & Other Equity  8,846.83  8,302.44 
Capital and net debt  16,314.63  15,212.14 
Gearing ratio in % 45.77% 45.42%

34. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities						    

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the company’s financial instuments that 
are recognised in the financial statements.	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31,2021 March 31,2020

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Financial assets designated 
at amortised cost
Trade Receivables  3,485.52  3,485.52  5,505.21  5,505.21 
Cash & cash Equivalents  483.55  483.55  652.09  652.09 
Bank balances other than 
above

 -    -    -    -   

Other Financial assets  2,372.02  2,372.02  2,285.33  2,285.33 
Total  6,341.09  6,341.09  8,442.63  8,442.63 
Financial liabilities 
designated at amortised cost
Non Current Borrowings  2,425.80  2,425.80  1,130.28  1,130.28 
Current Borrowings  4,998.90  4,998.90  5,613.09  5,613.09 
Trade payables  2,199.62  2,199.62  3,035.26  3,035.26 
Other financial liabilities  219.38  219.38  271.68  271.68 
Total  9,843.71  9,843.71  10,050.31  10,050.31 

Fair Value Hierarchy						    

The company measures financial instuments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned above. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid  to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the assets or transfer the liability takes place either:					   

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valution techniques 
as follows:-						    

1.	L evel 1: Quoted prices/ NAV for Identical instuments in an active market.

2.	L evel 2: Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than level 1 inputs; and 
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3.	L evel 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If 
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then 
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level 
input that is significant  to the entire measurement. The company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Fair Value Technique

1)	 The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the 
same as their fair values due to their short term nature.						    

2)	 The fair value of security deposit given was calculated based on cash flows discounted using the current lending 
rate. They are classified as a level 2 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs 
inlcuding counterparty credit risk.

3)	 For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

	 The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and liabilities, grouped into 
level 1 to Level 2 as described below:-	

	 Assets/ Liabilities measured at fair value (Accounted)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets 
Security deposits' -

 
83.37 -

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets 
Security deposits' -  82.11 -

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings-fixed rate  -    75.61  -   
Other financial liabilities  -    219.38  -   

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings-fixed rate  -    92.15  -   
Other financial liabilities  -    271.68  -   

	 During the year ended 31st March 2021 and 31st March 2020, there were no transfers between level 1 and Level 2 fair value 
measurements and no transfer into and out of Level 3 vair value measurements. There is no transaction/ balance under Level 3.

	 Following table describes the valuation techniques used and key inputs for valaution under fair value hierarchy as of March 31, 
2021 and  March 31, 2020  respectively:-
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(a) Assets/ Liabilities  measured at Fair value	

Particulars Fair Value hierarchy Valution technique Inputs used
Security deposits Level 2 Discounted Cash 

Flow
Prevailing interest rates in market, Future 
payouts.

Particulars Fair Value 
hierarchy

Valution technique Inputs used

Borrowings fixed Level 2 Discounted Cash 
Flow

Prevailing interest rates in market, Future 
payouts.

Other Financial liabilities Level 2 Discounted Cash 
Flow

Prevailing interest rates in market, Future 
payouts.

35.	 Segment Reporting	 					   

	 The Company is in the business of manufacturing in a single segment of manufacturing of Steel and related products. 
Therefore, segment reported as per IND AS 108 is our operating segment.

36.	I ncome Tax expenses

(` in Lakhs)

S.No. Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

1 Current Tax  145.31  18.99 

2 Deferred Tax  (4.84)  111.76 

3 Previous year taxation adjustments  -    0.48 

4 MAT credit entilement  -    -   

Total  140.47  131.23 

Effective Tax Reconciliation

(` in Lakhs)

S.No. Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Net Loss/ Income before Taxes  678.29  342.13 

Enacted tax rates Computed Tax 25.168% 25.168%

Income (Expense)  170.71  86.11 

Increase /(Reduction) in taxes on account of :-    

1 Amount Not taxable/ exempt  (25.40)  (67.12)

2 Previous year taxation adjustments  -    0.48 

3 Deferred tax  (4.84)  111.76 

Total  140.47  131.23 

Effective Tax Rate 21% 38%
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37.	D eferred Tax			 

	 The analysis of deferred tax accounted for in the statementof Profit and Loss is as follows:-	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Book base and tax base of Fixed Assets  (1.50)  110.71 
(Disallowance )/ Allowance (net) Under Income Tax  (1.13)  0.78 
Ind-As adjustments  (2.20)  0.27 
Total  (4.84)  111.76 

	 Component of tax accounted  in OCI	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Deferred Tax Gain/ (Loss) on defined benefit  (2.20)  0.27 
Total  (2.20)  0.27 

38.	 Retirement Benefit Obligation	

I.	 Expenses recognised for Defined Contribution plan

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Company's Contribution to provident fund  7.35  10.57 
Company's Contribution to ESI  2.77  4.52 
Company's Contribution to superannuation fund  -    -   
Total  10.12  15.09 

	 Below tables sets forth the changes in the projected benefit obligation and plan assets and amounts recognised in 
Balance sheet as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, being the respective measurement dates:-

II.	 Movement in Defined benefit obligation

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Gratuity                                       

(unfunded)
 Leave 

encashment 
(unfunded) 

Present value of obligation-April 1, 2019'  65.01  7.38 
Current Service Cost  6.99  1.12 
Interest Cost  4.98  0.57 
Benefits paid  (5.09)  (1.39)
Remeasurements-actuarial loss/ (gain)  1.11  0.47 
Present value of obligation-March 31, 2020'  73.00  8.15 
Present value of obligation-April 1, 2020  73.00  8.15 
Current Service Cost  5.58  1.18 
Interest Cost  4.94  0.55 
Benefits paid  -    (0.04)
Remeasurements-actuarial loss/ (gain)  (8.76)  1.04 
Present value of obligation-March 31, 2021'  74.76  10.88 
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III.	M ovement in Plan Assets-Gratuity

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of year'  -    -   
Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Employer contributions  -    -   
Benefits paid  -    -   
Amount received on redemtion of plan assets  -    -   
Acquisitions/ Transfer in / Transfer out  -    -   
Acturial gain / (loss)  -    -   
Fair Value of plan assets at end of year  -    -   
Present value of obligation Net Funded status of plan  -    -   
Actual return on plan assets  -    -   

IV.	 Recognised in Profit & Loss 

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Gratuity  Compensated 

absence 
Current Service Cost  6.99  1.12 
Interest Cost  4.98  0.57 
Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Remeasurements-actuarial loss/ (gain)  1.11  0.47 
Past Service cost  -    -   
For the year ended March 31, 2020  13.08  2.16 
Current Service Cost  5.58  1.18 
Interest Cost  4.94  0.55 
Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Remeasurements-actuarial loss/ (gain)  (8.76)  1.04 
Past Service cost  -    -   
For the year ended March 31, 2021  1.76  2.77 
Actual return on plan assets  -    -   

V.	 Recognised in other comprehensive income

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars  Employee Benefit 

Eexpenses 
Remeasurement-Actuarial (loss)/gain  1.11 
For the year ended March 31, 2020  1.11 
Remeasurement-Actuarial (loss)/ gain  (8.76)
For the year ended March 31, 2021  (8.76)
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VI.	 The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Company’s defined benefit obligation are set  
out below :-

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Attrition rate 3% 3%
Discount rate 6.76 6.76
Expected rate of increase in Compensation levels 6.00 6.00
Expected rate of Return on plan Assets NA NA
Mortality rate "100% of IALM 

 (2012-14)"
"100% of IALM 

 (2012-14)"
Expected Average remaining working lives of employees (years) 16.85 19.12

	 The assumptions of future salary increase takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors such as supply and demand in employment  market.						    

VII.	 SensitivityAnalysis:-

	 For the year ended March 31, 2021	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Change in 

Assumption
Effect on Gratuity 

obligation
Effect on 

compensated 
absence obligation

Discount rate 0.50% -2.89 -0.35
-0.50% 3.15 0.38

Salary Growth rate 0.50% 3.16 0.38
-0.50% -2.93 -0.35

Withdrawal rate* - - -

	 * Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change due to these not calculated.

	 For the year ended March 31, 2020		

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Change in 

Assumption
Effect on Gratuity 

obligation
Effect on 

compensated 
absence obligation

Discount rate 0.50% -2.89 -0.35
-0.50% 3.15 0.38

Salary Growth  rate 0.50% 3.16 0.38
-0.50% -2.93 -0.35

Withdrawal rate - - -

	 The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. 
In practice , this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When  calculating 
the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant acturial assumptions the same method (projected unit 
credit method) has been applied as when calculating the defined  benefit obligation recognised within the Balance 
Sheet. 
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VIII.	History of experience adjustments is as follows:

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Gratuity  Compensated 

absence 
For the year ended March 31, 2021
Plan Liabilities-loss / (gain)  -    -   
Plan Assets-loss / (gain)  -    -   
For the year ended March 31, 2020
Plan Liabilities-loss / (gain)  -    -   
Plan Assets-loss / (gain)  -    -   

	 Estimate of expected benefits payments (In absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity

01 Apr 2021 to 31 Mar 2022 29.09
01 Apr 2022 to 31 Mar 2023 1.48
01 Apr 2023 to 31 Mar 2024 0.86
01 Apr 2024 to 31 Mar 2025 0.75
01 Apr 2025 to 31 Mar 2026 1.86
01 Apr 2026 to 31 Mar 2027 2.19
01 Apr 2027 Onwards 38.54

IX.	 Statement of Employee benefit provision

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Gratuity  74.76  73.01 
Compensated absences  10.89  8.15 
Other employee benefits  -    -   
Total  85.65  81.16 

X.	C urrent and non-current  provision for Gratuity and Leave Encashment		

	 For the year ended March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Gratuity  Compensated 

absence 
Current Provision  29.09  4.13 
Non Current Provision  45.67  6.76 
Total Provision  74.76  10.89 

	 For the year ended March 31, 2020

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Gratuity  Compensated 

absence 
Current Provision  26.58  2.96 
Non Current Provision  46.43  5.19 
Total Provision  73.01  8.15 
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XI.	 Employee benefits expenses

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Salary and Wages  470.04  495.70 
Costs-defined contribution plan  14.64  30.33 
Welfare expenses  14.03  4.52 
Total  498.71  530.54 

(Figures in no.)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Average no of people employed  85  97 

	 OCI presentation of defined benefit plan						    

a)	 Gratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plan, re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans is 
shown under OCI as  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss and also the income tax effect on the 
same.

b)	 Leave encashment cost is in the nature of short term employee benefits.

Presentation in Statement of Profit and Loss and Balance Sheet

	 Expenses for Service cost , net interest on net defined benefit liability (asset) is charged to Statement of Profit & 
Loss.

	 IND AS 19 do not require seggregation of provision in current and non-current, however net defined liability (Assets) 
is shown as current and non-current provision in balance sheet as per IND AS 1.

	 Actuarial liability for short terms benefits (leave encashment cost) is shown as current and non-current provision in 
balance sheet.

	 When there is surplus in defined plan, the company is required to measure the net defined benefit at the lower of 
the surplus in the defined benefit plan and the assets ceiling, determined using the discount rate specified i.e. market 
yield at the end of the reporting period on government bonds, this is applicable for domestic companies, foreign 
company can use corporate bonds rate.

39.	O ther Disclosures

a)	 Statutory Auditors Remuneration, Tax Auditors Remuneration, GST Auditors Remuneration,  Cost Auditors 
Remuneration and Secretarial Auditors Remuneration  :-

(` in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2021
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
I Statutory Auditors Fees

a) Audit Fees  2.00  2.00 
b) Certification /Others  -    -   
c) Out of Pocket Expenses  0.21  0.21 
Total  2.21  2.21 

II Tax Auditors Fees
a) Audit Fees  2.00  2.00 
Total  2.00  2.00 
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III GST Auditors Fees
a) Audit Fees  -    0.50 
Total  -    0.50 

IV Cost Auditors Fees
a) Audit Fees  0.35  0.35 
Total  0.35  0.35 

V Secretarial Auditors Fees
a) Audit Fees  0.40  0.40 
Total  0.40  0.40 

b)	 The company has not proposed any dividend to its shareholders during the year.

c)	 The Company has not given any loan or given any guarantee with respect to the parties covered under section 186 (4) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

d)	 Certain balances of trade receivables, loan and advances, trade payable and other liabilities are subject to confirmation and / or 
reconciliation.

40.	E xpenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility:

	 Details of expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and with 
schedule III are as below:

(` in Lakhs)

S.No. Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

 For the year 
ended March 31, 

2020

A Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the 
year

 19.95  25.50 

B Amount spent during the year  19.95  25.00 

 ( I ) Construction / Acquisition of Asset  NIL  NIL 

 ( II ) On purpose other than (i) above-

a) Rural Development  -    -   

b) Women Education  -    -   

c) Women Empowerment and Skill Development  19.95  25.00 

41.	C ontingent Liabilites not provided for in respect of:	

(` in Lakhs)

S.No. Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

 For the year 
ended March 31, 

2020

1) Disputed liability of Entry tax  69.90  69.90 

3) Guarantees issued by Company's Bankers on behalf of the 
Company

 2,537.29  2,089.42 

4) Letter of Credit Outstanding  2,323.42  2,364.48 
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42. 	 There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at March, 2021.

43. 	Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) is ` NIL 
(Previous Year ` NIL).

44.	 Exceptional item consists of  Loss (Net) of ̀  NIL (Previous year Loss (Net) of ̀  NIL on the provision of employees benefits pertaining 
to previous years.

45.	 Based on the intimation received from supplier regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006, the required disclosure is given below:-

(` in Lakhs)

S.No. Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 Year ended 
March 31, 2020

1 Principal Amount due outstanding  49.53  -   

2 Interest due on (1) above and unpaid  0.07  -   

3 Interest paid to the supplier  -    -   

4 Payments made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the year

 -    -   

5 Interest due and payable for the period of delay  -    -   

6 Interest accrued and remaining unpaid'  -    -   

7 Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in 
succeeding year

 -    -   

46. 	Pursuant to Ind AS-116-’Leases’, the following  information is disclosed:						    

	 Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2021:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Category of 
ROU Asset 

"Land"

Category of 
ROU Asset 

"Commercial 
Vehicles"

Total

Balance as at April 1, 2020  65.24  76.32  141.56 

Reclassified on adoption of Ind AS 116  -    -    -   

Additions  -    -    -   

Deletions  -    -    -   

Depreciation / Amortisation  1.59  13.31  14.90 

Balance as at March 31, 2021  63.65  63.01  126.66 

	 “The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement 
of Profit and Loss.

	 The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021:

	 Included in the Financial Statements as
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars      As at                   
March 31, 2021 

  As at
March 31, 2020 

Current lease liability  18.24  18.12 

Non-current lease liability  7.20  25.44 

Total  25.44  43.56 

	 The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021: 

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars      As at                   

March 31, 2021 
  As at

March 31, 2020 

Balance at the beginning  43.56  46.55 

Finance Cost accrued during the period  3.09  3.91 

Deletions  -    -   

Additions  13.00 

Payment of lease liabilities 21.21  19.90 

Total  25.44  43.56 

	 The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 on an 
undiscounted basis:

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars      As at                   

March 31, 2021 
  As at

March 31, 2020 

Less than one year  34.66  34.66 

One to Five Years  69.31  69.31 

More than Five  Years  -    -   

Total  103.97  103.97 

	 The  Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are 
sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall Rental expenses recorded for short- 
term leases was ₹34.66 Lakhs for the year ended March 31,2021 and ₹ 24.04 Lakhs for the year ended March 31,2020 
respectively						    

47.	 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 20 “Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance.

	 The Company’s exports qualify for various export benefits offered in the form of duty credit scrips under foreign 
trade policy framed by Department General of Foreign Trade India (DGFT). Income accounted towards such export 
incentives and duty drawback amounts to  ₹ 67.82 Lakh (previous year:  ₹ 43.12 Lakh)

48.	 Related Party Transactions

	 In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24, on related party disclosures, name of the related party, related 
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party relationship, transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where control exits and with whom 
transactions have taken place during reported periods, are:						    

	L ist of related parties	

1.	A .	 Key Management Personnel

S.No. Name Designation

1 Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal Managing Director

2 Mr. Richi Bansal Director & CEO

3 Mr. Surender Kumar  Sharma Director

4 Mr. Rajeev Kumar Agarwal Chief Financial Officer

5 Mr. Kapil Datta Company Secretary

	   B.	 Non-executive and Independent Directors

S.No. Name Designation
1 Mr.Bharat Bhushan Sahny Independent Director

2 Mr.Charat Sharma(Till Sept  4,2020) Independent Director

3 Mr.Jai Prakash Gupta ( W.e.f. Sept 4,2020) Independent Director

4 Ms.Anju Gupta Independent Director

2.	E ntities where key management personnel and their relatives exercise significant influence

S.No. Entities Principal activities
1 M/s Advance Hightech Agro Products Pvt. Ltd. Chemicals Manufacturer

2 M/s Ravi Developers Pvt. Ltd. Agriculture goods Producer

3 M/s Pir Panchal Construction Pvt. Ltd., Joint Venture Erection of Electric Poles

4 M/s RST International Trading FZE Trading of Steel Products

5 M/s RST Industries Limited Trading of Steel Products

6 M/s Lepakshi Tubes Pvt. Ltd. Manufacturer of Steel Pipes

7 M/s Virinder Engineering and Chemical Pvt. Ltd. Warehouse Renting

8 M/s Naresh Kumar & Sons HUF HUF

3.	R elatives of key management personnel where transactions have taken place

S.No. Name of Relatives Relationship
1 Mrs. Kumud Bansal Spouse of Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal

2 Mr.Nikhil Bansal Son of Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal
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4.	T he following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business

(` in Lakhs)
S.No. Name of transaction/ relationship Year ended 

March 31, 2021
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
I Payment of Rent

Mrs. Kumud Bansal  12.00  12.00 

Mr. Richi Bansal  -    1.30 

Mr. Nikhil Naresh Bansal  -    1.30 

II Payment of Interest

M/s Advance Hightech Agro Products Pvt. Ltd.  2.90  2.89 

III Receipt of Interest

M/s Lepakshi Tubes Pvt. Ltd  82.15  112.87 

M/s Pir Panchal Constuction Pvt. Ltd Joint Venture  60.18  58.55 

IV Sales of finished goods/ Traded goods

M/s RST International Trading FZE, Dubai  1,412.77  4.59 

M/S RST Industries Limited  1,677.17  3,488.96 

Pir Panchal Constuction Pvt. Ltd Joint Venture  -    116.06 

M/s Virinder Engineering and Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.  0.19  2.81 

V Advance given against  supply of material

M/s RST International Trading FZE, Dubai  -    286.88 

VI Advance received back given against  supply of material

M/s RST International Trading FZE, Dubai  -    207.96 

VII Unsecured Loans given

M/s Pir Panchal Constuction Pvt. Ltd Joint Venture  10.00  395.00 

M/s Advance Hightech Agro Products Pvt. Ltd.  1.10  -   

M/s Lepakshi Tubes Pvt. Ltd  1,265.87  2,196.00 

M/s RST International Trading FZE, Dubai  6.55  -   

VIII Unsecured Loans received back

M/s Pir Panchal Constuction Pvt. Ltd Joint Venture  10.00  85.00 

M/s Ravi Developers Pvt. Ltd.  0.50  -   

M/s Lepakshi Tubes Pvt. Ltd  1,442.05  1,515.00 

M/s RST International Trading FZE, Dubai  -    97.89 

IX Unsecured Loans taken

Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal  463.28  39.74 

Mr. Richi Bansal  16.25  7.44 
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(` in Lakhs)
S.No. Name of transaction/ relationship Year ended 

March 31, 2021
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
Mr. Nikhil Naresh Bansal  10.67  2.95 

X Unsecured Loans repaid

Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal  323.48  91.08 

M/s Advance Hightech Agro Products Pvt. Ltd.  -    9.00 

Mr. Richi Bansal  16.25  7.44 

Mr. Nikhil Naresh Bansal  10.67  2.95 

XI Payment of Compensation*

Mr. Nikhil Bansal  9.29  9.60 

XII Director sitting Fees

Mr. Bharat Bhushan Sahny  0.40  0.30 

Ms. Anju Gupta  0.35  0.35 

Mr. Charat Sharma  0.20  0.10 

Mr. Jai Prakash Gupta  0.20  -   

	C ompensation of Key Management Personnel of the Company

(` in Lakhs)
S.No. Name of transaction/ relationship Year ended 

March 31, 2021
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
Payment of Compensation*

I Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal  46.01  48.00 
II Mr. Richi Bansal  40.31  42.00 
III Mr. Surender Kumar Sharma  3.37  3.20 
IV Mr. Rajeev Kumar Agarwal  18.22  19.00 
V Mr. Kapil Datta  5.06  5.16 

*A.	 Short-term benefits comprises the expenses recorded under the head employee benefit expenses (eg. Salary and wages, 
contribution to provident and other funds and staff welfare expenses).

B.	 The liability for gratuity and compensated absences are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, amounts accrued 
pertaining to key managerial personnel are not included above.

C.	 The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance 
of individuals and market trends.

5.	 Balance at the end of the year
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(` in Lakhs)
Name of transaction/ relationship	      Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 

Receivable amount of unsecured loan/ Advance

M/s Pir Panchal Construction Pvt. Ltd., JV  612.87  558.55 

M/s Lepakshi Tubes Pvt. Ltd.  1,151.75  1,327.93 

M/s RST International Trading FZE, Dubai  6.51  128.43 

M/s Ravi Developers Pvt. Ltd.  -    0.50 

Receivable amount of goods

M/s RST International Trading FZE, Dubai  317.39  -   

M/S RST Industries Limited  497.81  2,646.00 

Payable amount of Loans & Interest

M/s Advance Hightech Agro Products Pvt. Ltd.  50.17  48.59 

Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal  139.81  -   

	 The transactions with the related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. This 

assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in 

which the related party operates. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.

49.	E arning Per Share (EPS)

(` in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2021
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
a. Net Profit / Loss after tax  as per Profit and Loss for basic EPS  544.38  136.44 

b. Add: Interest Expenses on potential equtiy shares (net of tax)  -    -   

c. Net Profit / Loss after tax  as per Profit and Loss for diluted EPS  544.38  136.44 

d. No of Equity Share Outstanding  at the end of the year  16,794,000  16,794,000 

e. Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares for basic EPS  16,794,000  16,794,000 

f. Weighted Average No. of Potential Equity Shares  -    -   

g. Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares for diluted EPS  16,794,000  16,794,000 

h. Basic EPS per Share (in `)  3.24  0.81 

i. Diluted EPS per Share (in `)  3.24  0.81 

j. Face Value Per share (in `)  5.00  5.00 

	T he Company does not have any potential equity shares and thus, weighted average number of equity shares for the 
computation of Basis EPS and Diluted EPS remains same.

50.	 Prior period income booked amounting to ₹ 73.63 Lakhs has been reversed and the same has been treated 
retrospectively by restating the financial statement of FY 2019-2020 for the comparision purpose according to Ind 
AS 8’ Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’.

51.	 The company has practice of getting balance confirmations from its Debtor, Creditor and other parties on annual 
basis. However, the confirmations of balances as on 31.03.2021 with respect to certain parties could not be received 
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As per our attached report of even date

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  005717N

 For and On Behalf of the Board 

Sd/-
Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 071205

Sd/-
 Naresh Kumar Bansal 

 (Managing Director) 
 DIN: 00119213

Sd/-
 Richi Bansal 

 (Director) 
 DIN: 00119206 

Place : Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

Sd/-
 Rajeev Kumar Agarwal 
 (Chief Financial Officer)

Sd/-
 Kapil Datta 

 (Company Secretary) 

due to current situation of pandemic COVID-19 thereby the Government of various states have imposed lockdown 
along with several restrictions, which is still going on, hence to that extent the balances have been taken as per book 
balances in the absence of balance confirmations. As and when the confirmations with respect to the balances are 
received, the reconciliation would be made and the adjustments, if any, on this account would be recorded in the 
books of account.

52.	T he Company has evaluated the impact of COVID pandemic on the operations of the Company, revenue, inventories, 
investments, property, plant & equipment, current borrowings and trade payables. The management has considered 
the possible effects, if any, on the carrying amounts of these assets and liabilties up to the date of approval of these 
results.  As per the management’s current assessment, no significant impact on carrying amounts of inventories, 
tangible assets, trade receivables, investments and other financial assets is expected, and management continue 
to monitor changes in future economic conditions.  The company values its inventory of finished goods at lower of 
cost and Net realisable value. The Net realisable value of all the inventories of the company is higher than their cost 
based on subsequent sales taken place till date and their present market prices. Hence there is no impairment risk 
in the inventory.

53.	 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary  to conform to current 
year’s classification.

54.	 Notes 1 to 52 are annexed to and form an integral part of financial statements.
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To the Members of 
RAMA STEEL TUBES LIMITED
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of 
RAMA STEEL TUBES LIMITED (“hereinafter referred to as 
“the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries and associates (the 
Holding Company ,its subsidiaries and associates together 
referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the balance 
sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of Profit 
and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
consolidated financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the Group as at March 31, 2021, and profits, changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note 52 to the consolidated 
financial statements which explains the uncertainties and 
the management’s assessment of the financial impact due 
to the lock-downs and other restrictions and conditions 
related to the COVID -19 pandemic situation. As per the 
management’s current assessment, there is no significant 
impact on carrying amounts of inventories, tangible assets, 
trade receivables, investments and other financial assets is 
expected, and management continue to monitor changes 
in future economic conditions. Our opinion is not modified 
in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and 
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined 
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to 
be communicated in our report.

   Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
1.	 Related Party Transactions

The Company has entered into several transactions with 
related parties during the year 2020-21.We identified 
related party transactions as a key audit matter because 
of risks with respect to completeness of disclosures 
made in the consolidated financial statements including 
recoverability thereof; compliance with statutory 
regulations governing relate party relationships such as 
the Companies Act,2013 and SEBI Regulations and the 
judgement involved in assessing whether transactions 
with related parties are undertaken at arms’ length. 

Refer Note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures on related party transactions included:
•	 Assessed the key controls to identify and disclose related 

party relationships and transactions in accordance with 
the relevant accounting standard.

•	 Assessed compliances with the listing regulations and the 
regulations under Companies Act,2013 including checking 
of approvals/scrutiny as specified in Sections 177 and 188 
of the Companies Act,2013 with respect to the related 
party transactions. 

•	 Considered the adequacy and appropriateness of the 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, 
including recoverability thereof, relating to the related 
party transactions.    
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•	 Inspected relevant ledgers, agreements and other 
information that may indicate the existence of related 
party relationships or transactions. Further, we also tested 
completeness of related parties with reference to the 
various registers maintained by the company statutorily.

•	 On a sample basis, tested Company’s assessment of 
related party transactions for arms’ length pricing.

2.	 Provisions and contingent liabilities in relation to tax 
positions

	 Company has received outstanding demands and show 
cause notices from various tax authorities.

	 The Management have made judgements relating to the 
likelihood of an obligation arising and whether there is 
a need to recognize a provision or disclose a contingent 
liability. We therefore focused on this area as a result of 
uncertainty and potential material impact.

	 Refer Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

We have involved our tax experts to gain an understanding 
of the current status of the tax cases and monitored changes 
in the disputes by reading external opinions received by the 
company if any, where relevant to establish that the tax 
provisions had been appropriately adjusted to reflect the 
latest external developments.

For Legal, regulatory and tax matters our procedures 
included the following:

4	 Testing key controls surrounding litigation, regulatory 
and tax procedures.

4	 Performing substantive procedures on the underlying 
calculations supporting the provisions recorded.

4	 Where relevant, reading external legal opinions obtained 
by the management

4	 Discussing open matters with the litigation, regulator, 
general counsel and tax teams

4	 Assessing management’s conclusions through 
understanding precedents set in similar cases.

Based on the evidence obtained, while noting the inherent 
uncertainty with such legal, regulatory and tax matters, 
we determined the level of provisioning and disclosure of 
contingent liabilities as at March 31,2021 to be appropriate.

Information other than the Financial Statements 
and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is 
responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including 
Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility 
Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 
Information, but does not include the consolidated 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
does not cover the other information and we will not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated 

financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information identified above when it becomes 
available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information. We are required to report the fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of 
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Directors are responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance, consolidated changes in 
equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act. 

The respective management and Board of Directors 
of the companies included in the group are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of each company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
implementation and maintenance of accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the consolidated financial statement that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, 
the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are responsible for assessing 
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. The respective Board of 
Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial 
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Holding Company has 
adequate financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of 
management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group to continue as 
a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
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attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the group to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
regarding the financial information of such 
entities or business activities within the Group to 
express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements, of which we are the independent 
auditors. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of 
financial information of such entities included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which 
we are the independent auditors. For the other 
entity included in the consolidated financial 
statements, which has been audited by other 
auditor, such other auditor remains responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance 
of the audit carried out by them. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our 
responsibilities in this regard are further 
described in para of the section titled ‘Other 
Matters’ in this audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us 
along with the consideration of audit report of the 
other auditor referred to in “Other Matters” paragraph 
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance 
of the Holding Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of 
which we are the independent auditors regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including 

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would be reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial results of M/s Pir Panchal 
Construction Private Limited, Joint Venture, Jammu 
whose total revenue of ̀ 1326.56 Lakhs and ̀ 4276.59 
Lakhs for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2021 
respectively and total profit after tax including OCI of 
`14.45 Lakhs and `561.74 Lakhs for the quarter and 
year ended March 31, 2021 respectively.  Our share in 
net profits of `3.62 Lakhs and `140.44 Lakhs for the 
quarter and year ended March 31, 2021 respectively 
is included in the standalone audited financial 
results. These financial results are unaudited and 
have been furnished to us by the management and 
our opinion and conclusion on the statement, in so 
far as it relates to the amounts included in respect to 
these joint venture is based solely on such unaudited 
financial statements. In our opinion and according to 
the information and explanations given to us by the 
Board of Directors, these financial statements are 
not material to the company.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on 
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our audit and on the consideration of report of the 
other auditor on separate financial statements of 
such subsidiary as was audited by other auditor, as 
noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we report, to 
the extent applicable, that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been 
kept so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books, returns and the reports of the other 
auditor.

c)	T he Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
other consolidated comprehensive income), 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
and the consolidated statement of Cash Flow 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the relevant books of account maintained for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

e)	O n the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on 31 March 2021 taken on record by 
the Board of Directors of the Holding Company 
and the reports of the statutory auditors of its 
subsidiary companies, none of the directors of 
the Group companies are disqualified as on 31 
March 2021 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Group and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure A”.

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with 
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

i.	T he Group has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in 
its consolidated financial statements.

ii.	T he Group is not required to make any 
provision, as required under the applicable 
law or accounting standards, for material 
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts.

iii.	T he Group is not required to transfer any 
amount to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund.

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 005717N

Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership Number: 071205

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021
UDIN: 21071205AAAAUJ9802
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of Rama Steel Tubes Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of Rama Steel Tubes Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the 
year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements of the Holding Company and such other 
companies which are its subsidiary companies, as of that 
date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the Holding Company and 
such other companies which are its subsidiary companies, 
have, in all material respects,  adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the respective companies considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective company’s management and board of 
directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the 
respective company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the 
audit evidence obtained by the auditor of the subsidiaries 
(which are incorporated in India) and associates, , in terms 
of their report referred to in other matters paragraph 
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below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting of the Holding 
company and its subsidiaries (which are incorporated in 
India) and associates .

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that:

(1)	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may be come in 
adequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 005717N

Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership Number: 071205

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021
UDIN: 21071205AAAAUJ9802
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET	 As at March 31, 2021
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Note  As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3  4,598.46  3,551.51 
Capital Work in Progress 3  432.87  678.97 
Investment Properties 4  384.13  363.51 
Intangible Assets 5  3.14  0.67 
Right of Use Assets 6  144.39  162.00 
Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures 7  825.56  685.13 
Financial assets
  (i) Investments 8  0.61  0.61 
  (ii) Other financial assets 9  1,212.68  823.07 
Deferred tax assets(net) 19  -    -   
Other non current assets 10  41.52  111.03 
Total non current assets  7,643.36  6,376.49 
Current Assets
Inventories 11  7,286.07  5,393.90 
Financial Assets
   (i) Trade Receivables 12(a)  5,225.58  7,214.99 
  (ii) Cash and Bank Balances 12(b)  2,207.68  1,311.65 
  (iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above  -    -   
  (iv) Other Financial Assets 12(c)  22.34  24.23 
Other current assets 13  2,370.81  3,431.67 
Total current assets  17,112.48  17,376.45 
Total Assets  24,755.84  23,752.94 
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 14  839.70  839.70 
Other Equity 15  9,154.75  7,943.12 
Total equity  9,994.45  8,782.82 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 16  2,997.71  1,815.37 
Other financial liabilities 17  25.13  94.00 

Provisions 18  55.76  53.92 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 19  38.53  87.00 
Total non-current liabilities  3,117.13  2,050.29 
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 20(a)  5,187.36  6,159.31 
Trade Payables 20(b)  5,029.72  5,926.29 
Other Financial Liabilities 20(c)  359.20  342.02 

Provisions 21  33.64  29.95 
Other Current Liabilities 22  812.13  453.27 
Current Tax Liability(net) 23  222.22  8.99 
Total current liabilities  11,644.26  12,919.82 
Total equity and liabilities
Total  24,755.84  23,752.94 

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated financial statements				  
As per our attached report of even date

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  005717N

 For and On Behalf of the Board 

Sd/-
Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 071205

Sd/-
 Naresh Kumar Bansal 

 (Managing Director) 
 DIN: 00119213

Sd/-
 Richi Bansal 

 (Director) 
 DIN: 00119206 

Place : Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

Sd/-
 Rajeev Kumar Agarwal 
 (Chief Financial Officer)

Sd/-
 Kapil Datta 

 (Company Secretary) 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes  Year ended 

March 31, 2021 
 Year ended 

March 31, 2020 
Income
Revenue from operations 24  47,043.45  35,280.90 
Other income 25  613.89  365.06 
Total Income  47,657.35  35,645.96 
Expenses:
Cost of Materials consumed 26  28,736.52  26,002.06 
Purchase of stock-in-trade (traded goods) 27  14,692.78  7,128.74 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-Trade 27  (309.97)  (730.93)
Employee Benefit Expense 28  722.02  696.61 
Financial Costs 29  769.78  963.14 
Depreciation and Amortization 30  346.17  290.09 
Other Expenses 31  1,369.84  1,317.32 
Total expenses  46,327.14  35,667.04 
Profit before share of net profits of investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures

 1,330.21  (21.08)

Share of net profits of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the 
equity method

 140.44  232.39 

Profit before tax  1,470.65  211.31 
Tax expense: 32
   (a) Current tax  287.93  18.99 
   (b) Deferred tax Charge  (55.09)  149.20 
   (c) Income Tax of earlier year  -    0.48 
Total Tax Expense  232.83  168.67 
Profit/(Loss) for the period  1,237.81  42.64 
Other Comprehensive Income(OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss  
subsequently

-  Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans to Employees  8.86  (1.32)
-  Income Tax relating to Items that will not be 
   reclassified to Profit & Loss"

 (2.23)  0.32 

Items that will be reclassified to Profit & Loss subsequently
-  Exchange Difference on translation of Foreign Currency  (32.80)  40.24 
-  Income Tax relating to Items that will not be 
   reclassified to Profit & Loss"

 -    -   

Total Other comprehensive Income for the Year  (26.17)  39.24 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  1,211.64  81.88 
Earnings per share
Basic Earnings per share  7.21  0.49 
Diluted earnings per share  7.21  0.49 

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated financial statements		

As per our attached report of even date

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  005717N

 For and On Behalf of the Board 

Sd/-
Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 071205

Sd/-
 Naresh Kumar Bansal 

 (Managing Director) 
 DIN: 00119213

Sd/-
 Richi Bansal 

 (Director) 
 DIN: 00119206 

Place : Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

Sd/-
 Rajeev Kumar Agarwal 
 (Chief Financial Officer)

Sd/-
 Kapil Datta 

 (Company Secretary) 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs)

S 
No.

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2020

A. Cash Flow from operating activities

Net Profit before Tax  1,470.65  211.31 

Adjustments For

Depreciation and amortisation expense  346.17  290.09 

Finance Cost  769.78  963.14 

Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans to Employees routed 
through OCI

 8.86  (1.32)

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation directly debited to Exchange Reserve  (32.80)  40.24 

Share of Profit in Joint Venture  (140.44)  (232.39)

Interest Income on FD with banks  (135.97)  (139.58)

Operating Profit before working capital changes  2,286.25  1,131.49 

Adjustment for Working Capital Changes

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories  (1,892.17)  (258.72)

Decrease/(Increase) in Trade receivables  1,989.41  (769.04)

Decrease/(Increase) in other financial and non-financial assets  747.03  (1,339.24)

(Decrease )Increase in Trade Payables  (896.58)  4,044.35 

(Decrease)/Increase in other financial, non financial liabilities and 
provisions

 312.69  233.65 

Cash generated from Operations  2,546.63  3,042.50 

Net Direct Taxes paid  (74.70)  (62.23)

Net Cash flow from operating activitites  2,471.93  2,980.27 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Sale / (Purchase) of Property,Plant and equipment  (Including Capital 
Work in Progress)

 (1,120.26)  (660.99)

Addition / Deletion to right of Use Assets  -    (162.00)

Addition to Investment Properties  (36.00)  -   

Addition to Intangible Assets  (1.50)  -   

Increase in Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures  (140.44)  (232.39)

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipments  5.27  -   

Share of Profit in Joint Venture  140.44  232.39 

Interest received  135.97  139.58 

Net cash flow from investing Activities  (1,016.52)  (683.40)
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(` in Lakhs)

S 
No.

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

 Year ended 
March 31, 2020

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Borrowings (Secured)  210.39  (698.19)

Interest paid  (769.78)  (963.14)

Net Cash from financing Activities  (559.38)  (1,661.32)

NET INCREASE /(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT  896.03  635.54 

Opening balance of Cash & Cash equivalents(April 1, 2020/April 1, 2019)  1,311.65  676.11 

Closing balance of Cash & cash equivalent  2,207.68  1,311.65 

Cash and cash Equivalents comprises

Cash in Hand  8.97  14.63 

Balance with Scheduled Banks

-In current Accounts  1,987.23  711.07 

-In Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity of less than 3 
months

 211.48  585.95 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents  2,207.68  1,311.65 

Total 

Notes:	 			 

1	T he above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in IND AS 7-Statement of 
Cash flows notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013(The Act)[Companies(Indian Accounting Standrads 
) Rules,2015, as amended.				  

2	 Figures in Bracket indicate cash outflow

See accompanying notes to the Standalone financial statements				  

As per our attached report of even date

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  005717N

 For and On Behalf of the Board 

Sd/-
Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 071205

Sd/-
 Naresh Kumar Bansal 

 (Managing Director) 
 DIN: 00119213

Sd/-
 Richi Bansal 

 (Director) 
 DIN: 00119206 

Place : Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

Sd/-
 Rajeev Kumar Agarwal 
 (Chief Financial Officer)

Sd/-
 Kapil Datta 

 (Company Secretary) 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY		
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
a. 	E quity share capital

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
As at March 31, 2019  839.70 
Equity shares issued during the Year  -   
As at March 31, 2020  839.70 
Equity shares issued during the year  -   
As at March 31, 2021  839.70 

b. 	O ther equity
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Reserves and Surplus  Foreign 
Currency 

Trans 
Reserve 

Total
General 

Reserve#
Retained 
Earnings

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve^

Capital 
Reserve

 Foreign 
Currency 

Trans 
Reserve 

Balance as at March 31, 2019  1,277.28  4,392.09  2,176.20  -    15.67  -    7,861.24 
Profit for the year  -    42.64  -    -    -    42.64 
Other comprehensive income for the year
-	 Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit 

Plans to Employees
 -    (1.00)  -    -    -    -    (1.00)

-	 Transfer from Retained Earnings to capital 
reserve on account of foreiture of Money 
Recd. Against share Warrants

 -    (225.70)  -    225.70  -    -    -   

-	 Exchange Difference on Foreign Currency 
Translation

 -    -    -    -    40.24  -    40.24 

-	 Transfer from Retained Earnings to 
General Reserves

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at March 31, 2020  1,277.28  4,208.04  2,176.20  225.70  55.90  -    7,943.12 
Profit for the year  -    1,237.81  -    -    -    1,237.81 
Other comprehensive income for the year
-	 Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit 

Plans to Employees
 -    6.63  -    -    -    -    6.63 

-	 Transfer from Retained Earnings to capital 
reserve on account of foreiture of Money 
Recd. Against share Warrants

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

-	 Exchange Difference on Foreign Currency 
Translation

 -    -    -    -    (32.80)  -    (32.80)

-	 Transfer from Retained Earnings to 
General Reserves

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at March 31, 2021  1,277.28  5,452.47  2,176.20  225.70  23.10  -    9,154.76 
#General Reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the General 
Reserve is created by the transfer from one component of equity to another and is not a item of other comprehensive income, 
items included in the General Reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss.
^Securties Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This is utilised in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013.
The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  005717N

 For and On Behalf of the Board 

Sd/-
Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 071205

Sd/-
 Naresh Kumar Bansal 

 (Managing Director) 
 DIN: 00119213

Sd/-
 Richi Bansal 

 (Director) 
 DIN: 00119206 

Place : Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

Sd/-
 Rajeev Kumar Agarwal 
 (Chief Financial Officer)

Sd/-
 Kapil Datta 

 (Company Secretary) 
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1. 	C orporate Information

	 Rama Steel Tubes Limited (“ the Company’) is 
limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated 
on Febuary 26, 1974 under the provisions of the 
CompanyAct, 1956 having its registered office at B-5, 
3rd Floor, Main Road, Ghazipur, New Delhi-110096. The 
Company is a public company listed on the Bombay 
Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange 
(NSE). The Company is engaged in the business 
of manufacturing of Steel Pipes and related allied 
products.The Company’s manufacturing facilities 
are located at Sahibabad, District Ghaziabad in Uttar 
Pradesh , Khopoli, District Raigarh in Maharasthra and 
District Hindupur in Andhra Pradesh-through wholly 
owned Subsidiary-Lepakshi Tubes Pvt.Ltd. Company 
have a wholly owned foreign subsidiary in  Dubai, 
UAE in the name of RST International Trading FZE 
which is engaged in trading of Building & Construction 
material Item and also one step down subsidiary in 
the name of RST Industries Limited in Lagos, Nigeria 
which is engaged in trading business of Steel related 
Products.

2.	 Basis of preparation of financial statements & Use of  
estimates

2.1	 Basis of Preparation of financial Statements

	 These financial statements are prepared in accordance 
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the 
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except 
for certain financial instruments which are measured 
at fair values, the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ( ‘the Act’)     ( to the extent notified) and 
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India ( SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016. Accounting policies have 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the Year ended March 31, 2021

been consistently applied except where a newly-
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a 
revision to an existing accounting standard requires 
a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

2.2	 Statement of compliance

	 The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind 
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

2.3	 Use of estimates

	 The preparation of the financial statements in 
conformity with Ind AS requires the Management 
to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. 
These estimate, judgements and assumptions affect 
the application of accounting sheet date is classified 
as capital advances under other noncurrent assets 
and the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment not 
available for use before such date are disclosed 
under ‘Capital work-in-progress’policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities,the 
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. 
The application of accounting policies that require 
critical accounting estimates involving complex and 
subjective judgements  and the use of assumptions 
in these financial statements have been disclosed 
in Note 4. Accounting estimates could change from 
period to period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates 
are made as the Management becomes aware of the 
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. 
Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial 
statements in the period in which changes are made 
and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements.
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3.	 Significant Accounting Policies

3.1	 Basis of Measurement

	 These consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared under the historical cost except for the 
following assets and liabilities which have been 
measured at fair value:  The consolidated financial 
statements are presented in Indian Rupees (`), 
which is the Company’s functional and presentation 
currency and all amounts are rounded to the nearest 
Lakh and two decimals thereof, except as stated 
otherwise.

3.2	 Basis of Consolidation

	 The consolidated financial statements comprise the 
financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries 
and associate. Control is achieved when the Group 
is exposed , or has rights, to variable returns from 
its involvement with the investee and has the ability 
to affect those returns through its power over the 
investee. Specifically, the Group Controls on investee 
if and only if the Group has :

 -	 Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that 
gave it the current ability to direct the relevant 
activities of the investee);

-	 Exposure, or rights, to variable  returns from its 
involvement with the investee, and

-	T he ability to use its power over the investee to 
affect its returns.

	 Generally, there is a presumption that a majority 
of voting rights result in control. To support this 
presumption and when the Group has less than 
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an 
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and 
circumstances in assessing whether it has power 
over an investee, including:-

a)	 The Contractural arrangement with the other 
vote holders of the investee;

b)	 The rights arising from other contractual 
arrangements;	

d)	 The size of the Group’s holding of voting 

rights relative to the size and dispersion of the 

holdings of the other voting rights holders.

	T he Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an 

investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there 

are changes to one or more of the three elements 

of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins 

when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary 

and ceases when the Group loses control of the 

subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of 

a subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year 

are included in the consolidated financial statements 

from the date the Group gains control until the date 

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

	 Consolidated financial statements are prepared using 

uniform accounting policies for like transactions and 

other events in similar circumstances. If a member of 

the Group uses accounting policies other than those 

adopted in the consolidated financial statements for 

like transactions and events in similar circumstances, 

appropriate adjustments are made to that member’s 

financial statements in preparing the consolidated 

financial statements to ensure conformity with the 

Group’s accounting policies.

	 An associate is an entity over which the Group has 

significant influence i.e. power to participate in 

the financial and operating policy decisions  of the 

investee but no control or joint control over those 

policies.

	 The financial statements of all entities used for the 

purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same 

reporting date as that of the parent company i.e. 

year ended 31 March.When the end of the reporting 

period of the parent is different from that of a 

subsidiary / associate, the subsidiary/ associate 

prepares for consolidation purposes, additional 

financial information as of the same date as the 

financial statements of the parent to enable the 

parent to consolidate the financial information of the 

subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.
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Subsidiary:

a)	 Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, 
income ,expenses and cash flows of the parent with 
those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income 
and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the 
amounts of the assets and liabilities recognixed in the 
consolidated financial statements at the acquisition 
date;

b)	 Offset (elimainate) the carrying amount of the 
parent’s  investment in each subsidiary and the 
parent’s portion of equity ot each subsidiary. Business 
combinations policy explains how to account for any 
related goodwill and	

c)	 Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liability, 
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to 
transactions between entities of the group (profits 
or losses resulting from intragroup transactions 
that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and  
fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Ind AS 12 “ Income 
Taxes’ applies to temporary differences that arise 
from the elimination of profits and losses resulting 
from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive 
Income (“OCI”) are attributed to the equity holders of the 
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, 
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having 
a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without 
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. 
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

-	 Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and 
liabilities of the subsidiary;

-	 Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interests;

-	 Derecognises the cumulative translation differences 
recorded in equity;

-	 Recognises the fair value of the consideration 
received;

 -	 Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

-	 Recognises any surplus or deficit in Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss;	

-	 Reclassifies the parent’s share of components 
previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or 
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would    be 
required if the Group had directly disposd of the 
related assets or liabilities. 

Associates / Joint Venture:

Interests in associates/joint venture are accounted for 
using the equity method, after initially being recognised at 
cost in the consolidated balance sheet. When a member 
of the Group transacts with an associate of the Group, 
profits and losses from transactions with the associate/ 
joint venture are recognised in the CFS only to the extent of 
interests in the associate/ joint venture that are not related 
to the Group.

The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to 
recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of 
the associate since the acquision date. Goodwill relating 
to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the 
investment.

The Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss reflects the 
Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate/
joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is 
presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when 
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity 
of the associate/joint venture, the Group recognises its 
share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement 
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting 
from transactions between the Group and the associate/
joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in 
the associate/joint venture. The aggregate of the Group’s 
share of profit or loss of an associate/joint venture is 
shown on the face of the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines 
whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss 
on its investment in its associate / joint venture. At each 
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reporting date, the Group determines whether there is 
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is 
impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates 
the amount of impairment as the difference between the 
recoverable amount of the associate / joint venture and 
its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share 
of Profit of an associate /joint venture’ in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit & Loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate /joint 
venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained 
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the 
carrying amount of the associate /joint venture upon 
loss of significant and the fair value of the retained 
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in 
the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss. 

3.3	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, 
net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of the 
purchase price (net of GST credits / duty credits 
wherever applicable) and all direct costs attributable 
to bringing the asset to its working condition for 
intended use and includes the borrowing costs 
for qualifying assets and the initial estimate of 
restoration cost if the recognition criteria is met. All 
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. 
Software and licences which are integral part of the 
PPE are capitalised along with respective PPE.  An 
item of property, plant & equipment is de-recognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or 
loss arising on the disposal or  etirement of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is determined as 
the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on the date of disposal 
or retirement. Capital work-in-progress includes cost 
of property, plant and equipment under installation 
/ under development as at the balance sheet date. 
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, 
plant and equipment outstanding at each balance 
of profit and loss if there has been a change in the 

estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. 
The carrying amount of the asset is increased to 
its revised recoverable amount, provided that this 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined (net of any accumulated 
amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss 
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal 
of impairment loss is recognised immediately in 
Statement of Profit and Loss.	

3.4	D epreciation and Amortisation

i 	 Depreciation on the property, plant and 
equipment is provided over the useful life of 
assets which is coincide with the life specified 
in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The 
range of useful lives of the Property,Plant and 
Equipment are as follows:

Property, Plant & 
Equipment 

Useful lives in 
Years

Plant & equipment  8- 15
Building 5- 60
Office equipment 5
Vehicles  8-10
Furniture & fixtures 10
Computers  3- 6
 
The depreciation has been provided based on 
the useful life of assets specified in Schedule 
II to the Companies Act, 2013 on straight 
line method.  The useful lives of assets as 
mentioned above is on their single shift basis, 
if an asset is used for any time during the year 
for double shift, the depreciation will increase 
by 50% for that period and in case of triple shift 
the depreciation shall be calculated on the basis 
of 100%for that period. 

ii	P roperty, plant and equipment (PPE) which 
are added/ disposed- of during the year, 
depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis from 
(up- to) the date on which the PPE is available 
for use (disposed-of).

iii	 Assets residual values and useful lives are 
reviewed at each financial year end considering 
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the physical condition of the assets and 
benchmarking analysis or whenever there 
are indicators for review of residual value and 
useful life adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
Freehold land is not depreciated. Lease hold 
land is amortised over the period of lease.

iv	 Free-hold land are not subject to amortisation.

3.5	 Impairment of non-financial assets

	P roperty, plant and equipment and other non-
financial assets are evaluated for recoverability 
whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be 
recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, 
the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair 
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is 
determined on an individual asset basis unless the 
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets. In such 
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for 
the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset 
belongs. If such assets are considered to be impaired, 
the impairment to be recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which 
the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated 
recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss 
is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the 
asset is increased to its revised recoverableamount, 
provided that this amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined 
(net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss 
is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

3.6	C ash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand 
and at bank, deposits held at call with banks, other 
short-term highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to a known amount of cash and are 

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value 
and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term 
cash commitments. The cash flow statement has 
been prepared under the indirect method as set out 
in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS ) 7 statement 
of cash flows.

3.7	I nventories

	 Inventories are carried in the balance sheet as 
follows:

	 Raw material, Stores & Spares At lower of cost or net 
realisable value, cost includes cost of purchases and 
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition.

	 Work-in Progress At lower of cost of material plus 
appropriate production overheads or net realisable 
value.

	 Finished Goods At lower of cost of materials plus 
production overheads and excise duty (wherever 
applicable) or net realisable value

	 Purchased Goods in transit Valued at cost.

	T he cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, 
cost of conversion and other related costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their respective present 
location and condition. Net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business, less estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.8	 Employee benefits

	E xpenses and liabilities in respect of employee 
benefits are recorded in accordance with Ind-AS 19 – 
Employee Benefits.

a)	 Defined contribution plan (I) Provident Fund: 
Contribution to the provident fund with the 
government at pre-determined rates is a 
defined contribution scheme and is charged 
to the statement of Profit and Loss. There are 
no other obligations other than contribution 
to PF Schemes. (II) National pension scheme : 
Contribution to national pension scheme with the 
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at predetermined rates is a defined contribution 
scheme and is charged to the statement of 
Profit and Loss when employees have rendered 
services entitling them to such benefit

b)	 Defined benefit plan Gratuity : The Company 
provides for gratuity, a defined benefit 
retirement plan (‘the Gratuity Plan’) covering 
eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides 
a lumpsum payment to vested employees 
at retirement, death, or termination of 
employment, of an amount based on the 
respective employee’s salary and the tenure 
of employment with the Company. Liabilities 
with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined 
by actuarial valuation, performed by an 
independent actuary, at each balance sheet 
date using the projected unit credit method. 
The company recognizes the net obligation of 
a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as 
an asset or liability. Gains and losses through 
re-measurements of the net defined benefit 
liability/ (asset) are recognised in other 
comprehensive income. The actual return of 
the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the 
yields computed by applying the discount rate 
used to measure the defined benefit obligations 
is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. 
The effect of any plan amendments are 
recognised in net profits in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

 c)	 Long term employee benefits: Provisions 
for other long term employee benefits-
compensated absences, a defined benefit 
scheme, is made on the basis of actuarial 
valuation at the end of each financial year and 
are charged to the statement of profit and loss. 
All actuarial gains or losses are recognised 
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 
d) Other Short-term employee benefits: All 
employee benefits payable wholly within 
twelve months rendering services are classified 
as short term employee benefits. Benefits such 
as salaries, wages, short-term compensated 

absences, performance incentives etc.and the 
expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised 
during the period in which the employee renders 
related service.

3.9	 Foreign currency reinstatement and translation

	I nitial Recognition:

	 On initial recognition, transactions in foreign 
currencies entered into by the Group are recorded 
in the Functional currency (i.e. Indian Rupees), by 
applying to the Foreign currency amount, the spot 
exchange rate between the Functional currency 
and the Foreign currency at the date of transation. 
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange 
transations settled during the year are recognised in 
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Measurement of Foreign currency Items at reporting 
date:

	 Foreign currency monetary items of the Group 
are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-
monetary items that are measured at historical 
cost in a Foreign currecy, are translated using the 
exchange rate at the date of the translation. Non-
monetary items that are measured at fair value in a 
foreign currency, are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fair value is measured.

	 Exchange differences arising out of these translations 
are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

	T ranslation of Financial Statements of Foreign 
entities:

	 On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of Foreign 
operations are translated into (Indian Rupees) at the 
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date and 
their statement of profit and loss are translated 
at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. The exchange differences arising on 
translation for consolidation are recognised in the 
Consolidated Statement of OCI. On disposal of a 
foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to 
that particular foreign operation is reclassified to 
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Any goodwill arising in the acquisition / business 
combinatiton of a foreign operation on or after 
adoption of Ind AS 103-Business Combination, and 
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition 
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign 
operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange 
at the reporting date.

	 Any goodwill or fair value adjustments arising in 
business combinations/ acquisitions, which occurred 
before the date of adoption of Ind AS 103-Business 
Combination, are treated as assets and liabilities 
of the entity rather than as assets and liabilities of 
the foreign operations. Therefore, those assets and 
liabilities are non-monetory items already expressed 
in the functional currency of the parent and no 
further translation differences occur.

3.10	L eases

	 As a lessee     The Company’s lease asset classes 
primarily consist of leases for land. The Company 
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at 
inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease 
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the 
Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves 
the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has 
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of 
the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the 
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.  
At the date of commencement of the lease, the 
Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) 
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease 
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for 
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these short-
term and low value leases, the Company recognizes 
the lease payments as an operating expense on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

	 Certain lease arrangements includes the options to 

extend or terminate the lease before the end of the 
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes 
these options when it is reasonably certain that they 
will be exercised.  The right-of-use assets are initially 
recognized at cost, which comprises the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 
payments made at or prior to the commencement 
date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any 
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses.

	 The lease liability is initially measured at amortized 
cost at the present value of the future lease 
payments. The lease payments are discounted using 
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates 
in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease 
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding 
adjustment to the related right of use asset if the 
Company changes its assessment if whether it will 
exercise an extension or a termination option.

	L ease liability and ROU asset have been separately 
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 
have been classified as financing cash flows.

3.11	 Financial instruments

	I nitial recognition: The Company recognises financial 
assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All 
financial assets and liabilities are recognised at fair 
value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial assets and financial liabilities thar are not 
at fair value through profit or loss, are added to or 
deducted from the fair value on initial recognition.

	 Subsequent measurement:

i	 Financial assets carried at amortised cost: A 
financial asset is subsequently measured at 
amortised cost if it is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold the asset in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give 
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rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

ii	 Financial assets carried at fair value through 
other comprehensive income: A financial asset 
is subsequently measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income if it is held within 
a business model whose objective is achieved 
by both collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

iii	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss: A financial asset which is not classified in 
any of (i) & (ii) above categories are subsequently 
fair valued through profit or loss.

iv	 Financial Liabilities: Financial liabilities are 
subsequently carried at amortized cost using 
the effective interest method. For trade and 
other payables maturing within one year from 
the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts 
approximate fair value due to the short maturity 
of these instruments.

De-recognition

	 The company de-recognises of financial assets when 
the contractual rights to receive cash flows from 
the financial asset expire or transfer the financial 
asset and transfer qualifies for de-recognition under 
IND AS 109.A financial liability is derecognised when 
the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. The difference between the 
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been 
extinguished is recognised in profit or loss as other 
income.

	 Offsetting of financial instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and 
the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 

the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle 

the liabilities simultaneously.

3.12	 Derivative financial instruments

	 The Company uses derivative financial instruments, 

such as forward contracts to hedge its foreign 

currency exposure. The recognizing of the resulting 

gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is 

designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, on the 

nature of the item being hedged. Any gains or losses 

arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives 

are taken directly to profit or loss.

3.13	 Borrowing costs

a)	 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the 

acquisition, construction, or production of a 

qualifying asset are capitalised as a part of the 

cost of such asset till such time the asset is 

ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying 

asset is an asset that necessarily requires a 

substantial period of time to get ready for its 

intended use or sale.

b)	 All other borrowing costs are recognised as 

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.14	T axation

i	 Income tax expense represents the sum of 

current tax and deferred tax. Tax is recognised 

in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to 

the extent that it relates to items recognised 

directly in equity or other comprehensive 

income.

ii	 Current tax provision is computed on Income 

calculated after considering allowances 

and exemptions under the provisions of the 

applicable Income Tax Laws.

iii	P rovision for current income taxes and advance 

taxes paid are presented in the balance sheet 

after offsetting them on an assessment year 

basis.
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iv	 Deferred tax is recognised on differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities in the Balance sheet and 
the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit and are accounted 
for using the Balance Sheet approach for all 
taxable temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are measured at the applicable tax rates and 
tax laws those are enacted or substantively 
enacted. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities are off set, and presented on net basis. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax is reviewed 
at each balance sheet date.The measurement 
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the 
tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the 
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle 
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3.15	 Revenue recognition and other income

a)	 Revenue from the sale of goods and services are 
measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, net of returns and 
allowances, trade discounts, rebates and 
incentives etc. Sales exclude Goods and Service 
Tax.

b)	 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised, 
when all the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have passed to the 
buyer, the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably and no significant uncertainty exists 
regarding the amount of Consideration that will 
be derived from the sales of goods.

c)	 Revenue from Services is recognised as per 
terms of the contract with customers based on 
stage of completion when the outcome of the 
transaction involving rendering of services can 
be estimated reliably.

d)	 Export benefits are accounted for in the year of 
exports based on eligibility and when there is 
no uncertainty in receiving the same and there 

is reasonable assurance that the Company will 
comply with the conditions attached to them. 
e) Other Income Interest income is recognised 
on a time proportion basis taking into account 
the amount outstanding and the  rate applicable.

3.16	 Government grants / Assistance

	 Government grants/Assistance recognised where 
there is reasonable assurance that the same will be 
received and all elegibility criterias are met out If 
the grants/assistance are related to subvention of a 
particular expense, it is deducted form that expense 
in the year of recognition of government grant / 
Assistance.

3.17	D ividend Distribution

	 Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders 
is recognised as a liability in the period in which 
the dividends are approved by the shareholders. 
Any interim dividend paid is recognised on 
approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable 
and corresponding tax on dividend distribution is 
recognised directly in equity.

3.18	 Fair Value measurement

	 The Company measures financial instruments at 
fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is 
the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement 
date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either: In the principal 
market for the asset or liability, or In the absence 
of a principal market, in the most advantageous 
market for the asset or liability The principal or the 
most advantageous market must be accessible by 
the Company.The fair value of an asset ora liability 
is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or 
liability, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest. A fair value measurement of 
a non-financial asset takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits 
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by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use 
the asset in its highest and best use. The Company 
uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in 
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use 
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the 
use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities 
for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the 
financial statements are categorised within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:

	 Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets 
for identical assets and liabilities

	 Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which 
have a significant effect on the recorded fair value 
are observable either directly or indirectly

	 Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a 
significant effect on the recorded fair value that are 
not based on observable market data. For assets 
and liabilities that are recognised in the financial 
statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period. For the purpose of fair value 
disclosures, the Company has determined classes 
of assets & liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and the risks of the asset or liability 
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained 
above.

3.19	E arnings per share

	 Basic earnings per equity share is computed by 
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity 
holders of the company by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by 
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity 
holders of the company by the weighted average 
number of equity shares considered for deriving 

basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted 
average number of equity shares that could have 
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

3.20	 Provisions

a)	 Provisions Provisions (excluding employee 
benefits) are recognised when the Company 
has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. If the effect of the 
time value of money is material, provisions are 
discounted using equivalent period government 
securities interest rate. Unwinding of the 
discount is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

b)	C ontingencies Contingent liabilities are 
disclosed when there is a possible obligation 
arising from past events, the existence of 
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control 
of the Company or a present obligation that 
arises from past events where it is either 
not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle or a reliable 
estimate of the amount cannot be made. 
Information on contingent liability is disclosed 
in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
Contingent assets are not recognised. 
However, when the realisation of 
income is virtually certain, then the 
related asset is no longer a contingent asset, 
but it is recognised as an asset.

3.21	 Research and development costs

	 Research costs are expensed as incurred. 
Development expenditures on an individual project 
are recognised as an intangible asset when the 
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Company can demonstrate:

a)	 The technical feasibility of completing the 
intangible asset so that the asset will be 
available for use or sale.

b)	 Its intention to complete and its ability and 
intention to use or sell the asset

c)	 How the asset will generate future economic 
benefits

d)	T he availability of resources to complete the 
asset

e)	T he ability to measure reliably the expenditure 
during development

	 Following initial recognition of the development 
expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at 
cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation 
of the asset begins when development is 
complete and the asset is available for use. It 
is amortised over the period of expected future 
benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss unless such 
expenditure forms part of carrying value of 
another asset.

4.	C ritical accounting estimates, assumptions and 
judgements

	 In the process of applying the Company’s accounting 
policies, management has made the following 
estimates, assumptions and judgements, which have 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statement:

a)	P roperty, plant and equipment - Useful lives 
of assets The Company reviews the useful life 
of assets at the end of each reporting period. 
This reassessment may result in change in 
depreciation expenses in future periods.

b)	 Warranties The Company generally offers 
Warranties for its consumer products and 
the liability towards warranty related costs 
are recognized in the year of sales or service 
provided to the customers. Management 
ascertain and measure the liability for warranty 
claims based on historical experience and trend. 
The assumptions made in relation to current 
year are consistent of those are in prior years.

c)	 Provision and Contingencies A provision is 
recognised when the Company has a present 
obligation as a result of past events and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle the obligation in respect 
of which a reliable estimate can be made. 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there 
is a possible obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only by 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Company or a present obligation 
that arises from past events where it is either 
not probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the 
amount cannot be made. Contingent liabilities 
are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets 
are not recognised in the financial statements.
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Note 3 : Property,Plant and Equipment	
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Freehold 
Land

Build-
ings

Furni-
ture and 
Fixtures

Plant & 
Equip-

ment

Office 
Equip-

ment

Elect. 
Fitting & 
Installa-

tion

Com-
puters 
-Hard-

ware

Vehicle Capital 
Work -in 
Progress

Total

Year ended 31 March, 
2021

Gross Carrying Amount

Gross Carrying Cost as of 
April 1, 2020

 478.47  820.24  59.20  2,918.22  36.80  35.72  11.55  89.35  678.97 5,128.52

Additions during the year  -    641.61  0.62  663.31  2.06  0.06  5.00  52.70  1,026.28  2,391.65 

Diposals during the year  -    -    -    15.55  -    -    -    0.83  1,272.38  1,288.76 

Closing Gross carrying 
amount

 478.47  1,461.86  59.82 3,565.98  38.86  35.78  16.55  141.22  432.87  6,231.41 

Accumulated 
Depreciation

As at April 1, 2020  -    97.03  12.83  717.82  15.13  15.90  7.02  32.75  -    898.47 

Depreciation charged 
during the year

 -    33.60  9.57  236.27  5.86  3.34  1.07  22.59  -    312.30 

Disposals during the year  -    -    -    10.28  -    -    -    0.41  -    10.70 

Closing accumulated 
depreciation

 -    130.64  22.40  943.80  20.98  19.25  8.09  54.93  -   1,200.08 

Net carrying value as on 
March 31, 2021

 478.47  1,331.22  37.42  2,622.17  17.88  16.54  8.47  86.29  432.87  5,031.33 

Note 4	 : Investment Properties
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Freehold 
Land 

 Buildings  Plant and 
Equip-
ments 

 Furniture 
and Fix-

tures 

 Office 
Equip-
ments 

 Elect. Fit-
ting & In-
stallation 

 Total 

Year ended 31 March, 2021

Gross Carrying Amount

Gross Carrying Cost as of April 1, 
2020

 95.06  295.59  16.79  6.05  6.96  15.05  435.49 

Additions during the year  -    36.00  -    -    -    -    36.00 

Diposals during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Closing Gross carrying amount  95.06  331.59  16.79  6.05  6.96  15.05  471.49 

Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 1, 2020  -    49.39  4.56  3.64  5.11  9.29  71.98 

Depreciation charged during the year  -    10.96  1.27  0.91  -    2.24  15.38 

Disposals during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Closing accumulated depreciation  -    60.35  5.82  4.55  5.11  11.53  87.36 

Net carrying value as on March 31, 
2021

 95.06  271.24  10.97  1.50  1.85  3.52  384.13 
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Note 5 : Intangible Assets

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars  Computer 

Software 
 Total 

Year ended March 31, 2021
Gross Carrying Amount
Deemed Cost as of April 1, 2020  15.55  15.55 
Additions during the year  1.50  1.50 
Diposals during the year  -    -   
Closing Gross carrying amount  17.05  17.05 
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening  13.33  13.33 
Depreciation charge during the year  0.59  0.59 
Disposals during the year  -    -   
Closing accumulated depreciation  13.92  13.92 
Net carrying value as on March 31, 2021  3.14  3.14 

Note 6 : Right of Use Assets

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars  Land  Commercial 

Vehicles 
 Total 

Balance as at April 1, 2020  65.24  96.75  162.00 
Depreciation/Amortisation  1.59  16.02  17.61 
Net carrying value as on March 31, 2021  63.65  80.74  144.39 

Note 7 : Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Investment in Joint Venture
M/s Pir Panchal Construction Pvt. Ltd. Joint Venture  825.56  685.13 

 825.56  685.13 

Details of Joint Ventures

Name of the Joint Venture  Principal Place 
of Business/ 

Principal Activity 

 Ownership Interest % as of
 As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
M/s Pir Panchal Construction Pvt. Ltd.-JV		   India / Erection of 

Poles 
 25.00  25.00 

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Particulars                        As at                   
March 31, 2021 

                          Asat               
March 31, 2020 

Joint Ventures  825.56  685.13 
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Note 8 :  Investments	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Investment in Equity Instruments
-Others
 Quoted
60,500 (as at 31st March 2020: 60,500) Face value of Equity shares of `10/- 
each fully paid up of Uttam Value Steels Limited

 0.60  0.60 

25 (as at 31st March 2020: 25 ) Equity shares of `25/- each fully paid up of       
SVC-Cooperative Bank Limited

 0.01  0.01 

 Unquoted
2 (as at 31st March 2020: 2) Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up of                 
CIDCO Mumbai

 0.00  0.00 

Total  0.61  0.61 

Note 9 :  Other Financial Assets (Non-Current)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Security Deposits  104.57  100.36 
Loans to Others  655.24  593.80 
Bank Deposits with maturity period more than 12 months*  452.87  128.90 
Total  1,212.68  823.07 

*Held as margin money or security against the borrowings, guarantees and other commitments.

Note 10 :  Other Non-Current Assets

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Unsecured,considered good:
Capital Advances  -    66.28 
Unamortized Expenses  41.52  44.75 
Total  41.52  111.03 

Note 11 : Inventories

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Raw Materials  3,121.76  1,469.63 
(Including  material in-transit `544.52 Lakhs/- (As at 31st March, 2020 :  
` NIL/-)
Finished Goods  2,704.91  3,191.94 
Work-in-progress  1,405.64  656.06 
Scrap Material  21.45  37.22 
Stores, spares and consumable  32.31  39.06 
Total  7,286.07  5,393.90 
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Note 12(a) : Trade Receivables

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Unsecured:
Considered Good  5,225.58  7,214.99 
Total  5,225.58  7,214.99 

Note 12(b) : Cash and Cash Equivalents

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Balances with banks
-Current Accounts  1,987.23  711.07 
-In Fixed deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months*  211.48  585.95 
Cash in Hand  8.97  14.63 
Total  2,207.68  1,311.65 

*Held as margin money or security against the borrowings, guarantees and other commitments.

Note 12(c) : Other financial assets (Current)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Interest accrued on loans,investments and deposits  22.34  24.23 
Total  22.34  24.23 

Note 13	: Other current assets

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Advances other than capital advances
 Advance to suppliers and others  282.60  2,021.10 
 Balance with Government Authorities  1,411.54  867.35 
 Prepaid Expenses  64.56  23.41 
 Other Receivables  612.11  519.81 
Total  2,370.81  3,431.67 

Note 14 :  Share Capital:

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020
A. Share Capital

Authorized:
1,80,00,000 (as at 31st March 2020: 1,80,00,000 )  Equity Shares of `5/- 
each

 900.00  900.00 

25,00,000 (as at 31st March 2020: 25,00,000)  5% Non Cumulative 
Redeemable Preference shares of ` 10/- each

 250.00  250.00 

                                                            1,150.00  1,150.00 
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up:
1,67,94,000 ( as at 31st March 2020: 1,67,94,000 ) Equity Shares of `5/- 
each fully paid up 

 839.70  839.70 

Total  839.70  839.70 
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B. 	R econciliation of Number of Shares

Equity Shares of `5/- Each fully paid up  As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
 Number of 

Shares 
(` in Lakhs)  Number of 

Shares 
(` in Lakhs)

Balance as at the beginning of the year 16,794,000  839.70  16,794,000  839.70 
Additions during the year:  -    -    -    -   
Deletion during the year :  -    -    -    -   
Balance as at the end of the year 16,794,000  839.70  16,794,000  839.70 

C.	D etail of shareholder holding more than 5% shares of the Company :	  :				  
					   

Name of Shareholder  As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020
 Numbers of 
Shares held 

 % of holding  Numbers of 
Shares held 

 % of holding 

Naresh Kumar Bansal 6,389,848 38.05 6,212,578 36.99
Richi Bansal 1,469,287 8.75 1,469,287 8.75
Nikhil Naresh Bansal 1,355,998 8.07 1,355,998 8.07
Tarun Dhir-Arun Enterprises         
(a Partnership Firm)

 1,209,821 7.20  1,209,821 7.20

D.	 Right, preference and restrictions attached to shares Equity Shares

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `5/- per share. Each Shareholder is eligible 
for one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets 
of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion of their shareholding.

Note 15	: Other Equity

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Securities Premium Account  2,176.20  2,176.20 
General Reserve  1,277.28  1,277.28 
Retained Earnings  5,452.47  4,208.04 
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  23.10  55.90 
Capital Reserve  225.70  225.70 
Total  9,154.75  7,943.12 

For movement during the year in Other Equity, refer “Statement of Changes in Equity

Note 16	: Borrowings

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Secured
Term Loans from banks#  2,951.82  1,910.39 
Less: Current Maturities transferred to Other financial liabilities  (359.20)  (342.02)

 2,592.62  1,568.37 
Unsecured Loans
Loan from Directors  343.58  187.06 
Loans and Advances from Related Parties  61.51  59.94 

 405.09  247.00 
Total  2,997.71  1,815.37 
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# Term loan against property (LAP) from banks is secured by way of mortgage of plot No 131, sector-44, Gurgaon & 
hypothecation of fixed assets of the Company and extension of charge by way of hypothecation of current assets of the 
Company. Another term loan from bank is secured by way of morgage of land & building & hypothecation of fixed assets 
of the Company (movable & immovable) belonging to the unit set up at Anantpur District, Andhra Pradesh, present 
and future belonging to the company and extension of first charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets 
of the company,present and future and guaranted by personal guarantee by Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal and Mr. Richi 
Bansal, Directors of the Company. Further secured by way of corporate guarantee by holding company-Rama Steel Tubes 
Limited. Another Term loan for plant expansion is secured by way of hypothecation of plant and machinery purchased 
from proposed term loan and factory land and Building at Survey No.155,H.No. 4A, Village Umbare, Taluka Khalapur, 
District Raigad-410203, Maharasthra. Vehicles loan is secured by way of hypothecation of said vehicle.

Term loan from banks outstanding amounting ` 517.88 Lakhs as at 31.03.2021  carrying interest @ Repo Rate + 4.80% 
p.a i.e.9.20 p.a.This balance loan is repayable in 60 monthly installments of ` 13.21 Lakhs till March 31, 2024 and last 
installment of `2.69 Lakhs to be paid in April 2024.				  

-	 First Term loan against property (LAP) from bank outstanding amounting ̀ 402.97 Lakhs as at 31.03.2021 are payable 
in 110 monthly installments commencing from August 2014 to September 2023, carrying a floating interest rate 
linked with MCLR of bank (1 year MCLR : 8.35% plus 0.95 % p.a.) with periodical interest reset.

-	 Second topup term loan against property (LAP) from bank outstanding amounting ` 119.62 Lakhs as at 31.03.2021 
are payable in 121 monthly installments commencing from May 2017 to May 2027, carrying a floating interest rate 
linked with MCLR of bank (1 year MCLR: 8.35% plus 1.40 %  p.a.) with periodical interest reset.		

-	 Third topup term loan against property (LAP) from bank outstanding amounting `214.95 Lakhs as at 31.03.2021 are 
payable in 120 monthly installments commencing from Nov 2018 to Oct 2028, carrying a floating interest rate linked 
with MCLR of bank  (1 year MCLR: 7.40% plus 0.95 % p.a.) with periodical interest reset.

-	 Term loan for plant expansion from bank outstanding amounting `531.96 Lakhs as at 31.03.2021 are payable in 
26 equal monthly installments of ` 20 Lakhs each commencing from July 2021 to September 2023 and last 1 
installment of ` 13 Lakhs with rate of interest 10% p.a. at year end. 

-	 First Vehicle term loan from bank outstanding amounting ` 15.80 Lakhs as at 31.03.2021 are payable in 60 monthly 
installments commencing from March 2017 to Feb 2022 with rate of interest 9.75% p.a. at year end. 

-	 Second Vehicle term loan from bank outstanding amounting ̀  9.64 Lakhs as at 31.03.2021 are payable in 60 monthly 
installments commencing from October 2019 to Sept 2024 with rate of interest 9.05%  p.a

	 Truck Loan outstanding amounting ` 15.20 Lakhs as on 31.03.2021 from Bank carrying a interest rate i.e. 9.50% p.a. 
repayable in 47 monthly installment of ` 0.65 Lakhs till March 01,2023  is secured by hypothecation of vehicle.

Note:  Installments falling due in respect of all the above loans upto 31st March, 2021 have been grouped under “” Current 
Maturities of long term debt’’”. (Refer Note 20 (c).

Note 17	: Other Financial Liabilities (Non Current)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Security Deposits  25.13  94.00 
Total  25.13  94.00 

Note 18	: Provisions (Non Current)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Gratuity  48.40  48.36 
Compensated Absences  7.36  5.56 
Total  55.76  53.92 
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Note 19	: Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities(Net)

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars                        As at                   
March 31, 2021 

                          Asat               
March 31, 2020 

Deferred Tax Assets

Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences  22.50  21.05 

Unabsorbed Depreciation/ carried forward losses  212.34  167.45 

 234.84  188.50 

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Depreciation  273.37  275.49 

 273.37  275.49 

Deferred Tax Assets(Net)  -    -   

Deferred Tax Liabilities(Net)  38.53  87.00 

Note 20(a) : Borrowings (Current)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Secured
Loans Repayable on demand from Banks*  5,187.36  6,159.31 
Unsecured
Other Loans from Banks  -    -   
Total  5,187.36  6,159.31 

* Working Capital Facilities from Banks are secured by way of hypothecation of Company’s current assets (present and 
future) including interalia stock of raw materials, stores, spares, stock in process, finished goods etc. lying in the factory, 
shop, godowns, elsewhere and including goods in transit , book debts, bills receivable and first charge by way of collateral 
in respect of fixed assets of the company and further guaranteed by Sh. Naresh Kumar Bansal, Director and Sh. Richi 
Bansal, Director of the Company.

Note 20(b) : Trade payables

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars                        As at                   
March 31, 2021 

                          Asat               
March 31, 2020 

Total outstanding dues to Micro,Small and medium Enerprises                                       
(Refer Note No-45)

 49.60  -   

Total outstanding dues to other than Micro,Small and medium Enerprises  4,980.12  5,926.28 

Total  5,029.72  5,926.29 

Note 20(c) : Other financial liabilities (Current)

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars                        As at                   
March 31, 2021 

                          Asat               
March 31, 2020 

Current Maturities of term loans transferred from long term borrowings  359.20  342.02 

Total  359.20  342.02 
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Note 21	: Provisions (Current)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Gratuity  29.10  26.58 
Compensated Absences  4.54  3.37 
Total  33.64  29.95 

Note 22 : Other Current Liabilities

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Advance from Customers and Others  619.48  310.43 
Statutory Levies  33.12  23.78 
Employee Benefits Payable  51.21  51.41 
Expenses Payable  108.32  67.65 
Total  812.13  453.27 

Note 23 : Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars                        As at                   

March 31, 2021 
                          Asat               

March 31, 2020 
Provision for Taxation  307.22  18.99 
Less: Advance Tax  (85.00)  (10.00)
Total  222.22  8.99 

Note 24 : Revenue from Operations	

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars        Year Ended                   
March 31, 2021 

    Year Ended
March 31, 2020 

Sale of Products

Finished Goods

 Within India  27,717.82  26,457.52 

 Outside India  2,555.83  1,206.80 

Traded Goods  16,479.90  7,227.73 

Total Gross Sales  46,753.55  34,892.05 

Other Operating Revenue

Scrap Sale  213.11  352.27 

Job Work Income  8.64  8.81 

Export Incentives  68.15  27.77 

Total  289.90  388.85 

Total Revenue from Operations  47,043.45  35,280.90 
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Note 25 : Other Income		

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars        Year Ended                   
March 31, 2021 

    Year Ended
March 31, 2020 

Interest Income from financial assets measured at amortised cost

- on fixed deposits with bank  135.97  139.58 

Liabilities no longer required written back  1.73  0.60 

Net Gain on disposal of property,plant and equipment and investment 
property

 (0.17)  -   

Foreign Exchange Gain(net)  354.36  42.27 

Rental Income  89.85  180.50 

Miscellaneous Income  32.15  2.10 

Total  613.89  365.06 

Note 26 : Cost of Materials Consumed		

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars        Year Ended                   
March 31, 2021 

    Year Ended
March 31, 2020 

Raw Materials

Opening Stock  1,469.63  3,064.48 

Add: Purchase  44,536.91  31,535.95 

Less: Closing Stock  (2,577.24)  (1,469.63)

Less: Cost of Raw Material cleared as such  (14,692.78)  (7,128.74)

Total  28,736.52  26,002.06 

Note 27	: Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade	

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars        Year Ended                   
March 31, 2021 

    Year Ended
March 31, 2020 

Opening Stock 

Finished Goods  1,127.34  658.37 

WIP  613.13  551.00 

Scrap Material  80.15  12.40 

Traded Goods  1,999.54  -   

Total (A)  3,820.16  1,221.77 

Closing Stock

Finished Goods  1,392.56  1,127.34 

WIP  1,405.64  656.06 

Scrap Material  21.45  37.22 

Traded Goods  1,310.48  132.07 

Total (B)  4,130.13  1,952.69 

Total (A-B)  (309.97)  (730.93)
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Note 28 : Employee Benefit Expenses	

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars        Year Ended                   
March 31, 2021 

    Year Ended
March 31, 2020 

Salaries, Wages, Bonus etc.  685.15  654.21 

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds  12.44  18.45 

Staff Welfare Expenses  18.77  7.30 

Gratuity  2.66  13.94 

Compensated Absences  3.00  2.71 

Total  722.02  696.61 

Note 29 : Finance Cost		

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars        Year Ended                   
March 31, 2021 

    Year Ended
March 31, 2020 

Interest Expense on :  709.33  953.07 

Other Expenses  60.45  10.07 

Total  769.78  963.14 

Note 30 : Depreciation and amortisation		

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars        Year Ended                   
March 31, 2021 

    Year Ended
March 31, 2020 

Depreciation  312.59  258.16 

Depreciation on investment property  15.38  14.53 

Amortisation of intangible assets  0.59  1.12 

Right of Use Assets Amortisation  17.61  16.29 

Total  346.17  290.09 

Note 31	: Other Expenses		

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars        Year Ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year Ended

March 31, 2020 

Job Work Charges  14.68  7.89 

Power & Fuel Expenses  288.60  311.05 

Repair & Maintenance :-

   Building  11.67  23.47 

   Plant & Machinery  33.39  22.98 

Rent (Including Lease Rent)  70.91  43.33 

Printing & Stationery  4.13  5.99 

Postage & Telephone  11.03  24.17 
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Vehicle Running Expenses  9.30  9.96 

Fees & Taxes  30.40  22.86 

Travelling Expenses:

   Directors  2.59  6.02 

   Others  46.52  31.91 

Legal & Professional Charges  169.38  35.28 

Donation - 0.11

Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer Note 40)  19.95  25.50 

Miscellaneous Expenses  31.76  18.70 

Auditor's Remuneration  4.27  2.50 

Insurance  7.89  13.92 

Key-man Insurance  19.39  15.69 

Office  Expenses  32.82  20.83 

Commission  18.29  43.12 

Freight Outward  226.57  277.74 

Business Promotion  22.23  29.38 

Bad Debt  9.03  1.75 

Other Selling Expenes  24.70  86.52 

Stores and Spares  260.34  236.64 

Total  1,369.84  1,317.32 

Note 32 : Tax Expense			 

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars        Year Ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year Ended

March 31, 2020 

Current Tax

Current Tax on profits for the year  287.93  18.99 

Adjustment for current tax of prior periods  -    0.48 

Total current tax expense  287.93  19.47 

Deferred Tax

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets  -    -   

(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities  (55.09)  149.20 

Total deferred tax expense/(benefit)  (55.09)  149.20 

Total Tax Expense  232.83  168.67 

33.	 Financial Risk Management							     

	 Financial Risk Factors							     

	 The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of 
these financial liabilities is to manage finances for the Company ‘s operations. The Company has loan and other 
receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short terms deposits that arise directly from its operations. 
The Company’s activities expose  it to a variety of financial risks.	
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i)	M arket Risk							     

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise  three types of risks: currency rate risk, interest rate risk 
and other price risks such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financials instruments affected by market 
risk includes loans and borrowings, deposits, investments. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value 
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate  because of changes in foreign exchanges rates. 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate  
because of changes  in market interest rates. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities  held 
as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.	

ii)	C redit Risk

	 Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss.

iii)	L iquidity Risk

	L iquidity risk  is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral 
obligations without incurring unacceptable losses.

	 The Company ‘s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

	M arket Risk

	 The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact of movementsin market variables on the carrying value of post 
employeement benefit obligations provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of 
the relevant statement of Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market 
risks. The Company’s acitivies expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in 
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. However, such effect is not material.

(a)	 Foreign exchange risk and sensitivity
	 The company transacts business primarly in Indian Rupee.The company is exposed to foreign exchange 

risk through its sales in international markets. The company has given unsecured loan to its wholly owned 
subsidiary company and has foreign currency receivables and is therefore, exposed  to foreign exchange risk. 
The company evaluates foreign currency exposure time to time and follow established risk management 
policies by taking foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge exposure of foreign currency risk and also 
some of the foreign currency exposure remains natually hedged The Following table analyses foreign 
currency risk from financial instruments as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 :-	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Currency As at 

March 31, 2021
As at 

March 31, 2020
Financial Assets:-
Trade Receivables  USD  1,554.21  2,661.64 
Unsecured Loan / Advance Receivables  USD  6.51  128.43 
Financial Liabilities:-
Trade Payables  USD  831.62  2,188.65 
Net (Assets) / Liabilities  729.10  601.42 

	 * Trade Receivables and Trade Payables are related to Merchant Trade which is naturally hedged, inward and 
outward conrolled by EEFC Account.						    
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	 Particulars of forward contracts taken during the year are given below				    .

Particulars Type No. of Contract US$ Equivalent 
(Lakhs)

(` in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2021 Sell  15.00  21.09  1,550.47 
Buy  -    -    -   

As at 31st March, 2020 Sell  23.00  24.78  1,869.34 
Buy  -    -    -   

	 Summary of exchange difference accounted in Statement of Profit & Loss              		

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars        Year Ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year Ended

March 31, 2020 
Net foreign exchange (gain)/ losses shown under Other Income  354.36  42.27 
Net foreign exchange (gain)/ losses shown under OCI  (32.80)  40.24 
Total  321.56  82.51 

(b)	I nterest rate risk and sensitivity						    

	 The Company does not have any borrowings on which the interest risk and Sensitivity arises.		

	I nterest rate

	 The below table demonstrates the borrowings of fixed and floating rate of interest:-

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Total Borrowings Floating rate 

borrowings
Fixed rate 

borrowings
Weighted average 

interest rate
INR  8,544.27  8,113.74  75.61 9.25%
Total as at 31 March, 2021  8,544.27  8,113.74  75.61 9.25%
INR  8,316.70  8,026.14  92.15 9.75%
Total as at 31 March, 2020  8,316.70  8,026.14  92.15 9.75%

(c)	C ommodity price risk and sensitivity							     

	T he company  is exposed to the movement in price of key raw materials in domestic markets. The Company 
enters into contracts for procurement of material most of the transactions are short term fixed price conract.

	C redit Risk

	 The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables). Credit risk arises 
from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the 
Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, 
current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk 
limits are set accordingly. The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and 
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each reporting period. To 
assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the company compares the risk of a default occurring 
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers 
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

	C ash and Cash Equivalents, Deposit in Banks and other Financial instruments

	 The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market reputation and service 
standards to select the banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. Generally, the balances are 
maintained with the institutions with which the Company has also availed borrowings. The Company does not 
maintain significant cash and deposit balances other than those required for its day to day operations. For 
other financial assets the company monitors ratings, credit spreads and financial strengths of its counterparties. 
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Based on its ongoing assessment of the counter party’s risk, the company adjust its exposures to various counter 
parties. Based on the assessment there is no impairment in other financial assets.

	L iquidity Risk

	 Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at 
a reasonable price.The Company’s finance department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement 
management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. 
Management monitors the Company’s net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected 
cash flows.

	 Maturity profile of financial liabilities

	 The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the 
reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments.	

(` in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2021 Less than 1 year Above 1 year Total
Non Current borrowings  -    2,997.71  2,997.71 
Current borrowings  5,187.36  -    5,187.36 
Trade payables  5,029.72  -    5,029.72 
Other financial liabilities  359.20  25.13  384.33 
Total  10,576.27  3,022.85  13,599.12 

(` in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2020 Less than 1 year Above 1 year Total
Non Current borrowings  -    1,815.37  1,815.37 
Current borrowings  6,159.31  -    6,159.31 
Trade payables  5,926.28  -    5,926.28 
Other financial liabilities  342.02  94.00  436.02 
Total  12,427.61  1,909.37  14,336.98 

	 Capital Risk Management	 					   

	 For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity 
reserves. The primary objective of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximize shareholder value. The 
company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic environment 
and the requirements of the financial covenants. In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital 
management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial 
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches of the 
financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and borrowing for reported periods.

	 Further the company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt. 
as under :-

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       As at                   

March 31, 2021 
    As at

March 31, 2020 
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings  8,189.35  8,118.29 
Equity & Other Equity  9,994.45  8,782.82 
Capital and net debt  18,183.80  16,901.11 
Gearing ratio in % 45.04% 48.03%
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34.	 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities						    

	 Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the company’s financial instuments 
that are recognised in the financial statements.	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31,2021 March 31,2020

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Financial assets designated 
at amortised cost
Trade Receivables  5,225.58  5,225.58  7,214.99  7,214.99 
Cash & cash Equivalents  2,207.68  2,207.68  1,311.65  1,311.65 
Bank balances other than 
above

 -    -    -    -   

Other Financial assets  1,235.02  1,235.02  847.29  847.29 
Total  8,668.27  8,668.27  9,373.93  9,373.93 
Financial liabilities 
designated at amortised cost
Non Current Borrowings  2,997.71  2,997.71  1,815.37  1,815.37 
Current Borrowings  5,187.36  5,187.36  6,159.31  6,159.31 
Trade payables  5,029.72  5,029.72  5,926.28  5,926.28 
Other financial liabilities  384.33  384.33  436.02  436.02 
Total  13,599.12  13,599.12  14,336.98  14,336.98 

	 Fair Value Hierarchy	 					   
	T he company measures financial instuments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned 

above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid  to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the assets or transfer the liability takes place either:

	 Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valution 
techniques as follows:-

1.	L evel 1: Quoted prices/ NAV for Identical instuments in an active market.

2.	L evel 2: Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than level 1 inputs; and 

3.	L evel 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data.	

	 When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. 
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, 
then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the 
lowest level input that is significant  to the entire measurement. The company recognises transfers between levels 
of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.	

	 Fair Value Technique

1) 	 The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be 
the same as their fair values due to their short term nature.

2) 	 The fair value of security deposit given was calculated based on cash flows discounted using the current lending 
rate. They are classified as a level 2 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable 
inputs inlcuding counterparty credit risk.



Corporate  Overview Statuory Reports Financial Statements

Annual Report - 2020-21  |   165

3)	 For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair 
values.

	 The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and liabilities, grouped into 
level 1 to Level 2 as described below:-

	 Assets/ Liabilities measured at fair value (Accounted)		

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets 
Security deposits'

 
-    104.57  -   

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets 
Security deposits' -  100.36  -

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings-fixed rate  -    75.61  -   
Other financial liabilities  -    384.33  -   

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings-fixed rate  -    92.15  -   
Other financial liabilities  -    436.02  -   

	 During the year ended 31st March 2021 and 31st March 2020, there were no transfers between level 1 and Level 2 fair value 
measurements and no transfer into and out of Level 3 vair value measurements. There is no transaction/ balance under Level 3.

	 Following table describes the valuation techniques used and key inputs for valaution under fair value hierarchy as of March 31, 
2021 and March 31, 2020 respectively:-						    

(a) Assets/ Liabilities  measured at Fair value		

Particulars Fair Value hierarchy Valution technique Inputs used
Security deposits Level 2 Discounted Cash 

Flow
Prevailing interest rates in market, Future 
payouts.

Particulars Fair Value 
hierarchy

Valution technique Inputs used

Borrowings fixed Level 2 Discounted Cash 
Flow

Prevailing interest rates in market, Future 
payouts.

Other Financial liabilities Level 2 Discounted Cash 
Flow

Prevailing interest rates in market, Future 
payouts.
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35.	 Segment Reporting						    

	 The Company is carrying out the activity of Manufacturing of Pipes and Trading of steel related products. However as 
its wholly owned subisidiary company in Dubai viz. RST International Trading FZE is pursuing the business of Trading 
of Steel Products and Non Ferrous Metal Products. Company has eastablished a new foreign company namely RST 
Industries Limited in Lagos, Nigeria through the investment by its wholly owned subsidiary RST International Trading 
FZE, Dubai in the same line of business. The Segment wise Results of Manufacturing and Trading are given below :

	 Statement of Segment wise Revenue, Results, Assets & Liabilities:-

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Quarter ended 

March 31,2021
Quarter ended 

Dec 31,2020
Quarter ended 
March 31,2020

Year ended  
March 31,2021

Year ended  
March 

31,2020"
Segment Total Revenue
Manufacturing - Steel Pipe  9,713.49  10,448.37  4,048.23  31,177.44  28,418.23 
Trading- Steel Products  4,654.21  5,013.07  4,492.99  16,479.90  7,227.73 
Total  14,367.70  15,461.44  8,541.22  47,657.35  35,645.96 
Segment Results
Manufacturing - Steel Pipe  480.86  447.37  431.34  1,264.48  1,075.44 
Trading- Steel Products  679.58  100.71  50.20  975.94  98.99 
Total  1,160.45  548.08  481.54  2,240.42  1,174.44 
Less : Finance Cost  177.07  182.23  225.63  769.78  963.14 
Add : Exceptional Items  -    -    -    -    -   
Profit before Tax  983.38  365.85  255.91  1,470.65  211.30 
Segment Assets
Manufacturing - Steel Pipe  19,342.23  17,101.84  20,201.43  19,342.23  20,127.80 
Trading- Steel Products  5,413.60  5,038.45  3,625.12  5,413.60  3,625.13 

 24,755.84  22,140.29  23,826.55  24,755.84  23,752.93 
Segment Liabilities
Manufacturing - Steel Pipe  10,862.89  12,902.50  14,970.12  10,862.89  14,970.12 
Trading- Steel Products  3,898.50  4,133.97  2,902.40  3,898.50  2,902.40 

 14,761.39  17,036.47  17,872.52  14,761.39  17,872.52 

36.	I ncome Tax expenses

(` in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2021
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
1 Current Tax  287.93  18.99 
2 Deferred Tax  (55.09)  149.20 
3 Previous year taxation adjustments  -    0.48 
4 MAT credit entilement  -    -   

Total  232.83  168.67 
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Effective Tax Reconciliation

(` in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2021
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
Net Loss/ Income before Taxes  1,470.65  284.94 
Enacted tax rates Computed Tax 25.168% 25.168%
Income (Expense)  370.13  71.71 
Increase /(Reduction) in taxes on account of :-    

1 Amount Not taxable/ exempt  (155.62)  (52.73)
2 Previous year taxation adjustments  -    0.48 
3 Deferred tax  (55.09)  149.20 

Total  159.43  168.67 
Effective Tax Rate 11% 59%

37.	D eferred Tax			 

	 The analysis of deferred tax accounted for in the statementof Profit and Loss is as follows:-	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Book base and tax base of Fixed Assets  44.96  167.32 
(Disallowance )/ Allowance (net) Under Income Tax  (102.95)  (18.44)
Ind-As adjustments  (2.23)  0.32 
Total  (60.21)  149.20 

	 Component of tax accounted  in OCI	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
    Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Deferred Tax Gain/ (Loss) on defined benefit  (2.23)  0.32 
Total  (2.23)  0.32 

38.	 Retirement Benefit Obligation	

I.	 Expenses recognised for Defined Contribution plan

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Company's Contribution to provident fund  9.05  13.00 
Company's Contribution to ESI  3.38  5.45 
Company's Contribution to superannuation fund  -    -   
Total  12.44  18.45 

	 Below tables sets forth the changes in the projected benefit obligation and plan assets and amounts recognised in 
Balance sheet as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, being the respective measurement dates:-
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II.	 Movement in Defined benefit obligation

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Gratuity                                       

(unfunded)
 Leave 

encashment 
(unfunded) 

Present value of obligation-April 1, 2019'  65.87  7.61 
Current Service Cost  7.79  1.49 
Interest Cost  5.05  0.58 
Benefits paid  (5.09)  (1.39)
Remeasurements-actuarial loss/ (gain)  1.32  0.64 
Present value of obligation-March 31, 2020'  74.94  8.93 
Present value of obligation-April 1, 2020  74.93  8.93 
Current Service Cost  6.35  1.53 
Interest Cost  5.07  0.60 
Benefits paid  -    (0.04)
Remeasurements-actuarial loss/ (gain)  (8.86)  0.86 
Present value of obligation-March 31, 2021'  77.49  11.89 

III.	M ovement in Plan Assets-Gratuity

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of year'  -    -   
Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Employer contributions  -    -   
Benefits paid  -    -   
Amount received on redemtion of plan assets  -    -   
Acquisitions/ Transfer in / Transfer out  -    -   
Acturial gain / (loss)  -    -   
Fair Value of plan assets at end of year  -    -   
Present value of obligation Net Funded status of plan  -    -   
Actual return on plan assets  -    -   

IV.	 Recognised in Profit & Loss 

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Gratuity  Compensated 

absence 
Current Service Cost  7.79  1.49 
Interest Cost  5.05  0.58 
Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Remeasurements-actuarial loss/ (gain)  1.32  0.64 
Past Service cost  -    -   
For the year ended March 31, 2020  14.16  2.71 
Current Service Cost  6.35  1.95 
Interest Cost  5.07  0.60 
Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Remeasurements-actuarial loss/ (gain)  (8.86)  0.86 
Past Service cost  -    -   
For the year ended March 31, 2021  2.56  3.42 
Actual return on plan assets  -    -   
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V.	 Recognised in other comprehensive income

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars  Employee Benefit 

Eexpenses 
Remeasurement-Actuarial loss/ (gain)  1.32 
For the year ended March 31, 2020  1.32 
Remeasurement-Actuarial (loss)/ gain  (8.86)
For the year ended March 31, 2021  (8.86)

VI.	 The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Company’s defined benefit obligation are set out 
below:	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Attrition rate 3% 3%
Discount rate 6.76 6.76
Expected rate of increase in Compensation levels 6.00 6.00
Expected rate of Return on plan Assets NA NA
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 

 (2012-14)
100% of IALM 

 (2012-14)
Expected Average remaining working lives of employees (years) 16.85 19.12

	 The assumptions of future salary increase takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors such as supply and demand in employment  market. 						    

VII.	 SensitivityAnalysis:-

	 For the year ended March 31, 2021	

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Change in 

Assumption
Effect on Gratuity 

obligation
Effect on 

compensated 
absence obligation

Discount rate 0.50% -2.74 -0.47
-0.50% 2.98 0.52

Salary Growth  rate 0.50% 2.48 0.52
-0.50% -2.29 -0.48

Withdrawal rate* - - -

	 * Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change due to these not calculated. 

	 For the year ended March 31, 2020

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Change in 

Assumption
Effect on Gratuity 

obligation
Effect on 

compensated 
absence obligation

Discount rate 0.50% -2.98 -0.38
-0.50% 3.25 0.42

Salary Growth  rate 0.50% 3.26 0.42
-0.50% -3.01 -0.39

Withdrawal rate - - -
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	 The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. 
In practice , this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When  calculating 
the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant acturial assumptions the same method (projected unit 
credit method) has been applied as when calculating the defined  benefit obligation recognised within the Balance 
Sheet. 						    

VIII.	History of experience adjustments is as follows:						    

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Gratuity  Compensated 

absence 
For the year ended March 31, 2021
Plan Liabilities-loss / (gain)  -    -   
Plan Assets-loss / (gain)  -    -   
For the year ended March 31, 2020
Plan Liabilities-loss / (gain)  -    -   
Plan Assets-loss / (gain)  -    -   

	 Estimate of expected benefits payments (In absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)			 

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity

01 Apr 2020 to 31 Mar 2021 29.10
01 Apr 2021 to 31 Mar 2022 2.51
01 Apr 2022 to 31 Mar 2023 0.87
01 Apr 2023 to 31 Mar 2024 0.76
01 Apr 2024 to 31 Mar 2025 1.88
01 Apr 2025 to 31 Mar 2026 2.20
01 Apr 2026 Onwards 39.37

IX.	 Statement of Employee benefit provision

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 
Gratuity  77.50  74.94 
Compensated absences  11.89  8.93 
Other employee benefits  -    -   
Total  89.39  83.87 

X.	C urrent and non-current  provision for Gratuity and Leave Encashment		

	 For the year ended March 31, 2021

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Gratuity  Compensated 

absence 
Current Provision  29.10  4.54 
Non Current Provision  48.40  7.36 
Total Provision  77.50  11.89 
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	 For the year ended March 31, 2020

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Gratuity  Compensated 

absence 

Current Provision  26.58  3.37 

Non Current Provision  48.36  5.56 

Total Provision  74.94  8.93 

XI.	 Employee benefits expenses

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 

Salary and Wages  685.15  654.21 

Costs-defined contribution plan  18.09  35.11 

Welfare expenses  18.77  7.30 

Total  722.00  696.62 

(Figures in no.)
Particulars       Year ended                   

March 31, 2021 
  Year ended

March 31, 2020 

Average no of people employed  95 112 

	OCI  presentation of defined benefit plan						    

a)	 Gratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plan, re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans is 
shown under OCI as  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss and also the income tax effect on the 
same.

b)	 Leave encashment cost is in the nature of short term employee benefits.

	 Presentation in Statement of Profit and Loss and Balance Sheet

	 Expenses for Service cost , net interest on net defined benefit liability (asset) is charged to Statement of Profit & 
Loss.

	 IND AS 19 do not require seggregation of provision in current and non-current, however net defined liability (Assets) 
is shown as current and non-current provision in balance sheet as per IND AS 1.

	 Actuarial liability for short terms benefits (leave encashment cost) is shown as current and non-current provision in 
balance sheet.

	 When there is surplus in defined plan, the company is required to measure the net defined benefit at the lower of 
the surplus in the defined benefit plan and the assets ceiling, determined using the discount rate specified i.e. market 
yield at the end of the reporting period on government bonds, this is applicable for domestic companies, foreign 
company can use corporate bonds rate.
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39.	O ther Disclosures

a)	 Statutory Auditors Remuneration, Tax Auditors Remuneration, GST Auditors Remuneration,  Cost Auditors 
Remuneration and Secretarial Auditors Remuneration  :-

(` in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2021
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
I Statutory Auditors Fees

a) Audit Fees  4.02  2.50 
b) Certification /Others  -    -   
c) Out of Pocket Expenses  0.21  0.21 
Total  4.22  2.71 

II Tax Auditors Fees
a) Audit Fees  2.25  2.25 
Total  2.25  2.25 

III GST Auditors Fees
a) Audit Fees  -    0.75 
Total  -    0.75 

IV Cost Auditors Fees
a) Audit Fees  0.35  0.35 
Total  0.35  0.35 

V Secretarial Auditors Fees
a) Audit Fees  0.40  0.40 
Total  0.40  0.40 

b)	 The company has not proposed any dividend to its shareholders during the year.

c)	 The Company has not given any loan or given any guarantee with respect to the parties covered under section 186 
(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

c)	 Certain balances of trade receivables, loan and advances, trade payable and other liabilities are subject to confirmation 
and / or reconciliation.					   

40.	Exp enditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility:

	 Details of expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
with schedule III are as below:

(` in Lakhs)
S.No. Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2021
 For the year 

ended March 31, 
2020

A Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the 
year

 19.95  25.50 

B Amount spent during the year  19.95  25.00 
 ( I ) Construction / Acquisition of Asset  NIL  NIL 
 ( II ) On purpose other than (i) above-

a) Rural Development  -    -   
b) Women Education  -    -   
c) Women Empowerment and Skill Development  19.95  25.00 
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41. Contingent Liabilites not provided for in respect of:		
(` in Lakhs)

S.No. Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

 For the year 
ended March 31, 

2020

1) Disputed liability of Entry tax  69.90  69.90 

3) Guarantees issued by Company's Bankers on behalf of the 
Company

 2,537.29  2,089.42 

4) Letter of Credit Outstanding  2,323.42  2,364.48 

42.	 There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at March, 
2021.						    

43. 	Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) 
is ` NIL (Previous Year ` NIL).

44. Exceptional item consists of  Loss (Net) of ` NIL (Previous year Loss (Net) of ` NIL on the provision of employees 
benefits pertaining to previous years.

45. Based on the intimation received from supplier regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006, the required disclosure is given below:-

(` in Lakhs)

S.No. Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 Year ended 
March 31, 2020

1 Principal Amount due outstanding  49.53  -   

2 Interest due on (1) above and unpaid  0.07  -   

3 Interest paid to the supplier  -    -   

4 Payments made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the year

 -    -   

5 Interest due and payable for the period of delay  -    -   

6 Interest accrued and remaining unpaid'  -    -   

7 Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in 
succeeding year

 -    -   

46.	 Pursuant to Ind AS-116-’Leases’, the following  information is disclosed:

	 Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2021:

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars Category of 

ROU Asset 
"Land"

Category of 
ROU Asset 

"Commercial 
Vehicles"

Total

Balance as at April 1, 2020  65.24  96.75  161.99 
Reclassified on adoption of Ind AS 116
Additions  -    -    -   
Deletions  -    -    -   
Depreciation  1.59  16.02  17.61 
Balance as at March 31, 2021  63.65  80.73  144.39 
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The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the 
statement of Profit and Loss.						    

	 The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021:

	 Included in the Financial Statements as	

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars      As at                   
March 31, 2021 

  As at
March 31, 2020 

Current lease liability  24.98  24.25 

Non-current lease liability  15.67  39.58 

Total  40.64  63.83 

	 The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021:                    		

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars      As at                   

March 31, 2021 
  As at

March 31, 2020 
Balance at the beginning  63.83  46.55 
Finance Cost accrued during the period  4.52  5.92 
Deletions  -    -   
Additions  -    38.40 
Payment of lease liabilities  27.34  27.04 
Total  41.01  63.83 

	 The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 on an 
undiscounted basis:						    

(` in Lakhs)
Particulars      As at                   

March 31, 2021 
  As at

March 31, 2020 
Less than one year  70.91  53.95 
One to Five Years  69.31  69.31 
More than Five  Years  -    -   
Total  140.22  123.26 

	 The  Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are 
sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall Rental expenses recorded for short- 
term leases was ` 70.91 Lakhs for the year ended March 31,2021 and ` 43.33 Lakhs for the year ended March 31,2020 
respectively						    

47.	 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 20 “Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance.

	 The Company’s exports qualify for various export benefits offered in the form of duty credit scrips under foreign 
trade policy framed by Department General of Foreign Trade India (DGFT). Income accounted towards such export 
incentives and duty drawback amounts to  ₹ 67.82 Lakh (previous year:  ₹ 43.12 Lakh)

48.	 Related Party Transactions						    

	 In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24, on related party disclosures, name of the related party, related 
party relationship, transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where control exits and with 
whom transactions have taken place during reported periods, are:
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	L ist of related parties						   

1.	A .	 Key Management Personnel

S.No. Name Designation
1 Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal Managing Director
2 Mr. Richi Bansal Director & CEO
3 Mr. Surender Kumar  Sharma Director
4 Mr. Rajeev Kumar Agarwal Chief Financial Officer
5 Mr. Kapil Datta Company Secretary

	   B.	 Non-executive and Independent Directors

S.No. Name Designation
1 Mr.Bharat Bhushan Sahny Independent Director
2 Mr.Charat Sharma(Till Sept  4,2020) Independent Director
3 Mr.Jai Prakash Gupta ( W.e.f. Sept 4,2020) Independent Director
4 Ms.Anju Gupta Independent Director

2.	E ntities where key management personnel and their relatives exercise significant influence			 

S.No. Entities Principal activities
1 M/s Advance Hightech Agro Products Pvt. Ltd. Chemicals Manufacturer
2 M/s Ravi Developers Pvt. Ltd. Agriculture Goods Producer
3 M/s Pir Panchal Construction Pvt. Ltd., Joint Venture Erection of Electric Poles
4 M/s Virinder Engineering and Chemical Pvt. Ltd. Warehouse Renting
5 M/s Naresh Kumar & Sons HUF HUF

3.	R elatives of key management personnel where transactions have taken place

S.No. Name of Relatives Relationship
1 Mrs.Kumud Bansal Spouse of Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal
2 Mr.Nikhil Bansal Son of Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal

4.The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business

(` in Lakhs)
S.No. Name of transaction/ relationship Year ended 

March 31, 2021
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
I Payment of Rent

Mrs. Kumud Bansal  12.00  12.00 

Mr. Richi Bansal  -    1.30 

Mr. Nikhil Naresh Bansal  -    1.30 

II Payment of Interest

M/s Advance Hightech Agro Products Pvt. Ltd.  2.90  2.89 

III Receipt of Interest

M/s Pir Panchal Constuction Pvt. Ltd Joint Venture  60.18  58.55 

IV Sales of finished goods

M/s Virinder Engineering and Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.  0.19  2.81 

M/s Pir Panchal Constuction Pvt. Ltd Joint Venture  -    116.06 
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(` in Lakhs)
S.No. Name of transaction/ relationship Year ended 

March 31, 2021
Year ended 

March 31, 2020
V Unsecured Loan given

M/s Pir Panchal Constuction Pvt. Ltd Joint Venture  10.00  395.00 

M/s Ravi Developers Pvt. Ltd.  1.10  -   

VI Unsecured Loans received back

M/s Pir Panchal Constuction Pvt. Ltd Joint Venture  10.00  85.00 

VII Unsecured Loan taken 

Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal  698.28  273.74 

Mr. Richi Bansal  16.25  7.44 

Mr. Nikhil Naresh Bansal  10.67  2.95 

VIII Unsecured Loans repaid

Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal  518.48  505.08 

M/s Advance Hightech Agro Products Pvt. Ltd.  -    9.00 

Mr. Richi Bansal  34.23  72.44 

Mr. Nikhil Naresh Bansal  10.67  2.95 

IX Payment of Compensation*

Mr. Nikhil Bansal  9.29  9.60 

X Director sitting Fee's

Mr. Bharat Bhushan Sahny  0.40  0.30 

Ms. Anju Gupta  0.35  0.35 

Mr. Jai Prakash Gupta  0.20  0.10 

	 Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Company	
(` in Lakhs)

S.No. Name of transaction/ relationship Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Payment of Compensation*

I Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal  46.01  48.00 

II Mr. Richi Bansal  40.31  42.00 

III Mr. Surender Kumar Sharma  3.37  3.20 

IV Mr. Rajeev Kumar Agarwal  18.22  19.00 

V Mr. Kapil Datta  5.06  5.16 

A.	 Short-term benefits comprises the expenses recorded under the head employee benefit expenses (eg. Salary and 
wages, contribution to provident and other funds and staff welfare expenses).

B.	 The liability for gratuity and compensated absences are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, 
amounts accrued pertaining to key managerial personnel are not included above.

C.	 The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to 
the performance of individuals and market trends.
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5.	 Balance at the end of the year	

(` in Lakhs)

Name of transaction/ relationship	      Year ended                   
March 31, 2021 

  Year ended
March 31, 2020 

Receivable amount of unsecured loan

M/s Pir Panchal Construction Pvt. Ltd., Joint Venture  612.87  558.55 

M/s Ravi Developers Pvt. Ltd.  -    0.50 

Payable amount of unsecured Loans & Interest

M/s Advance Hightech Agro Products Pvt. Ltd.  50.17  48.59 

Mr. Naresh Kumar Bansal  339.81  160.00 

Mr. Richi Bansal  -    17.98 

	T he transactions with the related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 
transactions. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the 
related party and the market in which the related party operates. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured 
and settlement occurs in cash.						   

49.	E arning Per Share (EPS)
(` in Lakhs)

S.No. Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

a. Net Profit / Loss after tax  as per Profit and Loss for basic EPS  1,211.64  81.88 

b. Add: Interest Expenses on potential equtiy shares (net of tax)  -    -   

c. Net Profit / Loss after tax  as per Profit and Loss for diluted EPS  1,211.64  81.88 

d. No of Equity Share Outstanding  at the end of the year  16,794,000  16,794,000 

e. Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares for basic EPS  16,794,000  16,794,000 

f. Weighted Average No. of Potential Equity Shares  -    -   

g. Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares for diluted EPS  16,794,000  16,794,000 

h. Basic EPS per Share (in `)  7.21  0.49 

i. Diluted EPS per Share (in `)  7.21  0.49 

j. Face Value Per share (in `)  5.00  5.00 

	 The Company does not have any potential equity shares and thus, weighted average number of equity shares for the computation 

of Basis EPS and Diluted EPS remains same.						    

50.	 Prior period income booked amounting to ` 73.63 Lakhs has been reversed and the same has been treated retrospectively 

by restating the financial statement of FY 2019-2020 for the comparision purpose according to Ind AS 8’ Accounting Policies, 

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’.						    

51.	 The Group has practice of getting balance confirmations from its Debtor, Creditor and other parties on annual basis. However, 

the confirmations of balances as on 31.03.2021 with respect to certain parties could not be received due to current situation of 

pandemic COVID-19 thereby the Government of various states have imposed lockdown along with several restrictions, which is 

still going on, hence to that extent the balances have been taken as per book balances in the absence of balance confirmations. 
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As and when the confirmations with respect to the balances are received, the reconciliation would be made and the adjustments, 

if any, on this account would be recorded in the books of account.						    

52.	 The Group has evaluated the impact of COVID pandemic on the operations of the Company, revenue, inventories, investments, 

property, plant & equipment, current borrowings and trade payables. The management has considered the possible effects, if 

any, on the carrying amounts of these assets and liabilties up to the date of approval of these results.  As per the management’s 

current assessment, no significant impact on carrying amounts of inventories, tangible assets, trade receivables, investments and 

other financial assets is expected, and management continue to monitor changes in future economic conditions.  The Group 

values its inventory of finished goods at lower of cost and Net realisable value. The Net realisable value of all the inventories of the 

Group is higher than their cost based on subsequent sales taken place till date and their present market prices. Hence there is no 

impairment risk in the inventory.						    

53.	 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary  to conform to current year’s 

classification.						    

54.	 Notes 1 to 52 are annexed to and form an integral part of financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date

For Alok Mittal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  005717N

 For and On Behalf of the Board 

Sd/-
Alok Kumar Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 071205

Sd/-
 Naresh Kumar Bansal 

 (Managing Director) 
 DIN: 00119213

Sd/-
 Richi Bansal 

 (Director) 
 DIN: 00119206 

Place : Delhi
Date : June 18, 2021

Sd/-
 Rajeev Kumar Agarwal 
 (Chief Financial Officer)

Sd/-
 Kapil Datta 

 (Company Secretary) 
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Form No. AOC-1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures 
Pursuant to first proviso t sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014            

Part A-Subsidiaries                    
                                                                                                                                                    (` In Lakhs)

Particulars                                     As at March 31, 2021
Name of  the Subsidiary Lepakshi Tubes Pvt. Ltd. RST International Trading FZE *RST Industries Ltd.
Reporting Period Year Ended 

March 31, 2021
Year Ended 

March 31, 2021
Year Ended 

March 31, 2021
Share Capital 490.00 90. 20 19. 83
Reserves & Surplus     (367.54) 849.23 612.52
Total Assets   2294.07 2696.52 3025.44
Total Liabilities   2294.07 2696.52 3025.44
Investments - - -
Turnover 4798.13 4402.05 8362.21
Profit / (Loss) before 
taxation

(180.62) 204.11 768.87

Provision for Taxation (55.38) - 147.74
Profit / (Loss) after Taxa-
tion

(125.24) 204.11 621.13

Proposed Dividend - - -
% of Shareholding 100% 100% 100%

* Step down Foreign Subsidiary.

Part B-Associates and Joint Venture                        
(` In Lakhs)

S.No. Name of Joint Venture Pir Panchal 
Constructions Pvt. Ltd.-

Joint Venture
1 Latest audited Balance sheet date March 31, 2021
2 Shares of Associate/ Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end

No. -
Amount of investment in Associates/ Joint Ventures 825.56
Extent of Holding % 25%

3 Description of how there is significant influence We don’t have significant 
influence on Board

4 Reason why the associate / Joint Venture is not consolidated Ind AS 28 does not 
allow to consolidate the 

associate / Joint Venture
5 Net Worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 825.56
6 Profit / Loss for the year (after tax) 561.74
I Considered in Consolidation 140.44
II Not considered in Consolidation 421.30

                                                                                                                 For and on behalf of the Board of 

	 Sd/-
Place: Delhi	 Rama Steel Tubes Limited
Date: June 18, 2021	 Naresh Kumar Bansal

        Chairman & Managing Director                                                                                                                             
Din : 00119213
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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the 47th Annual General Meeting 
of the members of Rama Steel Tubes Limited will be held 
on Thursday, the 30th day of September, 2021 at 12:30 p.m. 
through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual 
Means (“OAVM”) , to transact the following business:-

Ordinary Business

Item no. 1 – Adoption of financial statements

To consider and adopt the audited financial statement of 
the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2021, 
the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

Item no. 2 – Appointment of Director in place of those 
retire by rotation

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Richi Bansal (DIN: 
00119206), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business

Item no. 3 – Approval of remuneration of the Cost Auditors 
for the financial year ending March 31, 2022

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an ORDINARY 
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, 
for the time being in force), the Cost Auditors appointed 
by the Board of Directors of the Company, to conduct the 
audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial 
year ending March 31, 2022, be paid the remuneration as 
set out in the Statement annexed to the Notice convening 
this Meeting.”

Item no. 4 – Appointment of Mr. Vinod Pal Singh Rawat 
(DIN: 09228722) as a Director of the Company, in the 
category of Independent Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an ORINARY 
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Vinod Pal Singh Rawat (DIN - 
09228722) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as 
an Additional Director of the Company with effect from July 
8, 2021 and who holds office upto the date of this Annual 
General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and in respect of whom the 
Company has received a notice in writing from a Member 
under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature 
for the office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby 
appointed a Director of the Company.”

Item no. 5 – Borrowing funds in excess of the limits as 
prescribed under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 
2013

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
180(1)(c), 180(2) and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, 
for the time being in force, and the enabling provisions 
of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company, consent of the members of the Company, be 
and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the 
Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”, which 
expression shall be deemed to include any Committee 
duly constituted/ to be constituted by the Board to 
exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by 
this Resolution), to borrow any sum or sums of money (in 
foreign currency or Indian rupees) including by way of fully/
partly Convertible Debentures and/ or Non-Convertible 
Debentures, from time to time, at its discretion, from 
any one or more of the combinations of banks, financial 
institutions, firms, companies, bodies corporate, mutual 
funds, trusts, other organizations, institutions and/or any 
other persons, notwithstanding that the monies to be 
borrowed together with the monies already borrowed by 
the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained from 
the Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of business) 
may, at any time, exceed the aggregate of the paid-up 
share capital of the Company, its free reserves (that is to 
say reserves not set apart for any specific purpose) and 
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securities premium, subject to such aggregate borrowings 
not exceeding the amount of ` 300 Crores (Rupees Three 
Hundred Crore only) and that the Board be and is hereby 
empowered and authorized to arrange funds and fix the 
terms and conditions of all such monies to be borrowed 
from time to time as to interest, repayment, security or 
otherwise as it may, in its absolute discretion, think fit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect 
to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorized to 
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its 
absolute discretion deem necessary, proper, or desirable 
and to settle any question, difficulty, doubt that may arise 
in respect of the borrowing(s) aforesaid and to execute all 
documents and writings to give effect to this resolution.”

Item no. 6 – Creation of charge on the assets of the 
Company as prescribed under Section 180(1)(a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (“the Act”), including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, 
for the time being in force, and the enabling provisions 
of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company, consent of the members of the Company, be 
and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the 
Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”, which 
expression shall be deemed to include any Committee duly 
constituted/ to be constituted by the Board to exercise its 
powers, including the powers conferred by this Resolution) 
for creation of charge / mortgage / pledge / hypothecation 
/ security or other encumbrances in addition to existing 
charge / mortgage / pledge / hypothecation / security or 
other encumbrances, in such form and manner and with 
such ranking and at such time and on such terms as the 
Board may determine, on all or any of the moveable and 
/ or immovable properties, tangible or intangible assets of 
the Company, both present and future and / or the whole 
or substantially the whole or one or more or all or any 

part of the undertaking(s) of the Company, as the case 
may be in favour of the Lender(s), Agent(s) and Trustee(s), 
for securing the borrowings availed / to be availed by 
the Company by way of loan(s) (in foreign currency and 
/ or rupee currency) and securities (comprising fully / 
partly convertible debentures and / or non-convertible 
debentures, bonds or other debt instruments), issued / to 
be issued by the Company, subject to the limits approved 
by the members of the Company under Section 180(1)(c) 
of the Act, from time to time, together with interest at the 
respective agreed rates, additional interest, compound 
interest in case of default, accumulated interest, liquidated 
damages, commitment charges, premium on prepayment, 
remuneration of the Agent(s) / Trustee(s), premium (if 
any) on redemption, all other costs, charges and expenses, 
including any increase as a result of devaluation / 
revaluation / fluctuation in the rates of exchange and all 
other monies payable by the Company in terms of the 
loan agreement(s), debenture trust deed(s) or any other 
document, entered into / to be entered into between the 
Company and the Lender(s) / Agent(s) / Trustee(s), etc. 
in respect of the said loans / borrowings / debentures / 
securities and containing such specific terms and conditions 
and covenants in respect of enforcement of security as 
may be stipulated in that behalf and agreed to between 
the Board and the Lender(s) / Agent(s) / Trustee(s), etc.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the securities to be created 
by the Company as aforesaid may rank prior / pari-passu 
/ subservient with / to the mortgages and /or charges 
already created or to be created in future by the Company 
or in such other manner and ranking as may be thought 
expedient by the Board and as may be agreed to between 
the concerned parties.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect 
to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorized 
to finalize, settle, and execute such documents / deeds / 
writings / papers / agreements as may be required and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in 
its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable 
and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may 
arise in regard to creation of mortgages / charges / pledge 
/ hypothecation / security or other encumbrances as 
aforesaid.”
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Item no. 7 – Conversion of loan into Shares or Convertible 
instruments or other securities

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 62(1) and 62(3) 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and relevant rules made thereunder, including 
any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof 
for the time being in force, and in accordance with the 
enabling provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company and subject to all applicable 
circulars, notifications, guidelines issued by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India, Reserve Bank of India, Stock 
Exchanges and such other statutory/regulatory authorities, 
and subject to all such other approvals, permissions, 
consents and sanctions of any authorities, as may be 
necessary, and subject to such conditions and modifications, 
as may be prescribed by any one of them while granting 
any such approval, permission, consent and / or sanction 
which may be agreed to by the Board, the consent of the 
members of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred 
to as “the Board”, which expression shall be deemed to 
include any Committee duly constituted/ to be constituted 
by the Board to exercise its powers, including the powers 
conferred by this Resolution) to convert the whole or part 
of the outstanding loans, extended / to be extended by 
any one or more of the combinations of banks, financial 
institutions, firms, companies, bodies corporate, mutual 
funds, trusts, other organizations, institutions and/or any 
other persons (hereinafter referred to as “the Lenders”) 
(whether disbursed on or prior to or after the date of this 
resolution and whether then due or payable or not) by the 
Company under the lending arrangements (existing and 
future arrangements), in the event of default or exercise 
of an option provided under the lending arrangements in 
facility agreements, into shares, or convertible instruments 
or other securities, of the Company, as per the terms 
contained in the respective loan documents executed/ to 
be executed between the Company and its Lenders (as 
already stipulated or as may be specified by the Lenders 
under the financing documents executed or to be executed 
in respect of the financial assistance which have already 
been availed or which may be availed) and such conversion 
shall be subject to the applicable statutory and regulatory 

guidelines for conversion of loans into shares, or convertible 
instruments or other securities of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT within the overall existing 
borrowing limit of the Company under Section 180(1)(c) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, as may be approved by the 
shareholders of the Company, from time to time, the Board, 
be and is hereby authorized to negotiate and finalize the 
terms and conditions with the Lenders for raising further 
loans from time to time, and provide the Lenders with 
a right to convert such loans into shares, or convertible 
instruments or other securities, of the Company any time 
until there are amounts outstanding under such loans in 
accordance with the terms of the lending agreements, in the 
event of default or exercise of an option provided under the 
lending arrangements in facility agreements and subject 
to the applicable statutory and regulatory guidelines for 
conversion of loans into shares, or convertible instruments 
or other securities of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to accept such modifications and to accept 
such terms and conditions as may be imposed or required 
by the Lenders arising from or incidental to the aforesaid 
terms providing for such option and to do all such acts, 
deeds and things as may be necessary to give effect to this 
resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance 
with the Memorandum of Association and Articles of 
Association of the Company and subject to all applicable 
circulars, notifications, guidelines issued by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India, Reserve Bank of India, 
Stock Exchanges and such other statutory/ regulatory 
authorities, and all such other approvals, permissions, 
consents and sanctions of any authorities, as may be 
necessary, the Board be and is hereby authorized to 
offer, issue and allot from time to time to the Lenders 
such number of shares, or convertible instruments or 
other securities, of the Company, upon conversion of the 
outstanding portion of the loans, extended by the Lenders, 
into shares, or convertible instruments or other securities, 
of the Company in accordance with the terms of the 
lending agreements subject to the applicable statutory 
and regulatory guidelines for conversion of loans into 
shares, or convertible instruments or other securities of 
the Company. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the shares, or convertible 
instruments or other securities, of the Company to be 
issued pursuant to this resolution shall rank pari-passu with 
the respective existing shares, or convertible instruments 
or other securities of the Company in all respects.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect 
to this resolution, the Board, be and is hereby authorized 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in 
its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable 
as may be required to create, offer, issue and allot the 
aforesaid shares or convertible instruments or other 
securities, to dematerialize the shares of the Company and 
to resolve and settle any question, difficulty or doubt that 
may arise in this regard and to do all such other acts, deeds, 
matters and things in connection or incidental thereto as 
the Board in its absolute discretion may deem fit, without 
being required to seek any further consent or approval 
of the Members or otherwise to the end and intent that 
they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto 
expressly by the authority of this resolution.

Notes:

1.	 An Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) in respect of the Special 
Business to be transacted at the Annual General 
Meeting is annexed hereto.

2.	 General instructions for accessing and participating 
in the 47th AGM through VC/OAVM Facility  and voting 
through electronic means including remote e-Voting:

a.	 In compliance with the applicable provisions of 
the Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“Listing Regulations”), and the Circulars issued 
by MCA and SEBI, the 47th AGM of the Company is 
being conducted through VC/OAVM Facility, which 
does not require physical presence of members 
at a common venue. The deemed venue for the 
47th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the 
Company.

b.	 In compliance with MCA Circular No. 02/2021 
dated January 13, 2021 read with Circular No. 20 
dated May 5, 2020 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/
HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 
2021, Notice of AGM along with the Annual Report 

2020-21 is being sent only through electronic 
mode to those Members whose email addresses 
are registered with Company/Depositories.

	 In line with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the 
Notice of 47th AGM will be available on the website of 
the Company at www.ramasteel.com, on the website 
of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com, on website of 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.
nseindia.com and also on the website of NSDL at 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

	 Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM Facility, 
the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

	 Members may join 47th AGM through VC/ OAVM Facility 
15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of 
the commencement of the Meeting by following the 
procedure mentioned in the Notice.

	 Members may note that the VC/OAVM Facility, allows 
participation of upto 1,000 Members on a first-
come-first served basis. The large shareholders (i.e. 
shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 
promoters, institutional investors, directors, key 
managerial personnel, the Chairpersons of the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, auditors, etc. can attend 47th 

AGM without any restriction on account of first-come-
first-served principle.

	 Attendance of the Members participating in 47th AGM 
through VC/OAVM Facility shall be counted for the 
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of 
the Act.

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act 
read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Secretarial 
Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) and 
Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations read with MCA 
Circulars and SEBI Circular, the Company is providing 
remote e-Voting facility to its Members in respect of 
the business to be transacted at 47th AGM and facility 
for those Members participating in 47th AGM to cast 
vote through e-Voting system during 47th AGM.
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3.	I nstructions for Members for Remote e-Voting are as 
under:-

a.	 Remote e-Voting period will commence on 
September 27, 2021 (9:00 am IST) and end on 
September 29, 2021 (5:00 pm IST). During this 
period, Members of the Company, holding shares 
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, 
as on the cut-off date of September 23, 2021, may 
cast their vote by remote e-Voting. The remote 
e-Voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for 
voting thereafter. Once the vote on resolution(s) 
is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be 
allowed to change it subsequently.

b.	 Shareholders who have already voted prior to the 
meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 
meeting venue.

c.	 In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on 
e-voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode are allowed to vote through their 
demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised 
to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-voting 
facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders  Login Method
Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with NSDL.

1.	E xisting IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://
eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On 
the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt 
you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value 
added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name 
or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to 
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period.

2.	 If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or 
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period.
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4.	 Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 
voting experience.

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with CDSL

1.	 Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through 
their user id and password. Option will be made available to reach 
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users 
to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/
login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

2.	 After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to 
see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

3.	 If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 
at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.
com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP 
on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After 
successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders (holding securities 
in demat mode) login through their 
depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository 
site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 
be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 
990  and  1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 022-23058542-43
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B)	L ogin Method for e-Voting shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 
mode.

1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: https://www.
evoting.nsdl.com/ 

2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen.

	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL 
eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://
eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS 
login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and 
you can proceed to Cast your vote electronically.

4.	 Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding 
shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical

 Your User ID is:

a) For Members who 
hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID 
followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID

b) For Members who 
hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

c) For Members holding 
shares in Physical 
Form.

EVEN Number followed 
by Folio Number 
registered with the 
company

5.	P assword details for shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders are given below: 

a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then 
you can user your existing password to login 
and cast your vote.

b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for 
the first time, you will need to retrieve the 
‘initial password’ which was communicated to 
you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, 
you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 

the system will force you to change your 
password.

c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i)	 If your email ID is registered in your demat 
account or with the company, your ‘initial 
password’ is communicated to you on 
your email ID. Trace the email sent to you 
from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 
email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf 
file. Open the .pdf file. The password to 
open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID 
for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client 
ID for CDSL account or folio number for 
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file 
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial 
password’. 

(ii)	 If your email ID is not registered, please 
follow steps mentioned below in process 
for those shareholders whose email ids 
are not registered. 

6.	  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received 
the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password:

a)	  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If 
you are holding shares in your demat account 
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.
evoting.nsdl.com.

b)	  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are 
holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by 
aforesaid two options, you can send a request 
at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat 
account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address etc.

d)	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time 
Password) based login for casting the votes 
on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to 
“Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box.
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8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

5.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of 
e-Voting will open.

Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

1.	 After successful login, you will be able to see all the 
companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and 
whose voting cycle 

2.	 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period Now you 
are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

3.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. 
assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares 
for which you wish to cast your vote and click on 
“Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

4.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast 
successfully” will be displayed. 

5.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by 
you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 
page.

6.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will 
not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, 
HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/
JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 
to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to csarungupta@gmail.
com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password 
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website 
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key 
in the correct password. In such an event, you will need 
to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently 
Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 
user manual for Shareholders available at the 

download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on 
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or 
send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not 
registered with the depositories/ company for procuring 
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for 
e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide 
Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investors@
ramasteel.com.

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide 
DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary 
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 
Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy 
of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) to investors@ramasteel.com. If you are 
an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode, you are requested to refer to the login method 
explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting 
for Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode.

3.	 Alternatively shareholder/members may send a 
request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned 
documents.

	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are required to update their 
mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 
account in order to access e-Voting facility.

	 Process for those shareholders whose email ids are 
not registered with the depositories for procuring 
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for 
e-voting for the resolutions set out in this Notice:

	T hose Members, who hold shares in physical form or 
who have not registered their email address with the 
Company and who wish to participate in 47th AGM or 
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cast their vote through remote e-Voting or through 
the e-Voting system during the meeting, may obtain 
the login ID and password by sending scanned copy of: 
i) a signed request letter mentioning your name, folio 
number and complete address; and ii) self-attested 
scanned copy of the PAN Card and any document (such 
as Driving Licence, Bank Statement, Election Card, 
Passport, AADHAR Card) in support of the address of 
the Member as registered with the Company; to the 
email address of the Company investors@ramasteel.
com.

	 In case shares are held in demat mode, Members may 
obtain the login ID and password by sending scanned 
copy of (i) a signed request letter mentioning your 
name, DP ID-Client ID (16 digit DP ID + Client ID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID); (ii) self attested scanned copy of client 
master or Consolidated Demat Account statement; and 
(iii) self attested scanned copy of the PAN Card, to the 
email address of the Company investors@ramasteel.
com.

	I nstructions for Members for participating at 47th 

AGM through VC/OAVM are as under:

	 Members will be able to attend the 47th AGM through 
VC/OAVM Facility through the NSDL e-Voting system 
at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under shareholders 
login by using the remote e-Voting credentials and 
selecting the EVEN for the Company’s 47th AGM. Please 
note that the Members who do not have User ID and 
Password for e-Voting or have forgotten User ID and 
Password may retrieve the same by following remote 
e-Voting instructions mentioned in the Notice of 47th 
AGM to avoid last minute rush. Further, Members can 
also use OTP based login for logging into the e-Voting 
system of NSDL.

a.	 Further, Members will be required to use Internet 
with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during 
the Meeting.

b.	 Please note that Members connecting from 
mobile devices or tablets or through laptops etc 
connecting via mobile hotspot, may experience 
Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended 
to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate 
any kind of aforesaid technical glitches.

c.	 Members, who would like to ask questions during 
47th AGM with regard to the financial statements 
or any other matter to be placed at the 47th AGM, 
need to register themselves as a speaker by 
sending their request from their registered email 
address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client 
ID number/folio number and mobile number, to 
reach the Company’s email address investors@
ramasteel.com atleast 3 (three) days prior to 
meeting. Only those Members who have registered 
themselves as a speaker shall be allowed to ask 
questions during the 47th AGM, depending upon 
the availability of time.

	 Further, Members who would like to have their 
questions/queries responded to during the AGM are 
requested to send such questions/queries in advance 
within the aforesaid date and time, by following similar 
process as stated above.

	I nstructions for Members for e-Voting during the 47th 
AGM are as under:

a.	 Members may follow the same procedure for 
e-Voting during 47th AGM as mentioned above for 
remote e-Voting.

b.	O nly those Members, who will be present in AGM 
through VC/OAVM Facility and have not cast their 
vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting 
and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall 
be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in 
AGM.

c.	T he Members who have cast their vote by remote 
e-Voting prior to the AGM may also participate in 
the AGM through VC/ OAVM Facility but shall not 
be entitled to cast their vote again.

	O ther Guidelines for Members

a.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login 
to the e-Voting website will be disabled upon 
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct 
password. In such an event, you will need to go 
through the “Forgot User Details/ Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available 
on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.
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b.	 The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion 
to their share in the paid up equity share capital of 
the Company as on the cut- off date of September 
23, 2021.

c.	 Any person, who acquires shares of the Company 
and becomes Member of the Company after the 
Company sends the Notice of the 47th AGM by 
email and holds shares as on the cut-off date 
i.e. September 23, 2021, may obtain the User 
ID and password by sending a request to the 
Company’s email address investors@ramasteel.
com. However, if you are already registered with 
NSDL for remote e-Voting then you can use your 
existing user ID and password for casting your 
vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset 
your password by using “Forgot User Details/ 
Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

d.	 A person, whose name is recorded in the Register 
of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners 
maintained by depositories as on the Cut-off date 
only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote 
e-Voting or casting vote through e-Voting system 
during the Meeting.

e.	 M/s. Arun Kumar Gupta & Associates, Company 
Secretaries, New Delhi, has been appointed as the 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize remote e-Voting process 
and casting vote through e-Voting system during 
the Meeting in a fair and transparent manner.

f.	 The Results of voting will be declared within 48 
hours from the conclusion of the AGM and the 
Resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the 
date of the AGM, subject to receipt of requisite 
number of votes. The declared results, along with 
the Scrutinizer’s Report, will be available forthwith 
on the Company’s corporate website www.
ramasteel.com and on the website of NSDL; such 
results will also be forwarded to the National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited, BSE Limited, where the 
Company’s shares are listed.  

4.	 Pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, in 
view of prevailing situation, owing to the difficulties 
involved in dispatching of physical copies of the Notice 
of 47th AGM and the Annual Report for the year 2020-

21 including therein the Audited Financial Statements 
for year 2020-21, are being sent only by email to the 
Members. Therefore, those Members, whose email 
address is not registered with the Company or with 
their respective Depository Participant/s, and who wish 
to receive the Notice of 47th AGM and Annual Report 
for the year 2020-21 and all other communication sent 
by the Company, from time to time, can get their email 
address registered by following the steps as given 
below:-

a.	 For Members holding shares in physical form, 
please send scan copy of a signed request letter 
mentioning your folio number, complete address, 
email address to be registered alongwith scanned 
self attested copy of the PAN and any document 
(such as Driving Licence, Passport, Bank Statement, 
AADHAR) supporting the registered address of the 
Member, by email to the Company’s email address 
investors@ramasteel.com.

b.	 For the Members holding shares in demat form, 
please update your email address through your 
respective Depository Participant/s.

	 Notice of 47th AGM and Annual Report for the year 2020-
21 including therein the Audited Financial Statements 
for the year, will be available on the website of the 
Company at www.ramasteel.com and the website 
of Stock Exchanges at BSE Limited at www.bseindia.
com and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 
www.nseindia.com. The Notice of 47th AGM will also be 
available on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.
com.

5.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 
mandated submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every participant in securities market. 
Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit PAN to their Depository 
Participants with whom they are maintaining their 
demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical 
form can submit their PAN details to the Company. 

6.	 In terms of the Listing Regulations, securities of listed 
companies can only be transferred in dematerialized 
form with effect from April 1, 2019. In view of the 
above, Members are advised to dematerialize shares 
held by them in physical form.
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7.	 During 47th AGM, Members may access scanned 
copy of Register of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel and their shareholding maintained under 
Section 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts 
and Arrangements in which Directors are interested 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act, upon Login 
to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting. nsdl.
com.

8.	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of 
the Company will remain closed from September 23, 
2021 to September 30, 2021 (both days inclusive).

9.	 Details as required in sub-regulation (3) of Regulation 
36 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard 
on General Meeting (SS-2) of ICSI, in respect of the 
Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the 
AGM, are detailed in Annexure-I of the Notice of the 
AGM. Requisite declarations have been received from 
the Directors for seeking appointment/ reappointment.

10.	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has undertaken 
a ‘Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance’ by 
allowing paperless compliance by companies. Also, the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, permits companies to send soft 
copies of Annual Report to all those shareholders 
who have registered their email address for the said 
purpose. Members are requested to support this 
Green Initiatives by registering / updating their e-mail 
address for receiving electronic communications. The 
Notice for Annual General Meeting along with the 
Annual Report of the Company will be made available 
on the Company’s website –www.ramasteel.com.

	 By order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

Date: August 14, 2021	 NARESH KUMAR BANSAL
Place : Delhi	 Chairman & Managing Director
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Explanatory Statement
(Pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

As required by section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(Act), the following explanatory statement sets out all 
material facts relating to the business mentioned under 
Item no. 3 to 7 of the accompanying Notice:

Item no. 3

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
has approved the appointment and remuneration of the 
M/s. Subodh Kumar & Co., Cost Accountants, New Delhi 
(Firm Registration No. 104250) as Cost Auditors to conduct 
the audit of the cost records of the Company across various 
segments, for the financial year ending March 31, 2022  at 
a remuneration of `35,000/- excluding applicable taxes.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the 
Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as 
recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by 
the Board of Directors, has to be ratified by the members 
of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing 
an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the 
Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the 
Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2022.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at 
Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the members.

Item no. 4 

The Board appointed Mr. Vinod Pal Singh Rawat, as 
Additional Director with effect from July 8, 2021. The Board 
has also appointed him as Executive Director effective the 
same date, subject to the approval of the Members.

As per the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act, he holds 
office of Additional Director only up to the date of the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company, and 
is eligible for appointment as Director. The Company has 
received a notice under Section 160 of the Act proposing 
his candidature for the office of Director of the Company, 
along with the requisite deposit.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at 
Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the members.

Item no. 5 & 6

The members of the Company at their 41st Annual General 
Meeting held on September 29, 2015, had accorded 
approval to the Board of Directors of the Company to 
borrow money/moneys up to an aggregate amount of 
`100 Crores, by way of a Special Resolution passed under 
Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”).

Keeping in view your Company’s existing and future funding 
requirements towards capital expenditures, operational 
expenditure and working capital expenditure and for 
general corporate purposes, the Company will require to 
borrow funds, from time to time.

It is proposed to borrow funds from one or more of 
the combinations of banks, financial institutions, firms, 
companies, bodies corporate, mutual funds, trusts, other 
organizations, institutions and/or any other persons 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Lenders”) as may deem fit 
by the Company, which may, together with money already 
borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans 
obtained from the Company from ordinary course of 
business), exceed the borrowing limits under the provisions 
of Section 180(1)(c) of the Act. The Company may borrow 
funds by way of issuing Secured/Unsecured Redeemable 
Non-Convertible/ Partly Convertible/ Wholly Convertible 
Bonds/ Debentures as well.

It is, therefore, proposed to increase the maximum 
borrowing limits up to ̀  300 Crores (Rupees Three hundred 
Crores only), in terms of Section 180(1)(c) and 180(2) of the 
Act.

Further, the borrowings by the Company, in general, are 
required to be secured by charge / mortgage / pledge / 
hypothecation / security or other encumbrances on all or 
any of the moveable or immovable or tangible or intangible 
properties of the Company, in such form, manner and 
ranking, as may be determined by the Board, from time to 
time, in consultation with the Lender(s). In order to facilitate 
securing the borrowings made by the Company or to be 
made in future, it would be necessary to create charge 
on the assets or the whole or substantially the whole or 



Annual Report - 2020-21  |   192

one or more or all or any part of the undertaking(s) of the 
Company. 

Section 180(1)(a) of the Act provides for the power to the 
Board of Directors to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of 
the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking of 
the Company, subject to the approval of members in the 
general meeting.

The consent of the members is required under the 
provisions of Sections 180(1)(c) and 180(1)(a) of the Act, 
to borrow funds in excess of the limits and to mortgage 
and / or create a charge on any of the moveable and / or 
immovable properties and / or the whole or any part of the 
undertaking(s) of your Company to secure its borrowings.

Accordingly, the proposed Resolutions at Item Nos. 5 & 
6 of the accompanying Notice is placed for approval of 
the Members by way of Special Resolutions to enable the 
Company to exercise the aforesaid powers as and when 
required.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company including their relatives, except to the extent of 
their respective shareholdings in the Company, in any way, 
financially or otherwise, is interested or concerned in the 
aforesaid Resolutions.

Item no. 7

To meet funding requirements towards capital 
expenditures, operational expenditure and working capital 
expenditure and for general corporate purposes, your 
Company has availed / will avail financial assistance by way 
of loans, issue of debentures etc., from time to time, from 
any one or more of the combinations of banks, financial 
institutions, firms, companies, bodies corporate, mutual 
funds, trusts, other organizations, institutions and/or any 
other persons (hereinafter referred to as the “Lenders”), 
upon such terms and conditions as may be stipulated by 
them and approved by the Board.

In line with the regulatory changes in the recent past, the 
changes in the Companies Act, 2013 and in line with various 
directives issued by Reserve Bank of India, from time to time, 
the Company has been advised to pass a Special Resolution 
under Section 62(3) and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder 
to enable the Lenders to convert the outstanding loans 

or any other financial assistance categorized as loans 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Assistance”), in 
foreign currency or Indian Rupee, already availed from the 
Lenders or as may be availed from the Lenders, from time 
to time, at their option, into equity shares of the Company 
upon such terms and conditions as may be deemed 
appropriate by the Board and at a price to be determined 
in accordance with the applicable Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Regulations (SEBI Regulations) at the time of 
such conversion.

The proposed resolution at Item no. 10 is an enabling 
resolution under the provisions of the Section 62(3) and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
in view of the fact that under the lending arrangements, 
the Bank(s) / Financial Institution(s) or lenders insist for 
inclusion of an option to convert the outstanding facility 
into Equity in the event of default or upon exercise of an 
option provided under the lending arrangements in the 
facility agreements.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution as set 
out at Item No. 7 and seek approval of the members of the 
Company, to enable the Lenders, in terms of the lending 
arrangements, entered/to be entered and as may be 
specified by the Lenders under the financing documents 
already executed or to be executed in respect of the 
Financial Assistance availed/ to be availed, in the event of 
default or exercise of an option provided under the lending 
arrangements in facility agreements, to convert the whole 
or part of their respective outstanding Financial Assistance 
into equity shares of the Company, upon such terms and 
conditions as may be deemed appropriate by the Board 
and at a price to be determined in accordance with the 
applicable SEBI Regulations at the time of such conversion.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company including their relatives, except to the extent of 
their respective shareholdings in the Company, in any way, 
financially or otherwise, is interested or concerned in the 
aforesaid Resolutions.

	 By order of the Board of Directors
             Sd/-   

Date: August 14, 2021	 NARESH KUMAR BANSAL
Place : Delhi	 Chairman & Managing Director
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DETAILS PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS 
AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATION 2015 AND 1.2.5 OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD (SS-2) ON GENERAL 
MEETING AS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA:

Name of Director Sh. Richi Bansal Sh. Vinod Pal Singh Rawat

Age 41 39

DIN 00119206 09228722

Date of first appointment on the 
Board

01.05.2007 08.07.2021

Qualification BSc(H) in Management from Bradford 
University, U.K.

Graduate

Experience in Specific Functional Area Experience of more than 12 years in 
Steel Tube Industry

He has over 16 years of experience in 
steel pipe industry.

Directorship held in other Companies LEPAKSHI TUBES PRIVATE LIMITED
ATI PROPERTIES PRIVATE LIMITED
TR OIL & GAS PRIVATE LIMITED

NIL

Chairman/Member of Committees of 
Board of other Companies of which he 
is a Director

NIL NIL

No. of Shares held 1443000 NIL

Terms and conditions of re-
appointment

Director
Liable to retire by rotation

Director
Liable to retire by rotation

Last Drawn Remuneration  incl. 
Sitting Fees for Board & Committee(s) 
Meeting (2020-21) 

Salary - ` 40.31 Lakhs Salary – ` 6.44 Lakhs

Relationship with other directors and 
Key Managerial Personnel

Son of Sh. Naresh Kumar Bansal No

Number of Board Meetings attended 
during the year

8 (Eight) N.A.

*Refer Report on Corporate Governance for more details
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Form No. MR‐3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
 

To,  
The Members, 
LEPAKSHI TUBES PRIVATE LIMITED 
B‐5, 3rd Floor, Main Road, Ghazipur, New Delhi 110096 
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by Lepakshi Tubes Private Limited (hereinafter called 
the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted  in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis 
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our  verification of  the  Lepakshi  Tubes Private  Limited  books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns  filed and other records maintained by the company and also the  information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct 
of  secretarial  audit, We hereby  report  that  in  our  opinion,  the  company has,  during  the  audit 
period  covering  the  financial  year  ended  on  31st  March,  2021  complied  with  the  statutory 
provisions  listed  hereunder  and  also  that  the  Company  has  proper  Board‐processes  and 
compliance‐mechanism  in place to the extent,  in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books,  forms and returns  filed and other records 
maintained by Lepakshi Tubes Private Limited  for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 
according to the provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under‐ Not 
Applicable as the shares of the Company are not listed in any stock exchange in India; 
 
(iii)  The  Depositories  Act,  1996  and  the  Regulations  and  Bye‐laws  framed  there  under;  Not 
Applicable as the shares of the Company are in physical form; 
 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to 
the  extent  of  Foreign Direct  Investment, Overseas Direct  Investment  and  External  Commercial 
Borrowings; Not Applicable 
  
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):‐ Not Applicable as the shares of the Company are not listed in any 
stock exchange in India 
 

a) The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Substantial  Acquisition  of  Shares  and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable 



 
 
 

b) The  Securities and Exchange Board of  India  (Prohibition of  Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015; Not Applicable 

 
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009; Not Applicable 
 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of  India  (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulation, 
2014; Not Applicable 

 
e) The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Issue  and  Listing  of  Debt  Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; Not Applicable 
 

f) The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Registrars  to  an  Issue  and  Share  Transfer 
Agents)  Regulations,  1993  regarding  the  Companies  Act  and  dealing  with  client;  Not 
Applicable 

 
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

Not Applicable 
 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; Not 
Applicable 

 
(vi) Having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the 
relevant  documents  and  records  in  pursuance  thereof,  on  test‐check  basis,  the  Company  has 
complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:   
  

 Income Tax Act 1961, Wealth Tax Act, Goods and Services Tax Act, 2016 and rules made 
thereof.  

 Goods and Service Tax (GST) Laws. 
 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  
 
(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, (erstwhile Listing 

Agreement) entered  into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited. (Not Applicable 

as the shares of the Company are not listed in any stock exchange in India) 

 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above. 
 
We further report that 
 
The  Board  of  Directors  of  the  Company  is  duly  constituted with  proper  balance  of  Executive 
Directors, Non‐Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of 
the  Board  of  Directors  that  took  place  during  the  period  under  review  were  carried  out  in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
Adequate notice  is given  to all directors  to  schedule  the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were  sent at  least  seven days  in advance and a  system exists  for  seeking and 



 
 
obtaining further  information and clarifications on the agenda  items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes. 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
For ARUN KUMAR GUPTA & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 
Sd/‐ 
(ARUN KUMAR GUPTA) 
FCS: 5551 
CP: 5086 
UDIN: F005551C000787200 
 
Place: Delhi            
Date: 14/08/2021 
   



 
 
 

Annexure A’ 
Annexure to the Secretarial Audit Report 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our  information and according to the examinations carried out 
by us and explanations furnished and representations made to us by the Company, its officers and 
agents, we report  that  the Company has, during  the  financial year under review, complied with 
the provisions of  the Acts,  the Rules made  there under  and  the Memorandum  and Articles of 
Association of the Company with regard to:‐ 
 
1. Maintenance  of  various  statutory  registers  and  documents  and making  necessary  entries 

therein; 
2. Contracts, Common Seal, Registered Office and Publication of name of the Company; 
3. Forms,  Returns,  Documents  and  resolutions  required  to  be  filed  with  the  Registrar  of 

Companies,  Regional Director,  Central Government,  Company  Law  Board  and  such  other 
authorities; 

4. Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Directors, Auditors and Registrar of 
Companies; 

5. Appointment, Re‐appointment, Retirement of Directors and payment of remuneration.  
6. Disclosure  of  Interest  and  Concerns  in  Contracts  and  Arrangements,  Shareholdings  and 

Directorships  in  other  Companies  and  interest  in  other  entities  by  Directors  and  Key 
Managerial Personnel; 

7. Disclosures requirements in respect of their eligibility for appointment; 
8. Related party transactions which were in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length 

basis and were placed before the Board for their review/approval as and when required; 
9. Appointment and remuneration of Statutory Auditors; 
10. Notice of the meetings of the Board; 
11. Minutes of the meeting of the Board; 
12. Notice convening Annual General Meeting held on November 18, 2020 and holding of the 

meeting on that date; 
13. Minutes of General Meeting; 
14. Approval  of  the  Members,  Board  of  Directors  and  Government  Authorities  wherever 

required; 
15. Form of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 as prescribed under part I of schedule III of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and requirements as to Profit & Loss Account for the year ended  
on that date as per Part II of the said schedule; 

16. Report of the Board of Directors for the financial year ended March 31, 2020; 
17. Transfer of Equity Shares and issue and delivery of share certificates; 
18. Borrowings and registration of charges; 
19. Investment of Company’s funds and inter‐corporate loans and investments. 
                                                                                                                                                                    

********** 


